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Independent Auditer’s Report
To the Members of TC Visa Services (India) Limited
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TC Visa Services (India)
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“the Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit (incltldiﬂg other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

‘Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“the SAs™) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Reéponsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
staternents under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics

issued by ICAlL. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and.

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's management are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process, '

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
re applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(1)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in paragraph 2(ix){(f) below on reporting under rule 11{g} of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)(*“the Rules™);

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
relevant nrovisions of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made in paragraph 2(ix)(f) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the
Rules:

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”;

(viii) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the

, Company; and
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(ix) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact the
financial position of the Company;

b) The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts;

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

d @

(ii)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in Note No. 28, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in Note No. 28, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed by us that have been considered

reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i} and (ii) above, contain any material mis-statement;

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, the audit trail

S
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was not enabled for data changes performed by users having privileged access till
February 1, 2024 at application layer of the accounting software used to maintain
general ledger and the audit trail was also not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for software used to maintain general ledger. Further,
during the course of performing our procedures, we did not notice any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from the period April 1, 2023 reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies Act
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ending

March 31, 2024,

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104767W

Py

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai A Membership No, 039569
Dated: July 25, 2024 ' UDIN: 24039569BKAUNF6532
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report en even date to the members of the Company on standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 :

To the best of our information and according to the explanation provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of our audit, we state

that:

(i) (a)to(d) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence

()
(i) (@
(b}
(i) {(a)
(b)

provision of paragraph 3(i)(a) to {(d) of the Order is not applicable; and

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company’s nature of operations does not require it {o hold inventories,
Consequently, paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order regarding physical verification of
inventories and maintenance of records is not applicable; and

During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ii}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has given unsecured loan to its holding company during the year
amounting to Rs. 400 miilion and the same has been repaid during the year. The
Company has not granted secured loans/advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any parties;

The terms and conditions of the grant of the above-mentioned loan were not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest; and

(c) to (£)Since, the loan granted has been repaid during the year itself, paragraph 3(iii)(c) to

(iv)

(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to
the parties covered under section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with
the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loan given by it and the
Company has not provided any guarantees or security or made investment to the
parties covered under section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
therefore, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company. We
have been informed by the management that no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
india or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

&M

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable,

The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employecs' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and any
other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. According to the -
information and explanations given to us and based on verification carried out by
us on test basis, there are no arrears of statutory dues outstanding as on the last
day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the
date, they became payable; and

There are no such statutory dues as referred to in sub- paragraph (a) above which
have not been deposited with the concerned authorities as on March 31, 2024, on
account of dispute.

There are no transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts and have
been surrendered or disclosed ag income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender;

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority;

The Company has not taken any terms loan. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, the
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partiaily or optionally convertible) during
the current financial year. Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company. '
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(xi) (a)
(b)
(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

We have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or any
material instance of fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year;

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed during the year by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; and

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable,

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{(xiv)(a) & (b) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have

(xv)

an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors. We
have been informed that no such transactions have been entered into with persons
connected with directors.

(xvi) (a) to {c) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi) (a) (b) and (c)
of the Order is not applicable; and

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group as per definition of Group
contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016
and hence the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not appiicable,

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all

9
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liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions of section 135(5) and 135(6) of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For G. M, Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

@oests

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai --. . - Membership No. 039569
Dated: July 25, 2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUNF6532
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditer’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(vi) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of the Company as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date,

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024 based on the internal controls with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the
Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI,

Manragement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal controls with reference to the standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
ence to the standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
Jeo
(4
o
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exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
‘on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
the standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial siatements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles angd that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone
Finanecial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
conirols, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial conirols with reference to. the standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 03956
Dated: July 25, 2024 : UDIN: 24039569BK AUNF6532

12



TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Mal'cl?:ssf,tzo 24 MarchAgf,tzozs
ASSLETS
Nen-Current Asseis
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 60.9 51,8
Total Non-Current Assets 69.9 01.8
Current Assets )
Financial Assets
- Trade Receivables 5(a) 0.0 w15
- Cash & Cash Equivalents 5(b) 1,152.1 1,070.9
- Other Financial Assets 5(c) 2.1 0.7
Other Current Assets 6 19.2 44.
Total Carrent Assels 1,175.4 1,196.9
TOTAL ASSETS 1,243.3 1,288.7
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 7 5.0 5.0
Other Equity - Reserve & Surplus 8 1,600.9 935.6
Total Equity | 1,005.9 940.0
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Benefit Obligations 9 - 5.7
Total Non-Current Liabilities - 5.7
Current Liabilities
TFinancial Liabilities -
Trade Payables 10 {a} 1916 139.9
Other Financial Liabilities 10 (h) 2.0 - 1685
Employee Benefit Obligations g - 16.1
Current Tax Liabilities 4 43.8 3.3
Qther Current Lizhilities 11 - 14,
Total Current Liabilities 237.4 342.4
TOTAL LIABILITIES 237.4 348.1
TOTAL BQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,243.3 1,288.7

‘The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. M. Kapadia & Co. 4
Chartered Accountants -

/\U\y

Firmn Registration Number 104767W

Y et

Atnl Shah Abraham Alapatt mbhau Kenkare
Partier Director Director
Membership No. 39569 DIN: 06809421 DIN: 01272743

Date: July 25, 2024 Date: July 25, 2024 Date; July 25, 2024

Place: Mumbai Place; Minmnbai Flace: Mumbal



TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Statement of Profit And Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the For the
Particulars Notes Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Income
Revenue {rom operations 12 2.6 59.6
Other income 13 04,7 57,2
Total income 97.3 126.8
Expenses
Fmployee benefits expense 14 - 56.0
Finance Cost i5 0.3 5.4
Other Expenses 16 5.8 56,2
Total expenses 10.1 117.6
Profit before tax 8.2 9.2
Legs: Tax expense 17
Current tax - -
Deferred tax 21.8 2.3

Total tax expenses 21.8 2.3
Profit for the vear {A) 65.3 6.9
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations - -
Tneome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehiensive ncome for the year, net of taxes (B) u -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+R) 65.3 6.9

Earnings per equity share ( Face value of INR 10 each} 22

- Basic earnings per share (InTNR) 130.6 13.8

- Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 120.6 13.8

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our repott of even date,
For G, M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 104767W

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership Ne. 39569

Date: July 25, 2024
Place; Muimbai

i

¥or and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors ﬂ}“"

AN

1%'// ~
Ahraham::ilap att Rambhan Kenkare
Director Direelor

DIN: 06809421 DIN: 01272742
Date: July 25, 2024 Date: July 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

" For the
Year Ended|
March 31, 2024

Yor the
Year Ended)|
March 31, 2023

A) Cash flow from operating activities

Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following

Profit / {Loss) hefore income tax 87.2 0.2
Adjustments for:
Written off of iirecaverable balances (Net) 0.4 {34.3)
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances {(Net) 0.4 7.1
Interest income on Loan (66.2) (8.8)
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 21.7 {26.8)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
{Increase)/Decrease in trade recetvable 71,0 5L.0
{Increase}/Decrease in other financial assets (1.4} 576.6
(Increase}/Decrease in other current assets 25.5 42.2
Increase/(Decrease) in nan curvent employee benefit obligations 5.8) {(3.0)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (114.9) 40.8
Inerease/(Decrease) in current employee benefit obligations (16.1) (3.0)
Increase/{Decrease) in other current liabifities (14.6) (112.1)
Cash generated from operations (34.5) 565.7
Income taxes paid 40.5 {12.2)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 6.0 553.5
B) Cash flow from investing activities:
Loan given to Related Parties 0.0 {950.0)
Repaviment of Loan given to Related Parties - 950.0
Interest on Loan given 66.2 8.8
Net cash inflow from investing activities 66.2 8.8
C) Cash flow from financing activities: - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 72.2 562.3
Add; Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,079.9 517.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,152.1 1,079.9
For the TFor the
Reconcilintion of Cash Flow statementis as per the cash flow statemeni Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents 1,152.1 T 1,079.9
Bank Overdrafts - Z
Balances as per statement of cash flows 1,15:2.1 1,079.9

March 31, 2023

Notes :

1. The ahave Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out {n Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) on Statement of Cash Flow as

notified under Companies (Accunts) Rules, 2015.

2, Theo ahove statement of Cash flow should be read in conjunetion with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Acconntants

Firm Registration Number 104767W

—
Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. 59569

Date: Tuly 25, 2024
Place; Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors \ﬁj,;

=

Abraham Alapatt ﬂmbhau Kenlkare
Director Director

DIN: 06800421

Date; July 25, 2024
Place; Mumbai

DIN: 01272743

Date: July 25, 2024
Place: Muinbai



TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5.0
Changes in equity share capital during the vear -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5.0
Changes in equity share eapital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5.0

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Capital Contribution Retained BEarnings Total Other Equity
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.9 918.7 928.6
Profit for the year - 7.0 7.0
Other Comprehensive Income - 0.0 0.0
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Employee Stock Option Expense - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.9 025.6 935.6
Profit for the vear - 65.3 65.3
Other Comprehensive Income - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9,9 9G1,0 1,000.9

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Aecountants

Firm Registration Number 104767W

e

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No, 39560

Date; July 25, 2024
Place; Mumbai

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

e

N
S

N

Abraham A1~apatt Rambhau Kenkare
Director Director
DIN; 06809421 DIN: 01272743

Date: July 25, 2024
Place: Munibai

Date: July 25, 2024
Place: Mumbai



TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes forming pavt of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

General Information

TC Visa Services (India) Limited (the "Company") was incorporated on August 30, 2011 with main object to render eonsultancy and / or advisory services in
connection with cbtaining / arranging visas, The Company is & 106% subsidiary of Thomas Cook {India} Limited. The Company commenced operations from
Felruary 1, 2013.

1 Significant Accounting Policies

11

1.3

e

(a)

(b

(c)

Basis of preparation of financial statemenis

Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accommting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind A8} In

accordancs with provise of the Rule 44 of Companies Accountiug Rules, 2014, the terms used in these financial statements are in accordance
with the definifions and other requivements specified in the applicalle Accounting standards as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Agt, 2013 read with mle 4 of the Companies {Indlan Accountlng standards) Rules, 2015 and other

ralevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time that are notified and effective as at g1st March, 2024.
Finanelal for the Year Ended March 31, 2024 is prepared based on IND AS,

Currenl V/s Non-Current
Al assats and Labilities have been classified as current or nen-etirrent as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out

in the Schedule TIT to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature uf services and the time between the rendering of services and their
realization In eash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 manths for-the purpose of eurrent-noneurrent

classification of assets and liabilities.

Historical cost convention

The Financial Staternents have been prepared on a historical cost Dasis, except for the following:
« Investments, and

» Defined benefit plans

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of Standalone Finanelal Information Tequires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results, This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher dugree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to he materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tusning out 1o be different than those originally assessed. Detafled
Information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information ahout the basis of caleulation
for each affected line item in the Standalope Finandial Information. Revisions to accounting estimates ave recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving cvitical estimates and judgments are:
fi) Estimation of defined benefit obligation
(i} Impairment of 'Trade Receivables

Revenue Recognition

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following flve step approach:

1. identify the contract with a custonier;

2. identily the performance abligations in the contract;

3. determine the Lransactipn price;

4. allocate the transaction price to the performanee obligations in the contraet; and
5. recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is recognlsed upon transfer of control of promized services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to vecefve in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue comprises of consulianey and / or advisory services in connection with obtaining / arranging visas, The revenue arfsing from
providing eonsultancy and/or advisory sevvices in connection with obtalning Visa clearance services is ineluded on the basis of margins
earned, since inclusion on the basis of thejr gross vatus would not be meaningful and potentially misleading as an indicator of the level of the
Company's business.

.
Revenuc I3 recegniscd when services towards abtaining / arranging Visa clearance(s) are rendered i, submission of relevant documents to the
Consulate.

Revenue is measurad based on the consideration specified in a contract with 2 customer and exeludes ameunts collected on behalf of third
parties.

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue in excess of billing is classified as Acarued Revenue
and is classified as a finanial asset because, In these cases, right to consideration is unconditional tpon passage of lime. While invoicing in
excess of revenue is classified as Income roveived in Advance.

The Company presents revenies net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

Other Income
Intercst income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognized when the right Lo receive dividend is established.




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended Maveh 31, 2024
{All amounts in INR Lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.4

1.5

(a}

(b)

Taxes on Income

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income hased on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deforred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differsnces and to nnused tax
losses.

The current income tax charge is calcalated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the company operate and generate taxable ineome. Management periodically evaluates positions talken in tax returns with
respect to sttuations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the hasis of

amounts expected to be pald to the tax authorities,

ncoine Tax; .
Tncome tax for the period comptises of enrrent tax and deferred tax, Income tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent that it relates to itemns recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income fov the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively ehacted at the Balance
Sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. Interest income/expenses and penalties, if any, related to income
tax are included in enrrent tax expense,

deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on taxable temporary differences between the tax base and the accounting base of items
included in the Balance Sheet of the Company.

Deferred tax assets ave recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it 1s probable that foture taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be reallsed,

A deferred tax liahility is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tas rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting perlod. A deferred tax asset is vecognised only to the extent that it
i3 probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can ke utilised, However, deferred tax Habilities ave not
recogmised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Certain temporary differences arising on initial recognition of assets or
liabilitles that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit are not recognised.

Current tax assefs and eurrent tax labilitles are offset when there s a legally enforeeable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is
a1 intention to settle the asset and the liability on a nat basts, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax lfabilities are offset when there is & Jegally
enforeeable right to set off current tax assets against cuprent tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,

Ymployee Bensfils

Long-term Employee Benefits

The Company operates the foliowlng post-employment schemes:
(1) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity
{ii) Defined sontribution plans such as provident fund

{i) Defined Conlribution Plans

Contribution towards Provident Fund for all employees are made to the regulatory authorities,where the Company hasno further obligations.
Such beneiits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carey any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a menthly basis.

Company's conlributions to the above funds are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year for which the contributions are doe
for payment. .

(if} Defined Benefit Plans
The Company provides for gratuity, 2 defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Flan™) coverlng efigible employees in accordance with the Payment of

Gratnity Act, 1972, The Gratuity Plan provides s lump sum payment to vested emplayees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amoiit based on the respective employee’s salaty and the tenure of employment.

Contribution to CGratuity is based on the premium contribution called for by the Lifa Insuranee Corporatien of India (LIC) with whom the
Cpmpany has entered inte an arrangement. The Company's Rability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the
end of ench vear. The amount af net interest expense caleulated by applylng the lability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss, Any differences between the interest income en plan assets and the return
actually achieved, and any changes in the Habilities aver the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions ot experience adjustments within
Ihe vlans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Shorl-term Employee Benefit
Liahilities for wages and salarles, Including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be sellted wholly within 12 months after the cnd of the

period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of ermployeas’ serviess up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amaunts sxpected 1o be paid when the labilities are setiled, The lizbilities are presented as current employee bencfj!;
ohligations in the balance sheet,




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.6 Iinpairment of Assets

Financial Assets :

A financial agset not carried at fair value Is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impalved.
A financial asset is impaired If objective evidence indieates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the agset, and that the
loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

The entity considers evidence of impairment for recelvables for each specific asset. All individually significant recelvahles are assessed for
specific impairment.

17 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisipns are recognised when the entity has a present ohligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an

outPow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balanca Sheet
date. Provigions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outfow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations shall be small. Provisions are meastited al the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure require to settle the present obilgation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time valie of money and the risks specific to the labitity.
Contingent Habilities are. disclosed when there is a possible ebligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the oecurrence or non-geeurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present
olligation that arises from past evenia where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

1.8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
10 known amounts of cash and which are sublect to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, term deposite with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments, To be classified as cash and cash equivalents,
the financial asset must:

« be readily convertible into cash;
+ have an inslgnificant risk of changes in value; and
+ have a maturity period of three months or less at acqnisition.

In the cash flow statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Cash on Hand, Cheques/Drafts on Hand, Remittances in Transit, Balances
with Bank held in Current Account and Domand Deposits with maturities of three menths or less. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of au entity's cash management, and are included as a component of cash and cash eguivalents, Bank overdrafis are
shown within borrowings in eurrent liabilities in the balancs sheet.

1.9 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortlsed cost using the effective interest method, less

provision for impairment, Although the Company recognises the revenua relating to commission o net und agent basis, the frade reccivables
and trade payables are recogtlsed on the gross value of services rendered and services received respectively,
2.0 Financial nsttuments
(a) Financial asscts

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Finaneial assets other than

L=

trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss, expect for financial

{nstruments carried at amortised vost, where transaction costs ar¢ adjusted in the amortised cost of the asset.

(1i) Subsequent Measurement .

Financial assets, ather than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other eemprehensive income
(FVOCT) or fair value through profit ot loss (FVTPL) on the basis of:

- the entity's business mode) for managing the financial assets and

- the contraciual eash flow charagteristics of the financial asset.

() Measured at amortised cost : Finaneial assets which have contractual eash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding and is held within a business model with the objective of halding the assets to collect contractual cash flows, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR? tmethod, less impairment, Amortised cost is caleulated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of Lhe EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included i interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss. On derecagnition, gain or loss, it any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
(b)Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income : Financial assets which have eontractual cash flows that are solely

payments of prineipal and interest on the principal outstanding and is held within a business model whose objective 18 achieved by both
collecting contractual eash flows and selling financlal assets, is measu'red at falr value through other comprehensive income. It is subsequently
imeasured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recoguised in the other comprehensive income ('OCLY), except for interest inzome which
is recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the EIR method. The losses avising from impairment are recognised
in the Statemerst of Profit and Loss, On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,




TC VISA SERVICES (IND1A) LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the Year Ended Mavch 31, 2024
{All amounts in INR Laldhs, unless etherwlse stated)

{'¢) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not measured at either amortised eost or FYOCI, is measured at
TVYTPL, Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any,
recopnised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are measured at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company shall, on Inftlal recognition, irrevoeably elect to
measure the same gither at FYOC] or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis, Fair value changes on
an equity instrument shall bs recognised as ‘other Income’ In the Staternent of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure .
such instrument at FYOCL Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FYOCI are recognised in OCL
Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in

equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Proflt and Loss,

(iii) Doerecognition

The Company derecognises a financial assel when the contractal rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
contraciual rights 1o receive the cash flows from the asset On transfer of the financial asset, the Company evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transfarred nor retained substantielly all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nar transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement, In that case, the Company also recognises an asgociated liability. Tha transferred asset and the associated Hability are measured
on a basls that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

() Finaneial liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Finaneial lishilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the eontractual provisions of the instruments. Flnancial liabilities
are initlally recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for &)l financial Habilities not carried at falr value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement;

Tinancial liabilities are subseqtiently measured at amortised cost using EIR method. Financial labilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value with all changesin falr value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

{iti) Derecognition:

A finandlal lability is derecopnised when the obligation spacifiad in the contract is diseharged, cancelled or expires, When an existing financial
Jighility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terins, or the terms of an existing linbility are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the original Tabifity and the recognition of a new liability, The
difference in the respective carrying ameounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.1 Offsetting financial inshruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there 15 a legally enforceable right to olfset

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the ability simuitaneously. The legally
enferceable right must not be contingent on fulure events and ‘must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

2.2 Earnings per share .
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equily shareholders by the welghted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertalning the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit
for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year and for all years presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential
equity shaves, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change In resources. For the purpose of
caloulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss far the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average numbey
of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.3 Rounding of amouvuts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs or decimals thereof as per the
requirement of schedule 11 (division IL), unless ctherwise stated.

2.4 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current year’s figures.

2 (Critieal Accounting Estimates and Judgements:
‘The preparation of Standalone Financlal Information requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the aetnal resalts. This

note pravides an gverview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted
due 1o estimates and assumptlons turning out to be different than those originally assessed, Detailed information about ench of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of caleulation for each affected line itern in the Standalone Financial

Information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised In the period in which the estimates ave revised and in uny future periods affected.
Kstimates and judgements are centinually evaluated. They are based on historieal experience and other faclors, including expectations of fulure events that

shall have a financial impact on tive Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

. L




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts in INR Lalhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note g: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars

__The bajance comprises of temporary differences artributabl

-

gL

. Asat
Mareh 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

On carriforward buisness losses

On provisions allowable for tax purpose when paid

91.8

On Provigion for Doubtful Advances

59.0

Net Deferved Tax Assels

69.0

1.8

Movementin Deferred Tax Assets

On provisions

On Provision for

Y.~ ol

Partiiculars allowable fortax Donbiful Total
purpese when paid Advances
As at April1, 20622 88.1 6.0 2.
charged/ (credited)
o profit or lgss 3.7 (6.0) {2.3)
“to other comprahensive income - - -
Ag at March 31, 2023 91.8 - 91.8
charged/{credited)
-to prafit or loss (21,8) - (21,8
o other comprehenaive income - - -
As at March 31, 2024 60.0 . 59
Note 4t Current Tax Assets /(Liabilities)
. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March g1, 2023
Opening Balance - Carrent 'Tax Asset/ (Liahility) (3.3) (15.5)
Test: Current Tax payable for the year - -
Add: Tayes Paid (40.5) 12.2
Closing Balances - Current Tax Asset/{Liabilities) {43.9) 3.3
Note gi Financial Assets
g(a)Trade receivables
. As at Asat
Particulars March 81, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Recelvables a0 715
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Total receivables 0.0 71,5
Breakup of Scowrity Details
Unsecured, eomsidered good 0.0 715
Unsecuired, considered Doubtful - -
Total 0,0 71.5
T.ess ; Allowance for doubiful debts - -
Total Trade Receivables 0.0 1.5




Trade receivablies Ageing Schedule
Ag at g1st Mar 2024

Particular

Undisputed Trade Receivablies - Considered Good

Undispited Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in
credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good

Disputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in eredit
tisk

Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

Totak

Less than 6 Montl
Q.00

6 Month -1 Year

1-2 Year

2-3 Year

More than 3
Years

Total
0.0

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
_As at 81 Maych 2023

Particular

Undisputed Frade Receivables - Considered Good

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Which have significant increase in
credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

Disputed Trade Recetvables - Considered Gocd

Disputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in credit
risk

Disputed Trade Recelvables - Credit Impaired

Less: Allowances
Total

Less than 6 Month
3.6

6 Month - 1 Vear
16.8

12 Year
26.4

2-3 Year

More than §
Years
24.7

Total
7L

3.6

16.8

26.4

_5(b) Cash and cash ey uivalents

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

Balances with baiks :

In current aceounts

32.1

80.0

Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

1,120.0

890.0

Casl1in hand

Chegues on hand

Total Cash and cash cquivalents

1,152.1

1,079.9

5(¢) Other Fipancial Assels

Tarticulars

Non-current

Current

Non-current |

Current

As at March g1, 2024

Accrued Revenue

As at March 31, 2023

C.7

Gther Recetvabies from Related Parties

0.0

0.0

Total Other Ninancial Assets

2.1

0.7

5(d) Loan

Particulars

Mon-ciarent

Current

% of
Total

Non-
carrent

l Cwrrent

% of
Total

As at March 31, 2024

As at Maveh g1, 2023

Loan ta Related Parties

Total Loan

-] -1

AL

Note: Loan Repayable without specifying any terms or pericd of repayraent, Current periodloan

Tias been taken and repaid back.




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6: Other Current Assets

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance to Suppliers

Considered good 0.0 26.2
Considered Doubtful - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances - -
0.0 20.2

Receivable with Government authorities 19.1 18.6
1Total 19,2 44.8
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TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amrounts in INR. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8: Reserves and surplus

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Capital Contribution 9.9 9.9
Retained Farnings 990.9 025.7
Total reserves and surplus 1,000.8 935.0
(a) Capital Contribution
Particula As at As at

s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance - 9.9 9.9
Capital Contribution towards ESOP Expenses - -
Closing Balance 9.9 9.9
(b) Retained Earnings

. Ag at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 925.6 018.7
Net Profit for the year 65.3 6.9
Ttems of other Comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings - -
Closing Balance 990.9 925.6

Nature and Purpose of Reserves-

Capital Contiribution

The company has created capital contribution reserve in relation to push-down ESOP's from its parent company- Thomas Cook (India) Limited

due to Ind AS requirement.
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TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statemenis for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 12: Revenue from QOperations

For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income From Operations 2.6 55.6
Total 2.6 59.6
Note 13: Other Income
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Claims Written back - 55.0
Miscellaneous Incorne 2.6 2,8
Interest on Fixed Deposits with Bank 22.0 -
Interest Income on Income tax Refund 3.8 -
Interest on Loan to Related Parties G6.2 8.8
Total 9.4.7 67.2
Note 14: Employee Benefil Expenses
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries Wages and Bonus - 50.1
Contributien to Provident and Other Funds - 2.2
Gratuity {Refer note 9) - (2.7)
Staff Welfare Expenses - 0.4
Total - 56,0
Note 15: Finance Costs
For the Yor the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bank Charges 0.3 L0
Credit card charges - 4.4
Total 0.3 5.2
# Amount is below the rounding off norin adopied by the Company. -
Note 16: Other Expenses
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
’ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rent (Refer note 23) 1.9 6.1
Repairs and Maintenanee 0.8 0.6
Rates and Taxes - _
Travelling Hxpenses 0.4 3.3
Legal and Professional Charges #(Refer note below "a™) 5.3 0.3
Printing, Stationery and Communication Cost - 0.3
Courier Charges 0,2 1.9
Brokerage - 0.0
Provisions for doubtful debis and Advances (net off bad debt w/off) 0.4 7,1
Advertisment Expenses 0.2 Q.1
Outsourced Staff - 0.0
‘Written off of irrecoverable balances 0.3 01,5
Miscellaneous Expenses ‘ 0.3 6.2
Total 9.8 56,2

# Legal and Professional charges include auditors remuneration

i




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amoumts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a): Details of payments to anditors

Particulars

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

-Statutory Audit

4.0

-Tax Audit

14

In other capacities

-Re-imbursement of expenses

Total payments to auditors

24

Note 17: Income Tax Expense

Particulars

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods

Total eurrent tax expense

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets

21.8

2.3

Total deferred tax eredit

21,8

2.3

Income tax expense

21,8

2.3

(h) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied

by India's tax vate :

Particulars

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2024

For the
Year Ended
March 31, 2023

Profit from conlinuing operations before income tax expense

87.2

9.2

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (PY - 25.17%)

21,7

2.3

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in caleulating taxable
income:

Interest on shortfall of advance tax

Dividend income

Sec 144 Disallowance

On account of rate difference as compared to previous year

Otheritems

Income tax expense

Lo
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TC VIEA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended Maveh 31, 2024
(All amounis in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

" Note 18: Fair value measurements

Financial insboanents by category

. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
" [Particulars FVPL FVOCK Awortised TVPL FVOC Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Trade receivable - - 0.0 - - 71.5
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 1,152,1 - - 1,079.¢
Cthers - - 2.1 - - .7
Total financial assets - - 1,154.2 - - 1,152.1
Financinl liabilitics - - - -
Trade Payable - - 1916 - - 139.9
Other Financial Liabilitles - - 2,0 - - 168.5
Total financial linbilities - - 193.6 - - 308.4

The carvying amounts of trade receivable, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables, other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values
due to their shori-term nature.

Note 19; Financial risk managemestt
(i) Risk management framework

The Company's activities expose it to a varlety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary risk management focus is to minimize
potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company's rigk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risls and compliance with the policies and processes. Risk assessment and
management pelicies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors and the management is

responsibie for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes,
(ii) Credit Risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a custamer or counterparty to a financial instrument falls to meet its contractual abligations, and arises prindipalty from the
Company's recelvables froni customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms fn the normal course of business, The Company establishes an allowance for payments that are 365 days past due as it represents its estimate
of expected credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables. The Company does not have any financial assets, other than receivables from group entities, that are 365 days past
due but not impaired.

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit 1isk by age of the outstanding from various customers including group eniities is as follows:
Y ag g group

Asal Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Neither pagt due nor impaired - -
Past due but not impaired : - -

Particulars

Past due 190 days 0.0 3.6
Past due g1—180 days - -
Past due 180—365 days - 16,8
Past due » 365 days - 511

0.0 71,5

Reconeiliation of loss allowanece provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of 1055 aliowance Amount
Loss allowanece on March 31, 2022 24.0
Changes in loss allowance (24.0)

Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 -
Changes in loss ullowance N
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 -

Expected credit loss assessment Tor custonters as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
Exposures to eustomets outstanding at the end of each reporting period ave reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected gredit losses. As company's customer is

maindy its group company and few corporate customers {for whom based on information available in the public domain about their credibility/financial performance no impairment
indicator exist) hence impalrment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses,

Cash and cash equivalents
‘The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions of Rs 1152.1 Lakhs and Rs 1079, Lakhs ag at March 21, 2024 and March 31, 2023

respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evalnated hy the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.
(iit) Liquddity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial olligations as they become due. The Corapany manages its liguidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible,
that it will always have suffieient liguidity to meet its Habilitles when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without ineurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Contpany's
reputalion,

The Company had working capital of INR 93g.1 Lalhs as at March 31, 2024 and INR 854.5 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023,
{iv) Market visk

() Foreign eturrency risk
The Company does not deal in Toreign corvency and hence there is no forelgn currency risk exposure,
(L) Cash flow and interest rate risk
The entity does nat have any borrowings with fluctuaiing interest rates and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk,

(c) Price risk

The entity does not have investsment which arc cxposed to market fluctuations and hence it is not expesed to price risk.
Note zo: Capital management

The Company's chiectives when managing capital are Lo safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakehalders and to maintain an oplimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount

of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt,

P
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TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA} LEMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(Al nmounts in INK Lakhs, nuless otherwise sinted)

Note 11 Relnted Party Transactions
{a) Parent Eulities
The Company is controlled by Lhe following entity:

Place of Ownership Tuterest (%)

Incorporation As at March 31,| As atMarch g1,
2024 20g;
Thomas Cool (Indiu) Limited, India ("TCIL") Holdlng Company India 100% 100%

Name Type

Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Linsited, Mawritus ("FCML")
holds 63.83% of Equity Shares of TCIL. FCML is a stepdown Ulthmnte Holding Cannda
subsldiury of Faitfax Financial Holding Limited, Camada the Company
uliimate Holding Company.

{b) Name of the related party and related pavty relationglip

Flace of Business/
Name couniry of Relationship
ineorporation

SOTC Travel Limited India Fellow Subsidiury
'TC Tours Limited India Tellow Subsidinry
Desart Adventures Tourism LLC VAL Tellow Subsidiury
Quess Corp Limited India Faliow Associnte

{c) Key Mmmgemcnt persnnnel
Particulars
R.R. Kenknre
Rajeqv Kale
Abraham Alapatt

(d) Transactiens with related partes
The following transactions aecuyred with velated partics:

For the For the
Year Ended Year Euded

Nature of transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Sule of services
Themas Cook (India) Limited 2.8 90.6
SOTCTyave] Limidted , ~

Servives Avplled
Desert Adveniures Tourism LLC - 15.0

Facilities and Suppent Serviees Availed
Thomas Cook (Indin) Limited -Rent 1.9 6.5

Loan Given
Themas Coolc{India) Linited 4,000,0 50.0

Loan ycpaid
Thouna Ceck (India) Limited 4,000,0 950.0
TC Tours Limited -

Interest income on Loans to Related Partles

“Thomas Cook {Indind Limited 66.2 10.2

'I'C Tours Limited . B

Other professional charpes [Dutsourced staff]

Quess Corp Limbted - -

Forthe Porthe
Balances as althe year end Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 Mazrch 31, 2028

Outstanding Receivable

Thomaa Cook (Indian) Limited - 66.0
SOUC I'vavel Lisnfted - 5.

Other Receivables from Relaled Partics

TC Towrs Limited - -
Desert Adventures Tourlsm LLC - -

Quess Corp Limited - -

Outstanding payables
Themnas Cook {India) Limited - 168,

AL~



TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2024
(All amnounts in TNR Lalhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 22: Earnings Per Share

For the For the

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders 65.9 6.9
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 0.5 0.5
(a) Basic earnings per share
Attributable to the equity holder of the company 130.6 13.8
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Attiibutable to the equity holder of the company 130.6 13.8
(c) Reconciliation of earnings used in calcylating earnings per share
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic earnings per share
Profits atiributable to the equity holders of the company nsed in calculating basic 65.3 6.9
earnings per share
Profits attributable to the equity holders of the company used in caleulating diluted 65.3 6.9

earnings per share

(d) Weighted average numbey of shares used as the denominator

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 0.5 0.5
basic earning per share
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the o5 0.5

denominator in calculating diluted earning per share




TC VISA SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Financial Stalements for the Year Ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All nmounts in TNR Lalchs, unless otherise stoted)

Noie 231 Operating Tenses
Disclosures in respeet of enncellable agresments for office premises taken on lease

Torthe Year

Poriienlars enderd g1st Maveh 2024

For the Year
ended 31 March 2023

Lease payments recoghised in the Statement of

Frofit and Loss i

6.1

Significant Jeaging arvangements
~The lease agreements are for a petlod of eleven manths to nine years.

-The lease agreements are caneellable at the aption of either party by giving one menth %o slx wenths’ natice.

-Gertaln agreements provide for increase in rent,

Note 24: Segmenl Information

Cperating segments are veported in o manner consistent with the inernal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Company has only ene cperating segment, which is 'Visn related serviess', The

Company ears it's entire revenve from its operations in India.

Note 251 Micro, Small rid Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Interprlses, to whom the Gomypany cwes dues, which are outstanding os st Mareh 31, 2024, This information as reguired to be disolosed under the Micra, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informatien available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Note 26 - IND AS 115 ‘Revenus from Conlracts with Customers

As per Ind AB. 115 ‘Revenue flom Contracts with Customers’ revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchangs far services to a customer,

he Company'’s revenue was primanily eomprised of Revenue from render consultancy and / or aclvisory services in connection with obtaining / arranging vises.

1) Detnils of revenue from conlrasts with euslomers recognised by the Company, net of indirect iaxes, in i1y Sintement of Profit and Less

Tor the Forthe
Parteulars Year Ended Year Ended|
Mnrech 31,2024 March zi, zozq
Visa and Relnted Services. 2.6 59.6
2.6 796

-




ii) Disnggregate Revenne
The following teble presents Gompany revenue disagarsgated by type of revenue stream and by geagraphy;
Revenue based on geography

Torthe Feorthe
Parleulars Year Ended Yenr Exded|
: Mayeh 21, 2024 March 31, 2023
Indin 2.6 59:6
Overseas - -
2.6 596 |
Rovenue based on product ond services
Forthe For the
Particulers Yenr Boded Year Ended|
Murch 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
Vise end Related Services 2.6 59.6 |
2.6 596

iif) Cantract balance

The contract linbilities primarily relate to the advance censideration received from customers for whieh revenue is recognized when the perforntnce cbligation is over/service is delivered.

Advanee Collections is recognised when payment Is received before the velated performance cbligation is satisfied. This includes advances recelved from global distribution systems towards performance linked
bonuses. Revenne frop Performance linked bonuses from global distribution systeins (\GDSs') is recognized as and when the performance cbligations wider the sehemes are nohieved,

Revenne from contract with customers

Parliculars Asat Asal
Murch 31, 2024 Nareh 31, 2023
Advance received from Customers - 13.6

- 13.6

o




Note 27: Ratio Working

For the yenr For the year
Ratio Analysis Nuwmerator Denominator ended 31 Marels|ended 31 Maveh| Variance Remark
2024 2023
The increage in Lhe ratio is majorly dus o)
- y 3 R reduction in trade payables. Apart from
Current Ratio Total Current Assets Total Crerrent Liabilities 4.94 3.50 41% that investment in fixed deposits has been
Increased during curvent year.
There is an jmprovement in ROL due to
e Eqity i . : . N e . profit earned during the current year as
Return an Equity Ratlo Profit after Tax Closing Shareholder's Equity 0.06 o.01 783% compared to losses inctred in previous
year.
Trade Receivables turnover ratic Revenue from Qperations Average current trade a.07 054 -86%| The operations has been reduced during the
receivable year,
. The operatlons has been reduced during the
Trade payables turncver ratio Coet of Goods Sold (Expenses) | Average trada payable 0.06 0.25 6% year,
) ‘Turnover is reduced as compared to
et capital ternover ratio Rewvenue fiom Operations Closing working capital .00 0.07 -96% | previons year,
There {s an improvement in ratio due tof
Net profit ratla Profit after Tax Revenue from Operalions 24.97 012 -21419% [profit earned during the current year ag|
cotpared {o previons year profit.
There is an improvement in ratio due to
Return on Capltal employed Profit liefore interest and tax | Closing Capital Employed 0.0¢ .02 -460% | profit earned during the curreml year as
compared to pravious year profit,

Note 28 : No funds have been advaneed or loaned or invested (etther from borrowed funds or share premium ar any cther sourees or kind of funds) by the Company to or In any ather person(s) ar
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediares™ with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries), The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
ather persons or entities identified by o on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secarity ot thelike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 26 Additional Regwlatary Information detailed iz clanse 8Y of General Instructions given in Part T of Division 11 of the Sehedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 are farnished to the extent applicable

{a the company.

Note 30: Previotis year's figures has been regronped/reairanged wherever necessary to confivm with current vear's figure.

Signatures to Notes 1to 30 form an integral part of the financial statements,

As'per our report of even date
For G, M. Kap#dia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 104767W

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 36565

Dates July 25, 2024
FPlace: Mumbai

For and on belalf of the Board of Directors

* -

Abraham Alapatt

Director
DIN: 0680g421

Date: July 25, 2024

Place: Mumbai

Director

DIN: 01272743

Rambhau Kenkare

Date: July 25, 2024
Place: Mambai



TC Tours Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

. (Rs. In Million)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Right of Use Assets afa) 1.0 2,1
Financial assets

- Loans

- Investments 5(a) - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 3(b) 13.6 16.2
Non current tax assets 106.1 110.0
Total non-current assets 120.7 i28.3
Current assets
Financial assets

- Trade receivables 5(b) 1,063.3 896.9

- Cash and cash eguivalents 5(c) 212.9 85.7

- Loans 5(d) - -

~ Other financial assets 5{e} 236.9 150.2
Other current assets G 1,172.1 2,143,7
Total current assets 2,625.2 3,285.5
TOTAL ASSETS 2,745.9 3,413.8
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 7 30.0 30.0
Other equity

-Reserve & surplus 8 375.9 220.6
Total Equity 405.9 250.6
LIABILITIES
Non-current labilities
Financial labilities

- Borrowing 9 515.4 625.9

- Lease liahilities .7 -
Employee Benetit Obligations 10 10.2 Gt
Other non-current liabilities - -
Total non-current liabilities 526.3 635.3
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowing 11{a) 124,53 100.0

- Lease labilities 0.4 2.5

- Trade payables 11(h)

~Dues of miero enterprises and small enterprises 16.3 a1
-Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,569.7 2,366.3

- Other financial liabilities 1i(c) 0.7 0.0
Employee Benefit Obligations g 16.4 7.7
Current Tax Liabilities : 510 12.0
Other current liabilities 12 3.9 36.3
Total current liabilities 1,813.7 2,52%.0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,340,0 3,163.2
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,745.9 3,413.8

The above balance sheet should be read in eonjunetion with the accompanying notes,

As per our report of even date,

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratiocn Number 104767W T

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569
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11-May-24
Place: Mumbai
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Debasis Nandy
Director
DIN: 66368365

May-24
Place: Mumbai
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors \@Jﬁ
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Rambhau Kenkare
Director
NIN No. 01272743

11-May+-24
Place: Mumbai




TC TOURS LIMITED

Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In Million)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 13 3,220.8 3,495.0
Other income 14 18.5 10.0
Total income 3,239.3 3,505.0
Expenses
Cust of services 2,659.9 3,025.0
Employee benefits expense 15 127.1 131.8
Depreciation 3 2.4 3.4
Finance Cost 16 82.4 60.7
Other expenses 17 156.6 151,1
Total expenses 3,028.4 3,372.0
Profit before tax . 210.9 133.0
Less : Tax expense 18
Current tax 51.0 12,0
Deferred tax 2.1 21.5
Total tax expenses 53.1 33.5
Profit for the year (A) 157.8 99.5
Other conyprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (2.1) {0.6)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {(0.5) {0.2)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes (B) {2.6) (0.8)
Total comprehensive income fer the year (A+B) 155.2 g8.7
Earnings per equi.ty share ( Face value of INR 10 each) 23
- Basic earnings per share (In INR) 52.6 Tt
- Diluted earnings per share (In INR) 52.6 232

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.
For G. M, Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on hehalf of the Board of Direclors

\_\O}_

N
) S—r

Debasis Nandy ﬁlnbhau Kenkare
Director Director

DIN: 06368365 DIN No. 01272743

Firm Registration Number 104767W

W

Atul Shalh

Partner
Membership No. 039569

11-May-24
Place: Mumbai

11-May-24
Place: Mumbai

11-May-24
Place: Mumbai




TC TOURS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. In Million)

Particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 20249 March 31, 2023
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 210.9 133.1
Adfustments for:
Interest Income (9.8) (2.6)
Depreciation on ROU assets 2.4 34
Interest on lease liability 0.2 0.4
Provision for Doubtful Advances (Net) and Impairment charge 30.1 38,1
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and Kabilities 233.8 172.4
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables (106.3) (404.6)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Financial Assets (77.8) (116.2)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 941.4 (1,521.8)
Increase in Employee Benefits Obligation 7.5 1.8
(Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables (777.5) 1,621.1
Inerease in Other Financial Liabilities .7 0.0
{Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities (7.4) 8.0
Cash generated from operations 214.4 {238.9)
Income taxes paid {8.0) (81.2)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 206.4 {(3z0.1)
B) Cash flow from investing activities:
Interest Regeived 9.8 2.6
Movement of ROT Assets (1.3) 0.2
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities 8.5 2.8
C) Cash flow from financing activities:
Repayment of lease liabilities (1.3) (4.1
Secured loan taken from Bank (32.7) 308.5
Interest on lease liabilty made (0.2) (0.4}
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from finnacing activities (34.2) 304.0
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 180,7 70.7
Add: Cagh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 24.7 (52.0}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 205.4 24.7
Reconciliation of Cash Flow statements as per the eash flow statement Year Ended Year ended
Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 212.0 85.7
Bank Overdrafts (7.5) (61.0)
Balances as per statement of cash flows 205.4 24.7
Notes :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS-7) on Statement of Cash Flow as notified under Companies (Acounts) Rules, 2015.

2, The above statement of Cash flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants ~—

Firm Registration Number 104767W \}/_

ML o~
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Atul Shah Debasis Nandy Rambhau Kenkare
Partner Director Director

Membership No. 030569 DIN: 06368365 DIN No. 01272743
11-May-24

Place: Mumbai

11-May-24
Place: Mumbai

11-May-24
Place: Mumbai




TC TOURS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INE Million, unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY |

Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2022

30.0

changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

30.0

changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

30.0

Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus

Other Comprehensive
Income

Particulars

ESOP Reserve

Retained Earnings

Employee Benefit
Expenses (Gratuity - OCI)

Total Other Equity

Balance at the March 31, 2022

108.8

5.3

121.8

Profit for the yvear

7.7

99.6

99.6

Other Comprehensive Income

(0.8)

(0.8)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

99.6

(0.8}

99.6

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Employee Stock Option Bxpense

Balance al the March 31, 2023

208.4

4.5

220.6

Profit for the year

157.8

157.8

Other Comprehensive Income

(2.6)

(2.6)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

157.8

(2.6)

155.2

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners

Employee Stock Optlon Bxpense

Balance as at March 31, 2024

7.7

366.2

1.9 |

375.9

The ahove statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 104767W
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TCTOURS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AH amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

General Information

TC Tours Limited (CIN-US3040MH1689PLC054761) (the "Company™) was incorporated in the state of Maharashtra on December 26, 1989 under the Companies Act, 1956. It's main object is
to inter-alia to carry on the trades or business of general passengers, tourists and transport agents and contraciors, The Company {s a 100% subsidiary of Thomas Ceok {India) Limited,

1 Material Accounting Policies

1.1

1.3

1.4

(a)

®)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of

Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act as amended from time to time that are notified and effective as at March 31, 2024, In accordance with proviso of the Rule 4A of Companies Accounting
Rules, 2014, the terms used in these financial statements are in accordance with the definitions and other requirements specified in the applicable Accounting Standards.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaling cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule ITI to the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between the rendering of services and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months forthe purpose of current-non current classification of assets and Liabilities.

Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for defined benefit plans & Investments measured at fair value,

Foreign cinrency translation and transactions

Functional and presentation currency
A Company’s functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity

primarily generates and expends cash.

Presentation currency is the currency in which the financial statements are presented, These financial statermnents are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
{i) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

(i} Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non - monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a forelgn currency ave reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary agsets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
nsing the exchange rates at the date when 1he fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilitles carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair

value gain or loss,

All monetary ilems denominated in foreign currency are restated at Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAT] rates and the exchange varlations arlsing out of
setilement / conversion at the FEDAT rates are recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss,

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured based on fransaction price, which is the consideration paid for services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to
custorners in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expecls Lo receive in exchange for those services. Revenue from rendering of services is net of

Indirect taxes and discounts.

{a) Income from operations
The Company earns revenue from {ravel and related services and human resource services,
(1) Travel and related services
Tt comprises of leisure tours packages within India and ouiside India, Revenue on leisure tours/holiday packages are recognized on the completion of the
performance ohligation which is on the date of departure of the tour.

Tt also includes income from the sale of airline tickets which is recognized, as an agent, on the basis of net commission earned, at the ime of issnance of
tickels, as the Company does nol assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket to the eusiomer, Performance
linked bonuses from airlines/global distribution syslems ('GDSs') ave recognized as and when the performance obligations under the sehemes are achieved.

(b) Contract balances
(i} Conlract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If the Company performs by rendering services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recogniged for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(i) Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer servicas to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from thie customer, I a enstorner
pays consideration before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract ability 1s recognised when the payment iz made. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other Income
Inierest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outslanding and the rate applicable, Dividend income is recognized when the right

1o recelve i is established.



TC TOURS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

1.5

1.6

Taxes on Income
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjnsted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to nnused tax losses.

Incorne tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to ifems
recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ or direetly in equity, respectively.

Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rales enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustments to
tax payable in respect of previous years. Interest income/expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax are included in current tax expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes
provisions where appropriaie on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company offsets the current tax assets as against the liability for
provision for tax.

Deferred Tax;

Deferred income tax is recognised usitg the balance sheet approach, Deferred income tax assets and linbilities are recognised for deductible and iaxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an
assat or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither aceounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred Taxes on itemns classified under Other Comprehensive Income ('OCT) has been recognised
in OCI.

The carrying amount of deferred income lax agsets is reviewed at ench reporting date and réduced to the extent that it is no Jonger probable that sufficient taxzble profit will
he available to allow all or part of the daferred income tax asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expecled
to apply to texable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be veceived or seitled, Deferred tax assets and labilitles are offset when they
relate to ineome taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends 1o settle its current tax assels and labilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets inelude Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give fulure economie benefits in the form of
availability of set off against future income tax Hability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferved tax asset in the balance sheet when the assel can be measured reliably
and it is probable that the future economie beuefit associated with the asset will be realiged.

Leases
The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, vehicles and office equipment's, The company assesses whether a contract contains & lease, al
inception of a contract, A contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration,

To assess whether a contract conveys the tight to control the use of an ideitified asset, the company assesses whether:
(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(2) the company has substantially all ¢f the economic benefits from use of the assel through the period of the lease and
(3) the company has the right Lo diveel the use of the asset.”

At the date of commencement of the Jease, the company recognizos a “Right of Use” (“ROU”) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is
a lessee, except for leases with a term of lwelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low valte leases, the company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a siraight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, whick comprises the initial amount of the leass liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease fneentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less dccumulated depreciation apd
impairment losses if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability,

RQU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and usefid life of the underlying asset.

The lease lability is inltially measured at amertized cost at the prosent value of the future lease payments, The lease payments are discounted using the interest rale implicit
in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease lHabilitles are remeasnred witlt a
corresponding adjustiment to the related right of use asset if the company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a terniination option,

The company as a lessor
Leuses for which the company is a lesscr is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the leage transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee, 1he contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases arve classified as operating leases.
For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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L7

8

(a)

M)

Employee Benefits
Long-tetrn Employee Benefits

(i) Defilied Contribution Plans
The Company has Defined Contribution Plan for post employment benefits in the form of Provident Fund which is Government administered provident fund, Under such

Defined Contribution Plan, the Company has no forther obligation beyond making the contributions, The Company's contributions to Defined Coniribution Plan is charged
to 1he Siatement of Profit and Loss as ineurred.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Cratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vesied employees at retiremient, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of employment, The Company's liahflity is actuarially determined ( using the Projected Unit Credit method ) at the end of each year, Re-
measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the assel ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised imumediately in other comprehensive income (OCT).

Short-term Prmployee Benefit
As per the leave policy of the Company, employees are entitled to avail 36 days of annual leave during a calender year. Any carry forward or encashment of the same is not
allowed and all unutilised leaves necessarily lapse at the end of the calender year. Provision on actual basis is created for proportionate unutilised leaves as at year end.

Impairment of Assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired
if abjective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the assel, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

Ohjective evidence that financial assels are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debior, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the
Company would not otherwise consider, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of an active market for a security, The entity considers
evidence of impairment for receivables for each specific asset. All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured al amortized cost is calenlated as the difference hetween its carrying amount and the preseat value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss and are reflected as an allowance
account against receivables, Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through stalement of profit and loss.

The cumnulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal
repayment and amortization, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in statement of profit and loss. Changes in impairment provisions
atiributable to time value are reflected as a component of interest ncome,

Carrying amount of tangible assets, intansible assets and investments in subsidiaries (which are carried at cost) are tested for impairment whenever evenis or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in vse.

In assessing vatue in use, the estimated fture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asgessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In delermining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inlo account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets ave grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately Identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or Company's assets (cash-generaling units). Non- fnancial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the inpairment at the end of each reporting period )
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1.9

2,0

(a)

Provisions and contingent liahilities

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation {(legal or constructive) as a resull of a pasl event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefite will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate
of the expendiiure required to settte the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date, Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses, A provisicn is recognized if
the likelihcod of an cutflow with respeet 1o any one item included in the same class of obligations {s more probable than not. Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure require to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific {o the liability.

Contingent labilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confitiued only by the oceurrence or non-
occurrence of one or tnore uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an cutflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount eannot be made.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques/drafis on hand, remitiances fn transit, balances
with bank held in current aceount, demand deposits with maturities of three months or less, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shert-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convert{ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and fornt an integral part of an entity's cash management, and are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current lHabilities in the balance sheat,

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognized initially at fafr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment,
Although the Company recognises the revenue relating to commission on net and agent basis, the trade receivables end trade payables are recogiised on the gross value of

services rendered and services received respectively.

Financtal Instruments

Financial assets

{i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than irade receivables are initially
recognised at fair value. Transactfon costs are expensed in the Statement of Profil and Loss, expeet for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, where transaction
costs are adjusted in the amortised cost of the asset,

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value
through profit or loss {FVTPLY) on the basis of:

(i) the antity’s business model for managing the financial agsets and

(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the firancial assel,

(a) Measured at amortised cost : Financial assets which have contraciual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and is
held within a business model with the objective of holding the assets 1o eollect contractual cash flows, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR’Y method, less impairment. Amertised cost is caleulated by 1aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosis that are an
integral part of the EIR. The BIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, gain or loss, if any, ig recognised in Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss.

(bYMeasured at fair value through other comprehensive income : Financial assets which have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal cutstanding and is held within a business model whose ohjective is achieved by both collecting contractual eash flows and selling financial assets, is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive incoma, Tt is subseguently measured at fair value wilh unrealised gains or logses recognised in the other comprehensive
income {*OCT"), except for interest income which is recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Leoss using the EIR method. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

() Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not measured al either amortised cost or FVQCL, is measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as ‘other income’ in 1he Statement of Profit and Loss.

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading ave measured
al FVTPL, For all othier equity instruments, the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL, The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument hasis. Fair valze changes on an equity instrument shall be recognised as *other income’ in the Statemenl of Profit and Loss
unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCT, Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equily instrument measured at FVOCI are recognised
in OCL Amounis recognised in OCT are not subsequently reclassified to the Stalement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investnients in equity instruments ave
recognised as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the company’s right to receive payments is establishes,

(iii) Derecognition

The Company derecognises & financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or il iransfers the contractual rights 1o reccive the
cash flows from the asset On transfer of the financial asset, the Company evaluates if and to whal exlent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated lability, The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measurcd on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Conipany has retained.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

(b) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabflities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financiel Lialilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial labilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement:
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using EIR method, Finaneial labilitles carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition:

A finaneial Lability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated ag
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Lability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or

loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsat and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where thete is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liaility simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the novmal course of business and in the event of default, insclveney or bankruptey of the Campary or the counterparty.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable 1o the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduetion, net of tax, from the

proceeds,

Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the diseretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting

period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighied average number of equity shares
outslanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the year after deducting preference dividends and
any attributable tax thereto for the year, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding duriug the year and for all years presented is adjusted for events, such as
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resotrees, For the purpose of caleulating dituted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Current versus non-current classification

The Comipany presents its assets and liabilitles in the Balance Sheet based on ewrrent / non-current classification. An asset is treated as current if it is :a} expected to be
realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle; b) held primarily for the purpose of trading; ¢) expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period; ormonths after the reporting period Al other assets ave classified as nen-current.A liability is current when : a) it is expected to be setiled in normal
operating cycle; b it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or ¢) there {s no unconditional
right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting peried. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are clasgified as non-current on net basis. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating eycle.

Rounding of amounts
All amaounts disclosed in the finaneial statements and notes have becn rounded off 1o 1he nearest lakhs or decimals therecf as per the requirement of schedule ITT (division

11), unless otherwise stated,

2 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements:
The preparation of Standalone Financial Information requires the use of acecunting estimates which, by definilion, will seldom equat the actual results, This note provides an overview of
the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of ftems which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to he
different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is inctuded in relevant notes together wilh information about the basis of
calenlation for each affected line jtem in the Standalone Financial Information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in

any future periods affected.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation (Refer note 10) involves crilical estimates and judgements,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the Company and thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Note g(a) - Right of Use Assets

Particulars Building Total
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 14.2 14.2
Additions 1.4 1.4
Disposals/Transfer -
Closing Balance as at 31st Marh 2024 15.6 i5.6
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 12.2 12,2
Depreciation 2.4 2,4
Disposals/Transfer - -
Closing Balance as at g1st March 2024 14.6 14.6
Net earrying amount as at 31st March 2024 1.0 1.0
Particulars Building Total
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2022 14.9 14.9
Additions - -
Disposals/Transfer (0.7 (0.7}
Closing Balance ag at 315t March 2023 14.2 14.2
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2022 9.2 9.2
Depreciation 3.4 3.4
Disposals/Transfer (0.4) {0.4)
Closing Balance as at 315t March 2023 12.2 12,2
2.0 2.0

Net carrying amount as at 31st March 2o23
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Note 3(b): Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The balance comprises of temporary differences attributable to:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2023
2024
Deferrved Tax Assets
Carry forward of losses (0.0) (0.0)
On provisions allowable for tax purpese when paid 7.0 5.9
On Provision for Doubtful Advances 5.7 10.2
Other items (ROU) (0.0} 0,1
Net Deferred Tax Assets 13.6 16.2
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets
On provisions - . .
. On Provigion for Other items Carry Forward of

4 Total

Particulars allowable for ta’f Doubtful Advances (ROU) Losses ota
purpose when paid
As at March 31, 2023 5.9 10.2 0.1 (0.0) 16.2
charged/(credited)
-to profit or loss 0.7 (4.5) (o.1) (4.0}
-to other comprehensive income 1.3 - - - 1.
Asg at March 31, 2024 7.9 5.7 (0.0} (0.0) 15.6
Note 4: Current Tax Assets
Particular As at March 31, As at
s 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening Balance 98.0 28.8
Less: Current Tax payable for the vear {51.0) (12.0)
Add: Taxes Paid 8.1 812
Closing Balances - Current Tax Asset/(Liabilities) 55+ 98.0
Disclosed as:
Non current tax assets (as per balance sheet) 106.1 110.0
Current tax liability (as per balance sheet) L0 12,0

# Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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Note 5: Financial Assels

5{a)Investments

Particulars

Non-current

Current

Non-current

Current

Mar 31, 2024

Mar 31, 2024

Mar 31, 2023

Mar 33, 2023

Unquoted - In associates at cost

100/~ each of Traveljunkie Solutiong Private Limited
[Refer Note 28]

5020 (Previous year: 5020) fully paid up 0.0001%Convertible Cummulative Preference Shares of INR

40.0

40.0

Less: Provision for Investment Impairment

(40.0)

(40.0)

Sub total

Quoted - Investment in mutual funds fair valued through Profit and Loss account

Nil

Total

| Apsregate amovnt of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

46.0

40.0

|Aggregate market value of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment In the value of investiaents

(40.0)

(40.0)

5(b)Trade receivables

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

Trade receivables

1,010.7

922.3

Lesg: Allowance for doubtfu] debts

(7.4

(25.3)

Tatal recievables

1,003.3

897.0

Break up of Security Details

Ungecured, considered good

1,003.3

896.9

Unseeured, considered Doubtful

7.4

253

Total

1,010.7

923.2

Lesgt Allowance for doubtful debts

(7.4)

(25.3)

Total Trade Recievables

1,003.3

306.8

Agpeing for trade receivables outstanding as at March £

1, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6
monihs

6 months -
1year

1-2 378,

2.3 YTS.

More than 3 yrs.

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good

934.5

51.3

10.4

7.1

1,003.3

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Recevables — redit impaired

7.4

74

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase In eredit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

{vii) Unbilled revenue

Total

934.5

51.3

10.4

14.5

1,010,7

Less: Allowances for Expected Credit Loss i

7.4

7.4

Net Trade Receivables

934.5 |

513 |

16,4 |

7.1

1,003.3

Trade receivables « Unbilled

1,003.3

Ageing for tradc receivables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months -
1year

1-2 YT'5.

2-3 yrs.

More than 3 yrs.

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good

875.1

13.4

8.4

806.9

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables-Which have significant
inerease in eredil risk -

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivahles -~ credit impaired

25.3

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables ~ which have sipnificant
increase In credit risk

(vi} Disputed Trade Receivalbles — credit impalred

(vii) Unbilled revenue

Total

922.2

Less: Allowances for Expected Credit Loss

25.3

Net Trade Receivables

896.9

Trade receivables - Unbilled

£906.9
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5{c) Cash and cash equivalents

TR As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Balances with banks:

In current accounts 132.0 2.4
Fixed Deposits with original maturity of less than three 80,0 80,0
months

Cagh in hand 0.9 3.3
Total Cash and cash equivalents 212.9 85.7
5(cd) Loans

- . Ag at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Loans to Related Parties 15.0 15,0
Legs: Provigion for Doubtful Loans and Advances (15.0) (i5.0)
Tolal Loans - b

..E[e) Other financial Assets
Particulars Non-current Current Non-current Current
Mar 31, 2024 | Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023 Mar g1, 2023

Accrued Reventie - 236.6 . 159.1
Interast Receivaples from Related Parties - 2,2 - 2.4
Less: Provision for Doubtful Loans & Advances (Interest) - {2.2) - (2.2)
Sub total - - - o2
Other Recelvables from Related Parties - 0.3 - -
Total Other Financial Assets - 236.9 - 159.2
Note 6: Other Current Assets

: As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars oz 2022
Advanee to Suppliers
Considered good 805.4 2,000.6
Considered Doubtful 79.5 54.
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (75.5) (54.9)
Sub total 805.4 2,000.6
Advance to Emplovees
Considered good 0.1 1.3
Considered Doubtful 0,0 0.0
Less: Allowanee for doubtiul debts {0.0) (0.0}
Sub total 0.1 1.1
Prepaid expenses 4.5 2.5
Balanees with Governmen! authoriiies 362.3 1209
Total 1,172,1 2,143.6

I
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Note 7: Equity Share Capital

Equity Share capital

Particulars No of ?V]Ilril;-es (In Amount
JAUTHORISED

As at April 1, 2022 3.0 30.0

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2023 3.0 30.0

Increase during the year - -

As at March 31, 2024 3.0 30.0

(i) Movement in Equity Share Capital during the Year

No of Shares {(In

Particulars Amount

Mn)
As at April 1, 2022 3.0 30.0
Add; No of Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 3.0 30.0
Add: No of Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 3.0 30.0

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares at a par value of INR 10/- per share. Each shareholder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their share holding,

(iii) Shares held by Holding Company

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars
No of Shares (In. Amount No of Shares (In Amount
Mn) Mn)
Equity Shares
Thomas ¢ook (India} Limted and its Nominees 3.0 30.0 3.0 30.0

(iv) Shareholding Pattern (Shareholders holding 5% or more shares in the Company)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Category of Sharcholder Thar N
gory No of shares (In % of Holding No of shares (In % of Holding
Mn) Mn)
Equity Shares
Thomas cool (India) Limted and its Nominees 3.0 100.0% 3.0 100.0%
(v} Shares hcld by promoters at the end of the year
As at Mareh 31, 2024
~ —~
Name of Promoter No of shares (In % of Holding % Change during
Mn) the year
Ecuity Shares
Thomas cook (India} Limted and its Nominees 3.0 100.0% -
As at March 31,2023
o - Lt} ¥’ e 3
Name of Promoter No of shares (In % of Holding % Ch‘angc during
M) the year
Equily Shares
Thomas cook (India) Limted and its Nominees 3.0 100.0% -
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Note 8: Reserves and surplus

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 20235
Retained Earnings 366.2 208.4
ESOP Reserve 7.7 7.7
Other Comprehensive Income 1.9 4.5
Total reserves and surplus 375.9 220.6
Retained Earnings
Particulars As at Mareh 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 208.4 108.8
Net Profit for the year 157.8 99.6
Closing Balance 306.2 208.4
ESOP Reserve
Particulars Ag at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 7.7 7.7
Capital Contribution towards ESOP Expenses - -
Closing Balance 7.7 707

ESOP Reserve

ESOP Reserve has been created for ESOPs issued by the group company - Thomas Cook (India) Limited to the employees of the company.

Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Opening Balance 4.5 5.3

Remeasurements of post-emplovement benefit obligtion, net of tax {2.6) {0.8)

Closing Balance 1.9 4.5

Note 9: Non Current Borrowings

Particulars Maturity Date / Coupon/ As at March 31, As at March 31,
Terms Interest Rate 2024 2023

ECLGS Loan* Refer Note below 9.60% 515.4 625.9

Total Borrowing (Non-Current) 515.4 625.9

Assets pledged as a seeurity

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Financial Assels
Trade receivables 1,003.3 8906.9
Cash and cash equivalents 212.9 85.7
Other financial assets 236.9 159.2
Other current assets 1,172,1 2,143.7
Total eurrent assets pledged as security 2,625.2 3,285.5
Movable Property - -
Total Movable Property pledged as security - -
Total assets pledged as security 2,625.2 3,285.5

*Refer Note t1a, INR 116,80 million is current portion of total 632.2 million ECLGS loan,
Loan amounting to Rs, 632.2 million (net of processing fees/stamp duty) from HDFC Bank Limited is secured by way of second ranking charge
over existing primary and collateral secutities including mortgages created in the favour of bank and security created over the assets of the
borrower purchased out of this facility. The applicable rate of interest as on balance sheet date is 9.00% p.a, However, the applicable interest rate
shall change in accordance with every reset/change of the reference rate / change of reference rate or change of spread hy the bank, Duration of
the lozn ia 72 month. There will be moratorium period of 24 month and 48 monthly instalment after moratorium period. Interest to be serviced
on monthly basis.
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Note 10; Employee Benefit Obligations

. . As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Non Current Current Total Non Current Current Total
Leave Entitlement - LC 1.0 - 11 1.1
Gratuity 10.2 - 10.2 9.4 - .4
Employee Benefit Payables - 15.4 15.4 - 6.6 6.6
Total 10.2 16.4 26.6 9.4 7.7 17.1

(i)Leave Obligations - Leave Entitlement
The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leave.

The amount of the provision of INR 1.0 (31 March 2023 - INR 1.1} is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right te defer setflement for any of these
obligations. The following amounts reflect leave that is expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months.

Particulars

As at March
31, 2024

As at March
a1, 2023

Cuarrent leave obligations expected to be settled within next 12 months

1.0

1.1

(ii} Post Employment Obligations
Gratuity

The Company provides for grainity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement,/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of

years of service,

(iii) Defined contribution Plans

The Company alse has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount eontributed and it has no farther eontractual
nor any constructive cbligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 4.2 mn {31 Mareh 2023 - INR 4.5 me).

Balance Sheet Amounts - Gratuity

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit cbligation over the year are as follows:

Particulars l’l'esel_lt va:llue Fair value of Net amount
of obligation plan assets
April 1, 2oz 12.5 5.4 e
Current service cost 14 - 1.4
Interest expense/(income) 0.8 0.5 0.3
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 2.2 o5 1.7
Remeasurerhents
Return on plan assets, excluding amonnt included in interest
expense/(income) . - 0.5 {0.5)
{Gain )/loss from change in demographic agsumptions - -
{Gain )/loss from change in financigl assumptions (0.5} {0.5)
Experience (gains)/losses 1.6 - 1.6
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 1.1 0.5 0.6
Employer contributions - 0.1 (0.1}
Benefit payments (1.8) (1.8) -
1iabilities assumed / {settled)* (2.9) (z.9) -
March 31, 2023 11,1 1.8 9.3
Particulars Prese:‘lt v:}lue Fair value of Net amount
of ebligation plan assets

April 1, zo23 111 .8 0.3
Current service cost 13 - 1.3
Interest expense/{income) 0.8 0.2 0.5
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 2.1 0,2 1.9
Reneasuremeris
Relurn on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
oxpense/ (income) - 0.C (0.0)
{Gain }/loss from change in demographic agsumptions 0.3 0.3
{Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions c.2 0.2
Experience (gains)/losses 1Yy - L7
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 2.2 0.0 2.0
Employer contributions - 0.2 (0.2}
Benefit payments (5.0) (2.0} -
Liabilities assnmed / (settled)* - 2.9 (2.9)
March 31, 2024 12.4 2.2 10,2
*On Account of business inter group transfer
The net lability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

. Ag at March | As at March
Parvticulars

31, 2024 31, soug

Pregent value of funded cbligations 12,4 iLg
Fair value of plan assets 2.2 1,8
Deficit of funded plan 10.3 9.4
Unfunded plang - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 10,3 0.4
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Sigrmificani estimates: Actuarial assumpiions ard sensitivity
The significant actuarial assmnptions wera as follows:

Particulars As at Mareh 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

Digcount rate 7.20% 7.40%

Salary growth rate 5.00% 6.00%

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars glljal-lfe in assumptions Increase bl assumptions Decrease in agsumptions
a1 2:0‘5214 March 31,2023 | March 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023 | March 31,2024 | March 51,2023
31
Discount rate 50 basis point] 50 basis point: -3.35% -4.07% 3.57% 4.36%
Salary growth rate 5 basis point| 50 basis peint] 3.59% 4.40% ~3,40% -4.14%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while helding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When celonlating the sensitivity of the defined beuefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation. caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined henefit liability recognised in the balance
sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior year.

(v) Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plang, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

) Asset volatility- The plan labilities are calenlated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields, if the plan assets underperform this yleld, this will create a deficit, Further
any Decrease in the bond yields will increase the plan liabilities,

b) Salary growth & Demegraphic assumptions- The plan liabilities are caleulated using the salary escalation and demographic assumptions which is sponsgred by the Company and
henee it underwrites ali the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is & risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on
underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are Inmpsum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity
risks.

(vi) Defined heneiit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.91 years (2023 - 8.42 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted graiuity is as follows:

Particulars Lessthana Between 1-2 | Betweenz2-5 | .. 5 years Total
year years years

Post Employment Obligations as at March 31, 2024 2.0 1.4 4.2 15.3 22,

Post Employment Obligations as at March 51, 2023 1.9 0.9 2.8 18.6 24.5
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11{a) Current Borrowings

. Matority Terms of Coupon/ As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars Date Payment Interest Rate 2024 2023
Unsecured
Bank Overdrafts Payable on Demand 6.70% t0 10.70% 7.5 61.0
Loans and advances from related parties Payable on Demand - -
ECLGS Loan 9.00% 116.8 30.0

124.3 100.0

Note 11(b): Trade Payables

As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Trade Payables
-Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.3 0.1
-Dues of creditors otheyr than micro 1,569.7 2,366.3
enterprises and small enterprises
Total Trade Payables 1,589.0 2,366.4
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yI's. 2-3 YIS, More than 3 yrs [ Unbilled dues Total
(i) MBME - - - - - 19.5 19.3
(ii} Others 1,026.2 346.8 20.5 - 164.2 1,500.7
(iii} Disputed dues- MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -
Total 1,026.2 349.8 29.5 - 183.5 1,589.0
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1y, [1-2 yrs. 2-3 VI'S. More than 3 yrs |Unbilled dues  |Total
{i) MEME 0.1 - - - - 0.1
{ii) Others 2,159.8 35.6 8.3 - 83.6 2,366.3
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -
Total 2,159.9 35.0 87.3 - 83.6 2,366.4

Note: Refer Note 25 for dislosure on Micro, Small and Medhum Enterprises,

Note 11(c): Other Financial Liablities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Non-Current

Current

Non~-Current

Current

Other Payables to Related Parties

0.7

0.0

Total Other Financial Liablities

0.7

0.0

Note 12: Other Current Liabilities

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Income Received In Advance 1.1 -
Statutory Dues 30.8 39.3
Advance from Customers - -
Total 319 39.3
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Note 13: Revenue from Operations

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sale of Services

- Travel and Related Services 3,220.8 3,495.0
Total 3,220.8 3,495.0
Also refer note 27 for IND AS 115 disclosiire
Note i4: Other Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest Income on Bank Deposits 5.0 2,6
Interest Income on Loan Given - -
Interest on Income tax refund 3.9 -
Profit on disposal of asset - -
Claims Written back 2.0 2.0
PGSI Casghback Income 0.1 3.5
‘|Miscellaneous Income 5.7 1.9
Total 18.5 10.0
Note 15: Employee Benefii Expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries Wages and Bonug 120.5 120.1
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 4.4 4.5
Gratuity (Refer note 10) 1.8 1.9
ESOP Expense - -
ESOP stock option Expense - -
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.4 5.3
Total 127.1 131.8
Note 16; Finance Costs

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Marchy31, 2024 Marchy31, 2023
Interest on Borrowing® 60.7 41.8
Other Finance Charges 10.6 11.1
PGSI Bank Charges 10.9 7.5
Interest on loan - 0.1
Interest on Lease liabilty 0.2 0.4

Total 82.4 60,7
Notes: Interest on borrowing includes Bank Overdraft and ECLGS loan.
Note 17: Other Expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rent {Refer note 26) 14,2 12,3
Electricity - -
Repairs and Maintenance 24.7 25.6
Rates and Taxes 0.2 1.0
Security Services 6.8 6.8
Travelling Expenses 2.5 1.3
Legal and Professional Charges # 65.4 53.0
Printing, Stationery and Communication Cost 3.5 3.6
Bad Debt / Advances written off 48.0 36.1
Provisions for doubtful debts and Advances (net) (17.9) 2.1
Advertisment Expenses 0.6 0.6
CSR Expenses {Refer note below "b") - -
Provision for other than temperary diminution in long-term investments and loans - -
(including interest)
Miscellanecus Expenses 8.6 8.7

Total 156.6 1511

# Legal and Professional charges fnclude auditers renuumeration and Group Resource Cost.

e
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(a}: Details of payments to auditors

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
Mazrch 31, 2023

Payment to auditors

As auditor:

-Statutory Audit

0.6

0.6

-Tax Audit

0.2

0.2

In cther capacities

-Re-imbursement of expenses

Total payments to auditors

0.8

0.8

{b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

NA

NA

() Amount spent and paid during the year on

NA

NA

(1) Eradicating Hunger, Poverty & Malnutrition, Promoting Health-Care

Including Preventive Health-Care And Sanitation

Note 18! Income Tax Expense

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year

51.0

12.0

Adjustments for current tax of pricr pericds

Total current tax expense

51.0

12.0

Deferred tax

inerease in deferred tax assets

2,1

21.5

Total deferred tax credit

2.1

21.5

Income tax expense

531

33-5

(b) The reconciliation of tax expense and the acecounting profit multiplied

by India's tax rate :

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense

210.9

133.1

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (PY - 25.168%)

53.1

33:0

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in ealculating taxable
income:

Interest on shortfall of advance tax

CSR Expenditure

Buffer tax created

Dividend incomne

See 14A Disallowance

On account of rate difference as compared to previous year

Other items

Income tax expense
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Note 19: Fair value measurements

Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other financiel assets, trade. payables and other financial labilities have been carried at amortised cost. The carrying
amounts of these finaneial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature. Hence, no fair value disclosures
/ information for these financial assets and financial Habilities has been disclosed since the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value,

Note 20: Rinancial risk management

(i) Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company's primary risk management focus is to
minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial perforimance. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to
identify and enalyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the policies and
processes, Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regulatly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activitiés, The
Beard of Directors and the management is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
ereditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants eredit terms in the normal course of business, The Company establishes an allowance for payments that are
365 days past due as it represents its estimate of expected credit loss in respeet of trade and other receivebles, The Company does not have any financial assets, other

than receivables from group entities, that are 365 days past due but not impaired.

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers including group entities is as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Past due 1—90 days 934.5 848.3
Past due 91-180 days - 26,0
Past due 180-365 days 51.3 -
Past due > 365 days 24.9 47.1
1,010.7 022.3

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance Amount
Loss allowance on March 31, 2a22 (23.3)
Changes in loss allowance (2.06)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 (25.3)
Changes in loss allowance 17.9
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 (7.4)

Expected credit loss assessment for enstomers as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporling period ave reviewed by the Company to determine incnrred and expected credit losses, As Company's
customer is mainly its holding company and few corporate customers (for whom based on information available in the public domain about there credibility/financial
performance no impairment indicator exist) hence impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant eredit losses, Considering the duration of the operations
and given that the macro economic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend
to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more then 20 days are still eollectible in full, based on historical payment

behavior and extensive analysis of customer eredit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and ecash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions of INR 212.9 million and INR 85.7 million as at March 31, 2024 and
Mareh 31, 2023 respectively. The credit worthiness of such banks and finaneial institutions is evaluated by the management on an angoing basis and is considered to be

good.

Git) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due, The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as
far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without ineurring unacceptable

losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Company had working capital of INR 846,31 as at March 31, 2024 and INR 757.55 as at March 31, 2023.

e
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Exposure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiseounted, and include estimated

interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Carrying Total 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
amount years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,560.7 1,560.7 1,569.7 - - -

Other finaneial liabilities 0.7 0.7 0.7 - - -

Total 1,570.4 1,570.4 1,570.4 - - -

Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2023 Carrying Total 1year 1-2 years 2-5years | Morethan s
amount years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade payableg 2,366.,3 2,366.3 2,366.3 - - -

Other financial linbilities 0.0 - - - - -

Total 2,566.4 2,366.3 2,366.3 - - -

(iv) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may restlt from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk-sensitive finaneial instruments, all foreign currency receivalles and payables and all short term and long-term debt. The Company is not
exposed to any market risk-sensitive financial instruments, foreign curreny risk and interest rate risk since it does not have any investments in securities, foreign
curreney recefvables and payables or delxts.

Note 21; Capital management

The Compary’s objective for Capital management is to maximise shareholder's value and support the strategie objectives of the Company. The Company determines the
capital requirements based on its financial performance, operating and leng term investment plans. The funding requirements are met through operating cash flows.

/\._V
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Note 22; Related Party Transactions

(a) Parent Entities:
The Company is controlled by the following entities:

Place of Business/

Ownership Interest (%)

Name Relationship Country ef As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Incorporation 2024 2023

Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited Ultimate Holding Canada - -

Thomas Cook {(India) Limited, India Parent entity India 100% 100%

(b) Names of related parties and related party relationship:

Place of Business/

Name of Entity Relationship Country of
Incorporation

Fairfax Finaneial Holdings Limited Cltimate Holding Canada
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Parent entity India
SOTC Travel Limited Fellow Subsidiary India
Travel Corporation (India) Limited Fellow Subsidiary India
Sterling Holidays Resort Group Fellow Subgsidiary India
Brijesh Mcdi KMP of Holding Company India

(c) Key Management personnel

Particulars

Mr. Debasis Nandy

Mr. R.R. Kenkare

Mur. Abraham Alapatt

Ma. Mona Cheriyan

{d) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Nature of transaction

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

(i) Holding Company

Sale of Services

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 2,268.7 2,440.0
Adr Ticket Transactions®*
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 18,474.9 15,515.7
Facilities and Support Services Availed
Thomas Cook {India) Limited 77.8 40.4
Corporate Gurantee fees
Thomas Cook {India) Limited 0.1 0.2
Comimission expense
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 364.4 302.9
Loan Taken
Thomas Cook (India) Limited . - 300.0
Loan Repayment by related party
Thomas Cook (India) Limited - 300.0
Interest Expense on loan taken
Thomas Cook (India) Limited - 0.1

*Only commission income on Atr Ticket transactions Is part of the Revenue from Operation,
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(i1) Fellow subsidiaries

Sale of Services

SOTC Travel Limited

6009.4 778.7

Comunission expense

SOTC Travel Limited

48.4 18.5

Facilities and Services Availed

Sterling Holidays Resort Group

7.0 2.5

Transaction with Other Parties

Travel Services Availed

Brijesh Modi

0.3.

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the re

(e) OQutstanding balances arising from sale and purchase of goods and services

porting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Trade Payables
Thomas Cock (India) Limited 112.0 815
SOTC Travel Limited 4.6 16.3
Sterling Holidays Resort Group {2.0) 2.8
Travel Corporation (India) Limited 23.5 3.6
QOther Payables
Thomas Cook (Tndia) Limited 0.7 12,0
SOTC Travel Limited - 1,30
Total payables to related parties 169,1 117.5
Particulavs March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables
Thomas Cook {India) Limitad 862.4 888.4
SOTC Travel Limited 72.6 51.7
Other Receivables
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 0.2 -
Borderless Travel Services Ltd 0.1 -
Total receivables from relaled parties 935.2 040.1
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Note 23: Earnings Per Share

Particulars

For the year ended March

For the year ended

31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders 157.8 99.6
Weighted average number of cutstanding shares 3.0 3.0
(a) Basic earnings per share .
Attributable to the equity holder of the company 52.6 352
{b} Diluied earnings per share
Attributable to the equity holder of the company 52,60 B3 2
(c) Reconciliation of ecarnings used in caleulating earnings per share
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic earnings per share 52.6 ZE 2.
Profis atiributable to the equity holders of the company 157.8 99.6
used in calculating basic earnings per share
Profits attributable to the equity holders of the company 157.8 99.6

used in calculating diluted earnings per share

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as th

e denominator

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the

denominator in caleulating basic earning per share 3.0 3.0
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential

equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating

diluted earning per share 3.0 3.0
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Note 24: Leases

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024;

Particulars Amount

Balance as at March 51, 2023 2.5
Interest on lease liabilities 0.2
Addition during the year 1.4
Payment of lease liabilities (3.0}
Balance at the end of the year 1.1

Classification as
Non current 0.7
Current 0.4

Below are the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars Amount

Less than one year 0.4
Cne to Five years 0.7]
More than Five year -

Rental expense recognised for short-term leases and low value leases for the 14.2
yvear ended March 31,2024
Interest on Lease Liability 0.2
Depreciation on ROU Assets 2.4

Note 25: Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a. The amounts remaining unpaid to Micro and Small Suppliers as at the end of the year.
-- Principal 19.3
-~ Interest
b. Interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the micro, small and medium enterprises -
development act 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day

0.1

¢ Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified under Micro,
small and medium enterprises act, 2000

d. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
e. Interest remaining due and payable even in the suceeding years, until such date when the interest -
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (as per the 19.3 0.1
intimation received from vendors i

Note 26: Segment Information

Based on the "management approach” as defined in Tnd AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), comprises of Director and Senjor management,
evaluates the Compaps? 'perfnrmance and zewews the ‘segment business. The Company is pnmauly engaged in a smgle segment business of "Travel related
services', ;
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27 - IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’:

As per Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be

entitled in exchange for services to a customer,

i) Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes, in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Travel and Related Services 3,220.8 3,495.0
3,220.8 3:495.0
ii) Disaggregate Revenue
The following table presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of revenue stream and by geography:
Revenue based on geography
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
India 2,991.9 3:359.7
Cverseas 228,09 135.3
3,220.8 3.495.0
Revenue based on product and services
Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Travel and Related Services 3,220.8 3,405.0
3,220.8 3.495.0

Note 28; Investment made in Traveljunkie Solutions Private Limited:
The Company Las investment of INR 400 Lakhs in Traveljunkie Solutions Private Limited ("Travellunkie") classified as Associate. Due to adverse business
conditions, the recovery of invested amount and advances provided to the associate is doubtful and this has resulted in an impairment provision af Rs, 572.1Jakhs

recorded in the income statement for the year ended March 31, 2021,

Note 29;

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or an behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any
party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

g




TCTOURS LIMITED
Notes 1o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30; Key Financial Ratios

Financial performance ratios Numerator Denominator 2023-24 2022-23 % Change
Performance Ratios
Net Profit ratio (in 98) (i) ‘Profit after tax Revenue from operations 4.0% 2.8% 72%)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) (il) |Revenue from operations Closing warking capital 4.0 4.6 -14%
Return on Capital Employed (in %) (i) Profit before interest and tax Closing capital eaployed 32.5% 22.4% 44%
Return on Equity ratio (in %) Profit after tax Closing shareholder's equity 38.9% 30.7% -2%
Return on Investment Ineome Generated from invested Average invested funds in market NA NA
funds
Debt Service Coverage ratio {in times) (1) | Profit before interest, tax and , Cloging Debt Service 0.5 0.3 71%
Depreciation and amortisation
Leverage Ratios
Debt- Equity Ratio (in Times) (iii) Debt consists of horrowings and leage | Total Equity L6 2.9 -46%
labilities
Liquidity Ratios
Cwirent ratio {in times) Total Current Assets ‘T'otal Current Liabilities 1.4 1.3 11%
Activity Ratio
Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Closing inventory NA NA NA
Trade Recelvable Turnover Ratio (iv) Revenue from operations Average current trade receivables 8.4 5.0 -33%|
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Cosl of goods sold Average frade payable 1.4 1.9 -30%)

Reason for Variance

Due to improventent in the overall business margin resulted in increase in profits post compared to last year.
Dacrease in Revenue resulled decrease in Net Capital Turnover Ratio from 4.6 to 4.0.

i Debt Equity Ratlo decrease due to repayinent of BCLGS loan during the year.

Decrease in Revenue resulted decrease in Trade Receivable Turnover Ratlo from 5.0 10 3.4




TC TOURS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Note : 31 Contingent liabilities
Contingent Liabilities and Conunitments {to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities March 31, 2024 March g1, zozg
b. Disputed GST Demands 18,11,585 -

a) It is not practicallz for the company to estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceadings.
b) The company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent Habilities.

Note : 32 Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as abilities is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Estimated value of cortracts on capital account remaining to be executed -

Note g3: Additional Regulatory Information detailed in clause 61 of General Instructicns given in Part 1 of Division II of the Schedule II1 to the Companies Act, 2023
are furnished to the extent applicable to the Company.

Note 34: Previous year's figures has been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm with current year's figure.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants . \_
Firm Registration Number 104767\/\7//”

_garat QLY M\JJ\/X/ \_

Atul Shah MUMBAL - Debasis Nandy Rambhau Kenlkare
Partuer Director Director

Membership No. 636569 . DIN: 06368365 DIN No, 01272743
11-May-24 @\‘,EGKLB 11-May-24 11-May-24

Place; Mumbai i Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbail
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Tndependent Auditor’s Report

‘To the Members of Indian Horizon Marketing Services
Report on Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Indian Horizon
Marketing Services Limited (‘the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31,2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our of n and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“the Ind AS™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its loss (including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

‘We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“the SAS”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
‘Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 10 our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
issued by ICAL We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in report of board of directors but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

1
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears o be materially misstated.

1, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

‘The Company's management are responsible for the maters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect 10 the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financil performance (including other comprchensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accouning principls generally accepted in India. This responsibilty also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and oher irregulariies; selecion
and application of appropriate accounting pol ing judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant 10 the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are fre from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's abiltyto continue 8 a going concen, discosing s spplicale, maters elaed to
going concern and usin basis of accountin cither intends
1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 4o so.

“The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s ibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. able assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

2
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influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

deniify and assess the risks of material kst ofhesadhlons el datseets,
whether due to fraud or error,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis or o
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
‘omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 1o design audit

in ion 143(3)() of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
intemal financial control in place and th i such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
relted to events or conditions that may cast ignifcant doubt on the Company’s i ity to
continue as a going concem. If e conclude that  material uncertainty e
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events o conditions may cause the Company 10 cease to continue as a
going concern.

s, we are

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.

‘We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (1) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which t0 the best of

re necessan of our audit;

(i) In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the

mates saed in paragaph 20K0) beow on reporing under e 1) of the
Auditors) Rules, 20 the Rules”);

(ifi) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account;

(i) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
relevant provisions of the Act;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act;

(vi)  With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made in paragraph 2(ix)(f) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the
Rules;

(vil) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the opering effecivness ofsuch conirols, eer o our separie
report in “Annexure B

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance.
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and o the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable o the
Company;
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(%) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
(Audit

rule 11 of the Companies

Rules, 2014, as ame

our

opuuon and 10 the best of our information and lcwrdmg 10 the nph.m.e..s givento

9
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o

The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact the
financial position of the Company;

The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts.
including derivative contracts ;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

(@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in note no. 24, no funds have been advanced or loancd o
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
diretly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The Management has represented, that, 10 the best of its knowledge and
belief, as stated in note no. 24, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherw
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or nvest in

ther persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ulimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
‘guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics;

(iif) Based on the audit procedures performed by us that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come 10 our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i and (i) above, contain any material mis-statement; and

‘The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, the audit trail

H
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was not enabled for data changes performed by users hnvmg privileged access till
February 1, 2024 at application layer of the accounting software used to maintain
general ledger and the audit trail was also not cnbled o he dabace el 1 log
any direct data changes for software used to maintain general ledger. Further,
during the course of performing our pmctdurcs, we did not notice any instance of
audit rail feature being tampered wi

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is apy
from the period April 1, 2023 reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies Act
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ending
March 31,2024,

Fir G, M. Karadla & Co
‘Accountants
Fim Regls\nlwn No. 104767W

gt

Atul Shah

artner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Date: July 16,2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUMT9153
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements™
of our report on even date to the members of the Company on standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31,2024 :

To the best of our information and according to the explanation provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of our audit, we state

that:
@) @ 1o (@)
(e)
W @
®)

()

(G

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment and hence
provision of paragraph 3(i)(a) to (d) of the Order is not applicable; and

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

The Company’s nature of operations does not require it to hold inventories.
Consequenty, paragraph 3(i) (2) of the Order regarding ysal veificaon of
records s not appli

According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from
banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under paragraph 3(ii) (b) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any
‘guarantee or security or grunmd lny Ioans or ldvarwex in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to ity Partnerships or any
other parti Aomnimgly. kpcnmg undcr pmguph 3(iii)(a) to (1) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

‘The Company has not granted any loan, made investment or provided guarantee
o security 1o the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Therefore,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

‘The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits therefore, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable 1o the
Company. We have been informed by the management that no order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.
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i) (@)

®)

(viii)

(x) (@)
®
©
@

®

(€) & () The Company does not have any subsidi

®)

& co.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has generally been regular in depositing ‘appropriate.
‘authorities undisputed statutory dues such as goods and services tax, income tax,
cess and other applicable Statutory dues. According o information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory dues payable were in arrears as
at March 31, 2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable; and

There are no such statutory dues as referred to in sub- paragraph (a) above which
have not been deposited with the concemed authorities as on March 31, 2024, on
account of dispute.

There are no transaction which are not recorded  in the books of accounts and
have been surended or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

‘The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender.
Hence reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company;

‘The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
b - p

The Company has not taken any terms loan. Accordingly, reporting under
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, the
reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
and

s, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(ix)e) and (1) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further
bl offr (ncudng det stuncus) dag the year, Acoondagly,reporing
3(x)@) of the Order is not

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the current financial year. Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

8
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() (@  We have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or any
material instance of fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year;

(b)  No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed during the year by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; and

(@ There are no whi laints received by the Comp: g the year.
(il ‘The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xi¥)(@) & (b) The Company does not have an intemal audi system and is not required to have
an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.

) ‘The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with ts directors.
We have been informed that no such transactions have been entered into with
persons connected with directors.

(xvi)a) to (¢) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi) (@), (b) and (c)
of the Order is not applicable; and

‘The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group as per definition of Group
contained in the Core Invesiment Companies (Reserve Bark)
paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of

[©

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 221.6 thousands during
the financial year covered by our audit and Rs. 74.5 thousands in the immediately
preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xvili) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) In view of losses incurred by the Company and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and :xp(mzd dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of \he Bose of Diecors and management plans, in our opinion
though material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company
i capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and

9




KAPADIA & CO.

Place: Mumbai

when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
management has represented and as stated in the Note 23 to the financial
statements that, the Holding Company has undertaken to provide financial support
that may be required in Company's obligation towards hird partes.

‘The provisions of section 135(5) and 135(6) of the Act are ot applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(@) and (b) of the
Order s not applicable to the Company

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

irm Registration No. 104767W
AL

Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No. 039569

a
Date: July 16,2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUMT9153
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(vi) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report on even date to the members of the Company on standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of the Company as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

I our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls
system with reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to the standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2024 based on the internal controls with reference to the standalone financial statements criteria
esta Company considering the essential components of intemal controls stated in
the Guidance Note.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal controls with reference to the standalone financial statements
eriteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(“the Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAL These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s polices, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intenal financi
reference to the standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both ssued
by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intemal financial conirols with reference (0 the standalone financial staiements was

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system reference to the standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls with reference to the standalone
ntemal financial controls with
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exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed ris}

“he procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,including the assessment o th risks
of material fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
the standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Finan

Statements

A company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gencrally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary {0 permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone
ancial Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of interal financial controls with reference to the standalone:
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due 10 error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone:
financial statements to future periods are subject 10 the risk that the interal financial controls
with reference (o the standalone inancial satements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compli polici

For G. M, Kapadia & co.
rtered Accountants
Firm Reglslrluon No. 104767W

ot

Atul Shah

artner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Date: July 16,2024 UDIN: 24039569BKAUMTY153
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Indian Horizon Marketing Services Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
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Indian Horizon Marketing Services Limited

Statement of Profit And Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2024

(Amount in Thousands)
Fartcatars o Torhe Forthe |
Year Ended March 31, [ Year Ended March
2024 2023

i 4

)
o) ol
o ol
[ 3

e post-emploonent b oblgstr -
oot sl o et will ot b reclsdid 1o ot r s
) o)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 cach) 1

Hasc carmiogs pr share (1 TNF) 9| ()
a9l @)

Ao o d
ForG. . Kapadia

et

Fim Rgiraton umbe 104767W

AT /\u

PAD;

At Shah
Membership No 39569

Date Juy 16,2024
Place: Mumbai

¥\D)\
- g )
7

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rambhau Kenkare  Debasis Nandy

Dirtor Dirctor
DINNo oizazaa DI No. 06368365
Due:Juyi6,200  Datesduly 36,204
Place Mumiai Flce: Mnbai



Indian Horiaon Marketing Srvices Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended March 31,2024
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Indian Horizon Marketing Services Limited

General Information
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THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Annual report

The directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of Thomas Cook

(Mauritius) Holding Company Limited, the “Company”, for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Principal activity
The principal activity of the Company is to hold investments.

Results and dividends

The results for the year are as shown on page 10.

The directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year under review (2023: Nil).
Directors

The present membership of the Board is set out on page 2.
Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present
fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company. In preparing those
financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors have confirmed that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and the International Financial Reporting Standards. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors’ interests

The directors do not hold any interests in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Significant contracts

No contracts of significance exist between the Company and its directors.



THOMAS COOK (MA URITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Annual report (Cont’d)

Donations

The Company has not made any donations during the year under review (2023: Nil).

Directors’ remuneration

2024 2023
USD USD
Directors’ remuneration including sitting fees : 3,716 6,331

Auditor

The auditor, Baker Tilly, has indicated its willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning its
re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual Meeting. The fees of USD 1,286 (2023: USD 1,642)
(including VAT) payable to the auditor are exclusively for audit services.

Director /

fi

Date:




THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Certificate from the Secretary to the member of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited

We certify, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that we have filed with the Registrar of Companies all
such returns as are required of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited, under the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001, in terms of Section 166 (d), during the financial year ended 31 March 2024,

| CUTIVE SERVICES LD
Blivehine3

for Executive Services Limited
Company Secretary

Johaan Dm’\’\a&mﬂo_d Btltiow kq,\

Registered office:

C/o Executive Services Limited
2nd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building
Vieux Conseil Street

Port Louis

Republic of Mauritius

Date:



@ bakertilly

Level 4, Building A5
15 Wall Street
Ebéne 72201
Mauritius

T: +230 460 8800
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BRN: LLP22000037
To the Shareholder of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited info@bakertilly.mu

www.bakertilly.mu

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements on pages 9 to 27 give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in compliance with the requirements of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Mauritius, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

6

Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholder of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

This opinion has been prepared for and only for the Company’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Section 205
of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 and for no other purposes.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

| 2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control.

| 2 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

| 2 Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

| 4 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholder of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the corporate data, annual report
and certificate from the secretary.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditor and tax advisor.
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of
those records.

Baker Tilly Sin C. LI, CPA, CGMA
Licensed by FRC
Date: 30 April 2024



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024

9

2024 2023
Notes USD UsD

Assets
Non-current assets
[nvestments in subsidiaries 7 138,255 716,790
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 [ 6
Total non-current assets 138,261 716.796
Current
Loan receivable 9 590,000 390,000
Receivables 10 114,848 488.195
Cash and cash equivalents 11 124,922 522
Total current assets 829,770 1,078.717
Total assets 968,031 1.795.513
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 12 1,655,500 1,655.500
(Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (705,823) 115.043
Total equity 949,677 1.770.543
Liabilities
Current
Accruals 13 15,301 20,471
Current tax liability 15 3.053 4499
Total liabilities 18,354 24,970
Total equity and liabilities 968,031 1.795.513

Approved by the Board of Directors on _~

.'J/‘_-“\

=

Director

and signed on its behalf by:

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAL RITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024

10

2024 2023

Notes uspD USD
INCOME
Interest income 9 37,052 53.032
Other income 14 227,500 12,000
Total income 264,552 65.032
EXPENDITURE
Secretarial fees 1,163 908
Directors’ fees 3,716 6.331
Audit fees 4,581 1.642
Taxation fees 102 658
Bank charges 469 136
Penalty fees - 6
Other expenses 13 545
Accounting services - 7.200
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries 7(i) 578,535 -
Loan written off 10 496,399 -
Total expenditure 1,084,978 17.426
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,426) 47.606
Tax expense 15 (440) (4.499)
(Loss)/profit for the year (820,866) 43.107
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the ) )
year, net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss)/income the year (820,866) 43.107

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form an integral par

t of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

Stated (Accumulated
ital losses)/Retained Tofal
capita earnings cia
USD USD USD
At 01 April 2023 1,655,500 115,043 1,770,543
Loss for the year - (820.866) (820,866)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (820,866) (820.,866)
At 31 March 2024 1,655,500 (705,823) 949,677
At 01 April 2022 1.655.500 71.936 1.727.436
Profit for the year - 43.107 43.107
Total comprehensive income for the year - 43,107 43.107
At 31 March 2023 1.655.500 115.043 1.770.543

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023
Notes USD usD
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax (820,426) 47,606
Oper'flling ca.sh flows before movements in (820,426) 47,606
working capital
Adjustment for:
Impairment loss 578,535 -
(241,891) 47.606
Net changes in working capital:
Change in receivables 10 373.347 (433,032)
Change in accruals 13 (5,170) 16,832
Tax paid 15 (1,886) -
Total changes in working capital 366,291 (416,200)
l\'et' c.afih generated from/(used in) operating 124,400 (368.594)
activities
Cash flow from investing activity
Loan receivables 9 - 360,000
Net cash generated from investing activity - 360,000
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 124,400 (8.594)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 522 9.116
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 124,922 522
Cash and cash equivalents made up of:
Cash at bank 11 124,922 522

The notes on pages 13 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2024

General information and statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited, the “Company”", was incorporated in the Republic of Mauritius
under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 on 20 December 1994 as a private company with liability limited by shares.
The Company’s registered office is C/o Executive Services Limited, 2nd Floor, Les Jamalacs Building. Vieux Conseil
Street, Port Louis Republic of Mauritius.

The principal activity of the Company is to hold investments. The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB™).

The Company holds investments in subsidiaries, 100% in Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Operations Company Limited
and 100% in Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd and has taken advantage of paragraph 4 of International
Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS™), Consolidated Financial Statements. which dispenses it from the need to
present consolidated financial statements.

Its ultimate holding company, Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited. prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard (*’IFRS’"). Hence, management has taken the advantage
of paragraph 4 of the IFRS, which dispenses it from the need to present consolidated financial statements.

Application of new and revised IFRS
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements. the IASB has issued the following amendments which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023:

> IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments - Disclosure of
Accounting Policies)
» 1AS 8 Accounting policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendments - Definition of Accounting
Estimates)

» IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction)

> TAS 12 Income Taxes (International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules)
These amendments to various IFRS standards are mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 01
April 2023.

IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting

Policies)

The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting
policies. Further amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. Examples of when an
accounting policy is likely to be material are added. To support the amendment, the Board has also developed
guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’described in
[FRS Practice Statement 2.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Z;
2.1

Application of new and revised IFRS (Cont'd)
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) (Cont'd)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting

Policies) (Cont'd)

[n February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, which change the disclosure requirements with respect to
accounting policies from ‘significant accounting policies’ to ‘material accounting policy information’. The
amendments provide guidance on when accounting policy information is likely to be considered material. The
amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier
application permitted. As IFRS Practice Statements are non-mandatory guidance, no mandatory effective date has
been specified for the amendments to [FRS Practice Statement 2.

IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendments - Definition of Accounting

Estimates)

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates. That distinction is important because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively
only to future transactions and other future events, whilst changes in accounting policies are generally applied

retrospectively to past transactions and other past events. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendments - Definition of Accounting

Estimates) (Con't)

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, which added the definition of Accounting Estimates in IAS
8. The amendments also clarified that the effects of a change in an input or measurement technique are changes in
accounting estimates, unless resulting from correction of prior period errors,

IAS 12 Income Taxes (Amendments - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Sinole

Transaction)

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts
of deductible and taxable temporary differences arise on initial recognition. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted.

In May 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 12, which clarify whether the initial recognition exemption applies
to certain transactions that result in both an asset and a liability being recognised simultaneously (e.g. a lease in the
scope of IFRS 16). The amendments introduce an additional criterion for the initial recognition exemption under IAS
12.15, whereby the exemption does not apply to the initial recognition of an asset or liability which at the time of the
transaction, gives rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

IAS 12 Income Taxes (International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules)

The amendments align the standard's requirements with similar amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes issued in May
2023. The application of the exception and disclosure of that fact is effective immediately, the other disclosure
requirements are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2023.



THOMAS COOK (MAURITIUS) HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2024

2.4
2.1

2.2

Application of new and revised IFRS (Cont'd)

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”) (Cont'd)

Stakeholders raised concerns with the IASB about the potential implications on income tax accounting. especially
accounting for deferred taxes, arising from the Pillar Two model rules. The stakeholders emphasised an urgent need
for clarity given the imminent enactment of tax law to implement the rules in some jurisdictions. In response to
stakeholder concerns, the [ASB proposed amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes. It issued Exposure Draft International
Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules (Proposed Amendments to IAS 12) on 9 January 2023. Given the urgent
requirement for clarity, a shorter comment period of 60 days was provided. The IASB issued the final Amendments
(the Amendments) International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules on 23 May 2023.

IAS 12 Income Taxes (International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules) (Cont'd)

The Amendments introduce a temporary exception to entities from the recognition and disclosure of information
about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two model rules. The Amendments also provide for additional
disclosure requirements with respect to an entity’s exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

Standards and interpretations issued and not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 March 2024

The following standards, amendments to existing standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet effective.
They are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on the specified dates, but the Company has not early adopted
them. The directors have assessed that the below standards would not have an impact on the financial statements.

Effective for accounting

Amendments to: period beginning on or after
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments regarding supplier finance
arrangements) 01-Jan-24
IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures
sale and leaseback transactions) 01-Jan-24
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments - Classification of]
Liabilities as Current or Non-current) 01-Jan-24
IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments - Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants) 01-Jan-24
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments regarding supplier finance
arrangements) 0l1-Jan-24
IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial
Information 01-Jan-24
[FRS S2 Climate — related Disclosures 01-Jan-24

The directors are in the process of assessing the impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. The amendments are not expected to have any major impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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3

3.1

3.2

Summary of accounting policies

Overall considerations

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below.

Financial instruments

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value plus transactions costs, where appropriate.

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, where appropriate.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the following
categories:

* Amortised cost
* Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

In the current year, the Company does not have any financial assets categorised as FVTPL and FVOCI.
The classification is determined by both:

* the Company’s business model for managing the financial asset.
* the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are
presented within finance income or finance costs, except for impairment losses which are presented within other
expenses,
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3

3.2

Summary of accounting policies (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not designated as

FVTPL):

+ they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual cash
flows: and

« the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, loan to related party
and most of its receivables fall into this category of financial instruments.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all receivables.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities include accruals.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ or “hold to collect and sell’
are categorised at fair value through profit and loss. Further, irrespective of business model, financial assets where
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.

Assets in this category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The fair values of
financial assets in this category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists.

The Company holds investment in Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Ltd, an unquoted company and the
objective of holding this investment is not for returns from capital appreciation or investment income. Hence the
directors consider the cost of this investment to be a fair reflection of the fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3.3

34

3.6

Summary of accounting policies (Cont'd)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to,

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is
charged to statement of comprehensive income. On disposal of the investments, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income.

Income tax

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting years, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable profit,
which differs from profit or loss in the financial statements. Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes are calculated usin g the liability method on tem porary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and demand deposits together with other short-term. highly
liquid investments maturing within 90 days that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Stated capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and
share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Summary of accounting policies (Cont’d)

Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in currency United State Dollar (“USD™), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date), except for non-monetary items measured at fair value which are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Revenue
[nterest income is accounted on an accrual basis unless collectability is in doubt.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company ensures that the following 5 conditions are satisfied:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer.
2. Identitying the performance obligations.

4

3. Determining the transaction price.
4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.
5

. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The Company also earns service fees from the provision of accounting services to a sister company which are
recognised over time, that is when the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised
services to its client.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, management reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. When an indication of impairment loss exists, the
carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down to its recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required from the Company and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. At time of effective payment, the provision is deducted from the
corresponding expenses. All known risks at the reporting date are reviewed in detail and provision is made where
necessary.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

Summary of accounting policies (Cont’d)
Related parties

A related party is a person or company where that person or company has control or joint control of the reporting
company; has significant influence over the reporting company; or is a member of the key management personnel of
the reporting company or of a parent of the reporting company.

Expense recognition

All expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements. management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Significant management judgement

Significant management Judgement in applying the accounting policies of the Company that has the most significant
effect on the financial statements is set out below.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of transactions and exchange
differences arising therefrom are dependent on the functional currency selected. The directors have considered those
factors and have determined that the functional currency of the Company is the USD.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The determination of impairment of investments in subsidiaries requires significant judgement. In making this
Jjudgement, management at group level evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value
of an investments is less than its cost: and the financial health of and short-term business outlook for the investee,

including factors such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash
flows.
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3.13

4.1

4.2

Significant management judgements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty

At 31 March 2024. there were no estimates and assumptions that would have a significant effect on the recognition
and measurement of assets. liabilities, income and expenses.

Financial instrument risk

Risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activity exposes it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest rate
risk). credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management is carried out under policies approved by the
Board of Directors and focuses on securing the Company’s short to medium term cash flows by minimising the
exposure to financial risks.

The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:
Market risk analysis

Foreign exchange sensitivity

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk at the reporting date as all transactions are carried out in USD.

Interest rate sensitivity
The exposure to interest rates for the Company’s bank balance is considered immaterial.
Credit risk analysis

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Company. The financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash
equivalents, loan receivable and receivables. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting date. as summarised below:

2024 2023
USD USD

Current assets
Loan receivable 590,000 590,000
Receivables 114,848 488,195
Cash and cash equivalents 124,922 522
829,770 1.078.717

The credit risk for the bank balance is considered negligible since the Company transacts with a reputable bank. The
directors do not expect any default on the loan advanced to the related party as it operates under a single treasury
management where the credit risk is considered low.
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4 Financial instrument risk (Cont’d)
Risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

4.3 Liquidity risk analysis

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with

the Board of Directors who also monitors the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities.

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-5

31 March 2024 amount cash flows one year years
USD USD USD

Accruals 15,301 15,301 15,301 -
Carrying Contractual Less than 1-5

31 March 2023 amount cash flows one year Years
USD USD UsD

Accruals 20,471 20,471 20,471 -

S Capital management policies and procedures

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns to its member and other stakeholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid, buy back
shares or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The Company was not geared at the reporting date.

6 Fair value measurement
6.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of a fair

value hierarchy. This grouping is determined based on the level of significance inputs used in fair value
measurement, as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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6

6.1

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value measurement

Fair value measurement of financial instruments (Con't)
The Companys financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified under Level 3.
The hierarchy of the fair value measurement of the Company’s financial assets are as follows:

31 Mar 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
UsD USD USD USD

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investment in an unquoted company . = 6 6

The directors consider the cost of the investment to be a reflection of the fair value.

6.2 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities

The Company did not have any non-financial instruments at the reporting date.
Investments in subsidiaries

Unquoted and at cost:

2024 2023

USD USD

At 01 April 716,790 716,790
Impairment loss (578,535) -
At 31 March 138,255 716,790

At 31 March 2024, the directors have assessed the recoverable amount of the investments held in the subsidiaries and
consider that the investment in Thomas Cook Holidays (Mauritius) Ltd amounting to USD 578,535 has been fully
impaired at the reporting date.

Details of the investments are as follows:

. A ; Type of %
: . Country of incorporation . :
Name of investee company investment Holding

Th Cook (Mauriti v i /
D OO, (Maue n,ls)_ Republic of Mauritius Qedipary 100
Operations Company Limited shares
Tt Cook (Mauritius) Holidays : s inary

yomas Cook (Mauritius) idays Republic of Mauritius Ordinary 100
Ltd shares

No consolidated financial statements are presented as the Company’s ultimate holding company, Fairfax Financial
Holdings Limited, will present consolidated financial statements under International Reporting Standard (*'IFRS™).
The registered office of Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, is 95 Wellington Street West, Suite 800

Toronto. Ontario. Canada. The directors have hence taken the advantage of paragraph 4 of International Reporting
Standard (*'IFRS™"), which dispenses it from the need to present consolidated financial statements.

The directors have carried out an impairment assessment of the investment in subsidiaries and except for Thomas

Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd that will be wound up. the directors have identified that no impairment is required.
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()

(ii)

10

11

12

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2024
Country of Cost and fair
Name of investee company 5 ; Type of investment % Holding —
Incorporation -
USD
Travel Circle International Republic of
1R o A o 2
(Mauritius) Ltd Mitiritiis Ordinary shares 0.0000 6

The Company subscribed to 1 share in Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Ltd, a related company incorporated in
Mauritius,

The cost of the investments is regarded as a reflection of the fair values. As the Company forms part of a group, all
impairment assessment is done at the holding company’s level,

Loan receivable

The loan to Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Ltd bears an interest rate of 6.28% or the benchmarked rate per
p

annum, is unsecured and receivable on demand based on group treasury management. Interest income for the year
amounted to USD 37,052 (2023: USD 53,032).

Receivables

2024 2023

USD UsD

Receivable from related party - Thomas Cook (Mauritius)Holidays Ltd (Note(i)) 5 398,500
Receivable from related party - Travel Circle International (Mauritius) Ltd 114,848 89,695
114,848 488.195

The receivable from related parties are unsecured, bear interest of 6.25% per annum and repayable on demand.

Note(i) - Thomas Cook (Mauritius)Holidays Ltd

2024 2023
USD UsSD
Opening balance 398,500 30,500
Movement during the year 131,426 368,000
Loan write off (529,926) -
Ciosing balance - 398.500

During the year, the amount receivable from Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Ltd amounting to USD 529,926, with
interest income of USD 33,527 has been written off.

Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023

USD USh

Cash at bank 124,922 522
Stated capital

2024 2023

USD USD

1.655.500 ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1.655.500 1,655.500
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12 Stated capital (Cont'd)

Rights attached to the ordinary shares are as per the Mauritius Companies' Act, as follows:
(i) the right to vote on a poll for every share held at a meeting of the Company on any resolution:
(ii) the right to an equal share in dividends authorised by the Board;
(iii) the right to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Company.

13 Accruals

[§]
LN

2024 2023
USD USD
Accrued expenses 15,301 20,471
14 Other income
2024 2023
UsD UsD
Dividend income 215,500 -
Management services fees 12,000 12,000
227.500 12.000

Taxation

—
h

(i) Income tax

The Company is liable to income tax at the rate of 15% and at 31 March 2024 it had income tax

3,053 (2023: USD 4.499)

Current tax expense

liability of USD

2024 2023

USD usD

Income tax based on taxable profits at 15% 2,801 4,499
Corporate Social Responsibility 252 -
Over provision related for last year (2,613) -
440 4,499

(ii) Income tax reconciliation

The income tax on the Company’s (loss)/profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

the effective tax rate is as follows:

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2024 2023

USD USD

(Loss)/profit before tax (820,426) 47.606
Tax at effective rate of 13% (123,064) 7,141
Non-allowable expenses 162,636 1,706
Exempt income (36,771) (6,363)
Deferred tax asset not recognised - 2,015
2.801 4.499
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Taxation (Cont'd)

(ii) Income tax reconciliation (Cont'd)

Reconciliation of income tax liability in the statement of financial position

2024 2023
USD USD
Balance as at 1 April 4,499 -
Income tax 2,801 4,499
Over provision related for last year (2,613) -
Paid during the year (1,886) -
Corporate Social Responsibility 252 -
3,053 4,499

(iii) Deferred taxation

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method at the rate of 15%. No
provision for deferred tax asset has been recognised as no taxable income is probable in the foreseeable future,

Related party transactions

For the year ended 31 March 2024. the Company had transactions with its related parties. The nature, volume of
transactions and the balances are as follows:

Credit Credit
Nature of Nature of Volume of balance at 31  balance at 31
relationship transactions transactions Mar-24 Mar-23
USD usD USD
[nvestee company Loan - 590,000 590,000
Subsidiary Ampintressiiabi
company et (373.347) 114,848 488,195
Key management Director fees 2.615) 3,716 6,331
personnel
Sy Dividend income 215,500 215,500 5
company
Investee company Other income - 12,000 12,000
Investee company Interest income (15,980) 37,052 53.032

All related party transactions are done at arm'’s length.
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18

19

Holding companies

The directors consider Thomas Cook (India) Limited, a company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, India, as the
immediate holding company and Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange. Canada, as the ultimate holding company.

Thomas Cook (India) Limited holds 100% of the shares of Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holding Company Limited.

Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited ("Fairbridge”). a subsidiary of Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited (the
“ultimate parent”). Canada and its affiliates, held equity shares of INR 1 each corresponding to 63.83% stake in
Thomas Cook (India) Limited as on 31 March 2019. As at the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Fairbridge
held equity shares if INR | each corresponding to 63.84% stake in Thomas Cook (India) Limited.

Contingencies and capital commitments
The Company does not have any contingent liability and capital commitment at year.
Events after the reporting date

There has been no significant event after the reporting date which requires disclosures or amendments to the financial
statements.



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 91.82 8839
(b) Right of use Asset 2 74.05 121.38
{c) Other intangible assets 3 0.90 1.68
(d) Intangible asset under development 3 137.10 98 96
(e} Financial assets :
(1) Investments 4 15,65 14.05
(i) Other non current financial assets 3 44.34 40.42
(f) Deferred 1ax assets (net) 6 351.61 356.69
(g) Income tax assets 7 21.92 17.11
(h) Other non-current assets & 0.05 -
Total non-current assets 73744 738.68
2 Current assets
(a) Financial assets :
9 424.03 270.18

(1) Trade receivables

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10fa) 362.50 155.83
(iti) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 10¢b) 145.17 100.17
(iv) Other current financial assets 1 17.48 10.31
{b) Other current assets 12 294.59 207.46
Total current assets 1,243.77 743.95
TOTAL ASSETS 1,981.21 1,482.63
I1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 0.10 0.10
(b) Other equity
(i) Instruments entirely equity in nature 14 1,990.19 1,990.19
(i1) Reserves and surplus 14 (2.363.29) (2,378.13)
Total equity (373.00) (387.84)
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities;
(i) Lease liability 15 28.01 77.32
(b} Provisions 16 24.34 14.76
Total non-current liabilities 52.35 92.08
3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities :
(1) Short-term borrowings 17 690.60 690,60
(1) Lease liability 18 50.56 43.78
(i) Trade payables
1.Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 33 0.21 14.31
2.Dues of creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 19 1,076.19 652.19
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 179.71 100.82
{b) Other current liabilities 21 300.28 273.68
(c) Short-term provisions 22 431 3.01
Total current liabilities 2,301.86 1,778.39
Total liabilities 2,354.21 1,870.47
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,981.21 1,482.63

Significant accounting policies
The notes from | to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Corporation (India) kimited
[CIN; U63040MH2001PLCI3 93]

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

it b

Kaushal Mehta Dipak Deva v

Partner Managing Director ’

Membership No: 118321 [DIN:02030005] TDIN No: 00008542
Mumbai Gurugram Gurugram
15-May-24 10-May-24 10-May-24

Delta Square,
M.G. Road,
Seclor-25

5 3 K sastry Garimella
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Gurugram Gurugram
10-May-24 10-May-24




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Statement of profit and loss
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

(1) Revenue
(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income
Total income

(2) Expenses
(a) Cost of tours
(b) Employee benefits expense
{c) Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortization expenses

(e) Other expenses

Total expenses
3) Profit / (Loss) before tax
(4) Tax expense:

(a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax
(5) Profit / (Loss) after tax

(6) Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan

(b) Income tax expense on remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans

Other comprehensive (Loss) / Income (net of tax)

()] Total comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year
(8) Earnings per equity share

(i) Basic*

(11) Diluted*

* Basic & Diluted EPS is 0.0014 for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Significant accounting policies

The notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

AN

Kaushal Mehta
Partner

Membership No: 118321
Mumbai

15-May-24

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
24 4,994.14 224867
25 60.51 62.29
5,054.65 2,310.96
26 413826 1,876.15
27 516.16 365.09
28 8581 8435
2.3 8042 85.55
30 21315 182.76
5,033.80 2,593.90
20.85 (282.94)
6 - »
6 6.14 (65.83)
14.71 (217.11)
(4.22) 6.61
1.06 (1.66)
(3.16) 4.95
11.55 (212.16)
i 0.00 (0.02)
3! 0.00 (0.02)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
[ : U63040MH2001PLCI1B1693]
Dipak Deva Madhavan Menon
Managing Director "”E‘Lﬂl‘/
[DIN:02030005] [DIN No: 00008542]
Gurugram Gurugram
10-May-24 10-May-24

Shnjay

Chief Financial Officer
Gurugram

10-May-24

=

S S K Sastry Garimella
Company Secretary
Gurugram

10-May-24
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Statement of cash flows
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of ROU asset
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Profit on sale of ROU asset
Lixcess provision no longer requried, written back

Bad debts and Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Net unrealised foreign exchange differences
Expenses on employees stock options schemes (net)

Interest expense on ROU lease liability including linance lease

Interest income on deposits and investments
Interest income - others

Interest expense

Dividend income from subsidiary

Working capital Changes
{Decrease) in trade and other receivables
(Decrease) in other assels
{Decrease) in Other Financial assets

Increase in trade & other payables, other financial liabilities and current liabilities

Increase in provisions and employee benefits

Net cash flow from operations after working capiat adjustments

Income tax paid
Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and ROU Assets

Investment in lixed deposit
Interest received on deposits and investments
Dividend income from subsidiary
Investment in Associates

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans and borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repavment of lease liability (Principal Amount)
Repayment of lease liability (Finance Charges)
Finance charges on borrowings
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Exchange ditference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

M G. Road,
C_':l,'t_'liJf'zS

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

20.85 (282.94)
29.64 29.32
0.96 245
49.82 53.78
(0.09) (0.45)
(2.39) (0.30)
(23.52) (3.77)
(3.51) (0.59)
10.67 (9.92)
3.29 1.50
9.92 8.55
(6.62) (1.73)
(3.17) (3.98)
69.68 75.80
- (31.61)
155.53 (163.89)
(148.68) (186.51)
(87.18) (16.54)
(5.31) (7.78)
474.95 601.01
06.66 569
395.97 231.98
(4.81) (6.92)
39116 225.06
(71.42) (47.65)
2.86 0.75
(45.00) (100.01)
3.39 0.81
- 31.61
(1.60) #
(111.77) (114.49)
# 180.00
. (100.00)
(44.75) (51.53)
(9.92) (8.55)
(7.23) (7.58)
(61.90) 12.33
217.49 122.90
155.83 33.67
(10.82) (0.74)
362.50 155.83




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note:
Check
(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents :
Cash on hand 4.78 5.50
Balances with scheduled banks
- Current Account 156.09 78.48
-- EEFC Account 101.63 51.85
-~ Deposit Account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 100.00 20.00
362.50 155.83

(b) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7- " Cash Flow
Statements".

Significant accounting policies
The notes from | to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
[CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131603]

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

IE22w
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Kaushal Mehta Dipak Deva . Madhavan Menon
Partner Managing Director Directop
Membership No: 118321 [DIN:02030005] [DIN No: 00008542]
Mumbai New Delhi Gurugram
15-May-24 5 10-May-24 10-May-24
iower B,
[ Delta Square.
M.G. Road,
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S S K Sastry Garimella
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Gurugram Gurugram
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

(a)  Equity share capital

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the commencement of the year 10,000 010 10,000 0.0
Changes in equity share capital duning the vear - - - -
At the end of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 010

(b)  Other equity
Particulars Retained earning Employee share option Capital Reserve Other compreh Optionally Ce ibl Total other
outstanding income/ (loss) Non-Cumulative equity
(Remeasurements of the  Preference shares
net defined benefit
plans)

Balance at 31 March 2022 (611.23) 69.89 {1,633.29) .16 1,990.19 (177.28)
Laoss for the year (217.11) - - - (217.11
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - 495 - 493
Share-based pavments [Note 40] - .30 - - 1.50
Balance at 31 March 2023 (828.34) 71.39 (1,633.29) 12.11 1,990.19 (387.94)
Profit for the vear 14.71 - - - 14.71
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - - (3.16) - (3.16)
Share-based pavments [Note 40] = 320 ] : 329
Balance at 31 March 2024 {813.63) 74.68 (1,633.29) 8.95 1,990.19 (373.10)
Significant accounting policies
The notes from | to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Firm's Regstration No: 101248W/W-100022 [CIN: U63040MH200IRLC131693]
} —_— g O
Kaushal Mehta Dipak Deva : Madhavan Menon
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 118321 [DIN:02030005] [DIN No;
Mumbai Gurugram Gurugram
15-May-24 10-May-24 10-May-24

Tower B,
Della Square
M.G. Road, /Sy

Chi
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ef Financtal Officer
Gurugram

10-May-24

N

5§ K Sastry Garimella
Company Secretary
Gurugram

10-May-24



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

General Information

Travel Corporation (India) Limited is engaged in Travel and Tourism business and working as Travel agent
and Tour operator. The Company mainly operates in Inbound Tours. The Company is wholly owned by
Thomas Cook (India) Limited (100 %).

1 (A) Material accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 4 of the Companies (India
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from
time to time that are notified and effective as at 31 March 2024,

As per the Notification No. G.S.R. 742 (E) dated 27 July 2016, the company has availed
exemption from preparing the Consolidated Financial Statement under Rules 6 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014.

(b) Historical cost convention

Standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities — measured at fair value,

o defined benefit plans — defined benefit obligation less plan assets measured at fair value, and

e share based payment — measured at fair value

1

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees “(INR)” or “(Rs.)” which is also the
Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded off to nearest million (’000,000)
except where otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount is represented as ‘0’ (*zero’) it construes
a value less than fifty thousand.

1.2 Foreign currency translation and transactions

(a) Functional and presentation currency

A Company’s functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity primarily generates and
expends cash.

= [ Della Square,
| M.G.Road, /&
Seclor-25




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.2 Foreign currency translation and transactions (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(i) Initial recognition

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Subsequent recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
period end exchange rates are recognised in profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rate at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

All monetary items denominated in foreign currency are restated at Foreign Exchange
Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) rates and the exchange variations arising out of
settlement/ conversion at the FEDATI rates are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

1.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration paid for services.
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.
Revenue from rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes and discounts

(a) Income from Operations

The Company earns revenue from travel and related services.

Travel and related services
The Company earns revenue primarily from Travel and Tourism business and working as Travel

agent and Tour operator in Inbound tours. Revenue from inbound tour packages are recognised
on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the date of arrival of the tour.

Shopping Commission is recognised based on the commission rate contracted with shops on
actual sale of merchandize to the tourist.

= ( Delta Square.\
M G. Road,
Seclor-25




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Income from Operations (Continued)

Commission income (net) from hotel and other travel services such as, optional tours etc. are
recognised at the time of providing the service.

Marketing fees and other incentive income are recognised when it is confirmed.

(b) Contract balances

()

(i)

Della Square,
MG Road

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the
customer. If the Company performs by rendering services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional,

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company

performs under the contract.



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.4 Taxes on income

4 Tewer B,
[ Delta Square.
M G. Road,

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in 'Other
comprehensive income’ or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income' or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable
in respect of previous years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax
are included in current tax expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company
offsets the current tax assets as against the liability for provision for tax.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred taxes on items classified under Other
comprehensive income ('OCI') has been recognised in OCI.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be received or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on.a net basis.



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)
1.5 Leases

The company as a lessee

The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings and vehicles. The company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group

assesses whether:

(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

(3) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a "Right of Use" ("ROU") asset
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases
with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term
and low value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease,
difference between security deposit given less its present value at the end of lease period and any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the lease term
or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is less.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases.
Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if
the company changes its assessment to exercise an extension or a termination option.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Impairment of assets

M.G. Road,
Seclor-25 .

(a) Financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence
indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated

reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not
otherwise consider, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of
an active market for a security. The entity considers evidence of impairment for receivables for
each specific asset. All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in statement of
profit and loss and are reflected as an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised as income through the unwinding of the discount.
When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The company assess at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial assets or group of financial
assets is impaired. In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and

credit risk exposure.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at

each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.,



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b) Non-financial assets

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating-
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Total impairment loss of a cash generating unit (CGU) is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss and is not reversed in the subsequent period.

1.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques/ drafts on hand, remittances in transit,
balances with bank held in current account, demand deposits with original maturities of three months
or less, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less than are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an entity's cash management and are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

%
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

(1)

(i)

M.G. Road, /¢
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and
loss except for financial instruments carried at amortized cost, where transaction costs are
adjusted in the amortized cost of the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCI') or fair value through profit
or loss ('FVTPL') on the basis of:

(i) the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and

(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(a) Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets which have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding and are held within a business model with the
objective of holding the assets to collect contractual cash flows, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method, less
impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On
de-recognition, gain or loss, it any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income :

Financial assets which have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding and is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. It is
subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in the
other comprehensive income ('OCI'), except for interest income which is recognised as
‘other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the EIR method. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-
recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
the equity to 'other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

DRAT,
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(i)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

(¢) Measured at fair value through profit or loss:
A financial asset not measured at either amortized cost or FVOCI, is measured at
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value,
including interest income and dividend income if any recognised as 'other income' in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value (except for investment in subsidiaries). Equity instruments
which are held for trading are measured at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at
FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument shall be recognised as 'other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such
instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends. on an equity instrument
measured at FVOCI are recognised in OCIl. Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the
investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the company's right to receive payments is establishes.

(iii) Investment in subsidiaries

(iv)

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy
on impairment of non-financial assets is disclosed in Note 1.6. On disposal of investments
in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Dividend from such investments is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss as other income when the Company's right to
receive payment is established.

De-recognition

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset. On transfer of the financial asset, the Company evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a fair
value basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)
1.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method.
Financial liabilities carried at FVTPL are measured at fair value with all changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(¢) Deferred financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts,
to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

1.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterpart.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.10 Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable- that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which they are incurred. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is de-recognised when replaced. Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses
arising from disposal of assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The depreciation rates are prescribed
in Schedule I1 of the Companies Act 2013, If the management's estimate of the useful life of a fixed
asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is
shorter or longer than that envisaged in the aforesaid Schedule, depreciation is provided at a higher or
lower rate respectively, based on the management’s estimate of the useful life/remaining life.

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value:
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual

values, as follows:

Assets Useful life
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer servers and networks 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles (Finance Lease) 4 years
Vehicles (Other than finance lease) 8 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life of the asset,
whichever is less.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as "Capital work-in-progress".

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The residual
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit and loss.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.11 Intangible Assets

= [ Della Stum're
M.G. Road, /.

Sector-25

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous
estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit

and loss.

The carrying value of these intangible assets are reviewed at least annually for impairment and
adjusted to the recoverable amount if required.

0]

Computer Software
Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs those are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when
the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use,

+ management intends to complete the software and use or sell it,

« there is an ability to use or sell the software,

+ it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits,

+ adequate technical, financial and other resources are available to complete the development

and to use or sell the software, and
« the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee costs and
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Computer software
Amortization methods and periods

Asset Useful life
Software (including software — 4 years
Internally generated / developed)

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their
estimated useful lives.



Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility
will be drawn down. the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are de-recognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

1.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is
recognised if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations is more probable than not. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. [f
it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

Where there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

ontingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.14 Other Income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Facility support income, group resource income, royalty income and management fees are recognised
on accrual basis based on the terms of the agreement.

1.15 Employees share- based payments

Certain employees of the Company are granted rights to equity instruments of its Holding Company
as consideration for the services provided to the Company. The estimated fair-values of the awards on
the grant date, are recognized as an expense in Statement of Profit and Loss with a corresponding
increase to Other Equity on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately
vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance, multiple awards.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.16 Employee benefits

(a) Post-employment benefits:

(i) Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plan for post-employment benefit in the form of
Superannuation scheme. Contributions to Superannuation scheme are charged to the
statement of profit and loss as incurred. The contributions to Superannuation scheme are
based on the premium contribution called for by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)
with whom the Company has entered into an arrangement.

Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations apart
from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the

tenure of employment.

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the premium contribution called for by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) with whom the Company has entered into an
arrangement. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of each year. The amount of net interest expense calculated by
applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or
credited in the statement of profit and loss. Any differences between the interest income on
plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year
due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are
recognised immediately in 'Other comprehensive income' and subsequently not reclassified
to the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Short term employee benefit

Tower B,
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As per the leave Policy of the Company, employees are entitled to avail 30 days of leave during a
calendar year. Any carry forward or encashment of the same is not allowed and all unutilized
leaves necessarily lapse al the end of the calendar year. At reporting date the liability pertaining
to compensated absences is calculate based on the total leave balances of each employee.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
1 (A) Material accounting policies (Continued)

1.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the year
after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all years presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.18 Cost recognition

Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their primary
nature. The costs of the company are broadly categorized in employee benefit expenses, depreciation
and amortization and other operating expenses. Employee benefit expenses include employee
compensation, allowances paid, contribution to various funds and staff welfare expenses. Other
operating expenses majorly include sub-con tractor charges, rent, recruitment and training expenses,
travelling and conveyance, legal and professional fees and communication expenses.

1 (B) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements:
The preparation of Financial Statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the Financial

Statements.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

+  Useful life of property. plant & equipment - Note 2

+  Estimated useful life of intangible asset- Note 3

* Leases - Note 37

*  Impairment of investment - Note 4

+  Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation- Note 36

+  Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward unabsorbed depreciation/ loss - Note 6
+  Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies - Note 38

+  Fair value of financial instruments - Note 32

« Impairment of trade receivables-Note 32

+  Estimation of inputs for fair value of Share based payment instrument - Note 40

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1 (C) Current/ Non-Current Classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current:

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal
operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Current assets include the current portion of non-
current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

¢) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities ar
classified as non-current.

Operating cycle:

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash or cash equivalents. Based on the above definition and the nature of services provided, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current & non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

1 (D) Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has not notified any new standard or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time
which are applicable effective from 01% April 2024.
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

2 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Computer Furniture and Vehicles Office equipment Total
hardware fixtures

Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2022 41.21 85.03 152.85 394 311.03

Add:Additions during the vear 7.03 262 - .65 10.30

Less:Deletion during the vear 13.95 - - 0.43 14.38

Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2023 34.29 87.65 152.85 32.16 306,95

Add:Additions during the year 17.74 1.92 12.20 1.24 33

Less:Deletion during the year 27.33 5.34 - 228 3495
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2024 24.70 84.23 165.05 312 305.10 |

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022 39.48 82.47 54.35 27.32 203.62
— — =

Add:Depreciation charge during the vear 2,54 2.61 21,82 235 29.32

Less:Depreciation on Deletion during the year 13.95 - - 0.43 1438
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 28.07 85.08 76.17 29.24 218.56 |

Add:Depreciation charge during the year 4.53 1.54 2185 1.72 29 64

Less:Depreciation on Deletion during the vear 27.33 531 - 2.28 34.92

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 5.27 8131 98.02 28.68 213.28
e

Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 6.22 2.57 76.68 2.92 88.39

Carrying value as at 31 March 2024 19.43 2.92 67.03 2.44 91.82

2 Capital work in progress

As at 31 March 2022 184 |
Add:Additions during the year o
Less: Assets capitalised during the vear 1.84
As at 31 March 2023 -
Add:Additions during the year =
Less: Assets capitalised during the year 4
As at 31 March 2024 -

Della Square,
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

2 Right of use Asset

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Gross carrying amount:
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022

Add:Additions during the vear
Less:Deletion during the vear

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

Add:Additions during the year

Less:Deletion during the year

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

Gross Accumulated Depreciation :
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022

Add:Depreciation charge during the year

LLess: Depreciation on Deletion during the year
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023

Add:Depreciation charge durning the vear
Less:Depreciation on Deletion during the year

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

ROU Assets - Building ROU Assets - Vehicles Total
196,79 9.05 205.84
131.65 2,16 133.81
- 1.06 1.06
328.44 10.15 338.59
2.84 - 2.84
7.99 7.99
331.28 2.16 333.44
157.51 6.98 164.49
52.13 .65 5378
|.06 1.06
209.64 7.57 217.21
49.06 0.76 49 82
- 7.64 7.64
258.70 0.69 259,39
118,80 2,58 121.38
72.58 1.47 74.05




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

3 Other intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software
Giross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2022 26.14
Add Additions during the vear 110
Less Deletion during the year =
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2023 27.24
Add: Additions durmyg the year {18
Less:Deletion duning the vear 028
Gross carrying value as at 31 Mar 2024 27.14
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022 23.11
Add Amortisation charge during the vear 2.45
Less: Amortisation on Deletnon durmg the vear -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 25.56
Add:Amortisation charge during the year 096
Less:Amortisation on Deletien during the year 028
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 26,24
Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 1.68
Carrying value as at 31 March 2024 0.90
3 Intangible Asset under development
As at 31 March 2022 60.87
Add: Additions during the vear 823
Less:Assets capitalised duning the vear 014
As at 31 March 2023 98.96
Add:Additions during the vear 38.14
[.ess:Assets capitalised during the vear -
As at 31 March 2024 137.10
Ageing of Intangible Assets under development
Particulars Amuount in Intangible Assets under development for a period of Tatal
Less than 1 years 1-2 vears 2-3 years Maore than 3 vears
As at 31 March 2024
(i) Projects in progress
Project 1- Travart 3814 3823 4727 13.46 137,10
{11} Projects temporanly suspended - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
(1) Projects in progress
Project 1- Travart 38.23 47.27 13.46 - 98.96
(i1} Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)
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Investments

Investments in Equity instruments
Unquoted investments *

Investment in subsidiaries:

5,00,351 (31 March 2023; 14,248) equity shares of Nepali Rs 100,
fully paid up, of SITA World Travel (Nepal) Private Limited

(31 March 2024: of these 4,86,103 equity shares were allotied as fully
paid bonus shares during the year)

190,000 (31 March 2023: 190,000) equity shares of Sri Lankan Rs 10,
fully paid up, of SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt.) Limited {of these
40,000 equity shares were allotted for consideration other than cash)

Less: Impairment loss

Investment in Associate:
4,00,000 Equity sahres of Sri Lankan Rs 10, fully paid up, of
Tropiculture {Private) Lid,

Investment in Joint Venture:
980,000 (31 March 2023: 980,000} Equity shares of Rs, 10 each,fully
paid up, of TCI Go Vacation india Private Limited,

Investments in Preference Shares

Investment in subsidiary:

43,09,894 (31 March 2023: Mil) Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference share of Sri Lankan Rs 10 each, fully paid up, of SITA
Waorld Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited allotted for consideration other
than cash

Less:  Impairment loss

* Carried at cost

Apgregate amount of unquoted investments (net of impairment)
Agpregate amount of impairment of investments

Other Non current Financial Assets

Security deposits- (Unsecured, Considered Good)*

* Financial asset carried at amortised cost

13 Road,
a5

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

425 425
0.92 0.92
(0.92) (0.92)
1.60 s
9.80 9,80
17.17 17.17
(17.17) (17.17)
15.65 14.05
15.65 14.05
18.09 18.09
44 34 4042
4434 40.42




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

6 Income taxes

A. The major component of Income tax expenses are as under:
(i) Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Current tax

In respect of current vear

Deferred tax

In respect of current vear

Income Tax Expense / (Credit) recognised in Statement of profit and loss
(ii) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Income tax (Credit) / Expense recognised in OCI

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under :

Profit / (loss) before tax
Tax using the Company s domestic tax rate (Current year 25.168% and Previous Year 25 168%)

Tax effect of:

Donation

ESOP

Others

Tax expense as per Statement of profit and loss

For the year ended 31 For the vear ended 31

March 2024 March 2023

6.14 (65.83)
.14 (65.83)
(1.06) 1.66
(1.06) 1.66
20.85 (282.94)
525 (7121

- 0.05

083 0.38
(1.00) (7.47)
5.08 (64.17)
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Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

6

Income taxes (Continued)

The major components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

31 March 2024

Opening Recognised in profit Recognised Net Closing

I April 2023 or loss in OCI 31 Mar 2024
Deferred tax assel
Property, plant and equipment 2311 (1.92) - (1.92) 2119
ROL! asset / liabiliry (0.27) 1.33 - 1.33 1.06
Employee benefits 2.83 5.44 1.06 6.50 9.33
Provisions 1.26 (1.12) - (1.12) 0.14
Disallowances under I'T Act 312 (0.33) - (0.33) 2,719
Carry forward losses 32523 (7.48) - (7.48) 317.75
Allowances under IT Act 141 (0.70) - (0.70) 0.71
Security Deposit - 1.33 - 1.33 1.33
Unrealised Exchange Gainloss - (2.69) - (2.69) (2.69)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 156.69 (6.14) 1.06 (5.08) 35161
Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax - - . - -
Tiabilities
Deferred tax assets [ (liabilities) 356.69 (6.14) 1.06 (5.08) 351.61
31 March 2023

Opening Recognised in profit Recognised Net Closing

1 April 2022 or lnss in OCI 31 Mar 2023
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment 24.90 (1.79) - (1.79} 2311
RO asset / liability 2.34 (261) - (2.61) (0.27)
Employee benefits 6.l6 {1.67) (1.66) (3.33) 283
Provisions 142 (0.16) - (0.16) 1.26
Dhsallowances under IT Act 1.24 188 - 1.88 312
Carry forward losses 254,35 70.88 - 70.88 32523
Allowances under IT Act 211 (0.70) - {0.70) 1.41
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 29252 65 83 (1.66) 84.17 356.69
Offsetting of deferred tax assets and deferred tax - - - - -
liabilities
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 292.52 65.83 (1.66}) 64.17 356.69




7 Income tax assets

Advance tax [Ner of provision for income tax Rs 121,12 mn] 2192 1711
[31st Mar 2023 Rs 121,12 mn)
11.92 17.11
8 Other non-current assets
Prepaid expenses 0.05 -
0.05 -
9 Trade receivables
Trade receivables - (Unsecured, Considered Good) 42403 27018
Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credic Risk a7 5.00
42410 27518
Less: Allowance for doubtfil trade receivable (0.07) (5.00)
424.03 270.18
Trade receivables includes
.62 2717

Dhues from related party
For terms and conditions relating 1o related party receivables, refer

Note 42
Ageing schedule
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from invoice date
Unbilled Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 Tatal
months years
31 March 2024
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable
(a) considered good 700 41225 4.20 0.58 - - 424.03
(b) Significant increase in credit risk - - - 0.07 - - 0o7
31 March 2023
(i) Undisputed Trade receivable
(a) considered good 424 23899 1.80 015 0.90 2410 270.18
(b) Significant increase in credit risk - - - - - 500 500
10{a) Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks :
=In current Accounts 156,09 7848
-In EEFC Accounts 101.63 5185
-Deposit Accounts ( with original maturity of 3 manths or less ) 100.00 2000
Cash on hand 478 550
362.50 155.83
10(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
above
Bank deposit (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less 14517 16017
than 12 months)
145.17 100,17
11 Other current financial assets
Security deposits - (Unsecured, Considered Good) 0.27 085
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 416 093
Other recevable - (Unsecured, Considered Good) 13.05 853
17.48 10.31
12 Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 1014 8135
Balances with Government Authorities 1809 2045
Advance to vendors - (Unsecured, Considered Good) 236.03 164,19
Addvance expenses 853 403
Staff advances- (Unsecured, Considered Good) 1.20 5
Other assets - 084
294.59 207 46
Advance to vendors includes :
Dues from related party (refer Nate 42). 045 -
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Nate 44
Staff Advances includes :
0.20 -

Duges from related party {refer Note 42
For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer

Note 42,




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
13 Share capital

Equity share capital

Authorised :

10,000 (31 March 2023: 10,000) cquity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 0.10 0.10
Issued, subseribed and paid up:
10,000 (31 March 2023: 10,000} equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 0.10 0.10
0.10 .10
i Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:
Equity share :
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No, of Shares  Amount in INR No. of Shares Amount in INR
At the commencement of the year 10,000 010 10,000 0,10
Less: Changes during the year - /]
Outstanding at the end of the vear 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10

Rights attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares with voting rights having a par value of Rs 10/~ each per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is
entitled to one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend, if any proposed by the Board will be paid
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of
the Company. the Equity sharcholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

iii Equity Shares held by holding company / ultimate holding company / subsidiaries of holding company

Equity share
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares  Amount in INR No, of Shares Amount in INR
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up held by:
Thomas Cook (India) Limited ('Holding Company”) 10,000 010 10,000 010
10,000 0,10 10,000 0.10

iv Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:

Equity share

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares No of shares No. of Shares No of shares
ka U

10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%




14  Other equity
(a) Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference shares @

i Authorised : 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

300,000,000 (31 March 2023: 300,000.000) 0.01% Non-Cumulative, Optionally Convertible 3,000.00 3.000.00
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10 each
Issued and subscribed and paid up:
199,019,396 (31 March 2023 : 199,019.396) 0.01% Non-Cumulative, Optionally Convertible 1,990.19 1.990.19
Redeemable Preference shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up

1,990.19 1,990,19

ii Reconciliation of number of Preference shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares  Amount in INR Ne. of Shares Amount in [INR
At the commencement of the year 19,90,19,396 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1,990.19
Add: Changes made during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 19,90,19,396 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1,990.19

iii Rights attached to Preference shares

Preference shares outstanding at the end of 20 years shall be converted into equity shares as per the conversion ratio of one preference shares of
Rs. 10 each into one equity share of Rs. 10 each. Failing this, preference shares shall be converted into equity shares by the Company on 11-12-
2039. The holders of these shares are entitled to non-cumulative dividend of 0.01%. Preference shares carry a preferential right as to dividend over
equity sharcholders. where dividend is not declared in respect of a financial year in the case of non-cumulative preference shares. the entitlement
for that vear lapses. In the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity sharcholders to be repaid to the extent
of capital paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares. The Company has an option to convert the Preference shares or redeem the preference

shares at any time after the end of 1 year from the date of allotment.

iv Preference Shares held by holding company

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares Amountin INR No. of Shares Amount in INR
Preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up held by:
Thomas Cook (India) Limited ('Holding Company’) 19,90,19,396 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1.990.19
19,90,19,396 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1,990.19

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:

v
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of Shares No of shares No. of Shares No of shares
Yo %
Preference shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up, held by:
Thomas Cook (India) Limited ('Holding Company”) 19,90,19,3%6 100.00% 19,90,19,396 100.00%

Tower B,




vi Aggregate Number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash:

Preference shares af Rs 10 cach, fully paid-up, held by:

Thomas Cook (India) Limited (‘Holding Company')

31 March 2024

No. of Shares No of shares
Ya
19,90,19,396 100,00%:

31 March 2023

No, of Shares No of shares
%
19,90,19,396 100.00%

vii Movement of instruments entirely equity in nature

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year

Less: Redeemed during the year

Closing Balance

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

No. of Shares Amount in [INR No. of Shares Amount in INR
19,90,19,3%6 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1,990.19
19,90,19,396 1,990.19 19,90,19,396 1,990.19

Della Square
M.G. Road
Sector-25




14 Other equity
(ii) Reserves and surplus:

Retained earnings

At the commencement of the year (828.34) (611.23)
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year 4.7 (217.11)
At the end of the year (813.63) (828.34)
Other comprehensive income:

At the commencement of the year 12.11 7.16
Add:Other comprehensive (loss) /! income for the year (3.16) 495
At the end of the year 8.95 12.11
Employee share option outstanding

At the commencement of the year 7139 69,89
Add: share based payments 329 1.50
At the end of the vear 74.68 71.39
Capital reserve

At the commencement of the year (1,633.29) (1,633.29)
Add:Adjustment on account of merger - -
At the end of the year (1,633.29) (1,633.29)
Total Reserve & Surplus {2,363.29) (2,378.13)

Nature and purpose of reserves
i.Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriations,

ii. Employee share option outstanding
The share option outstanding account is used to recognised the grant date fair value of options 1ssued to employees under the Employee stock option plan. This includes

options 1ssued to the employees of the company by Holding Company.

iii. Capital reserve
The Company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company's equity instruments to capital reserve, Capital reserve comprises of

profits/gains of capital nature earned by the Company and credited directly to such reserve.
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Lease liability

Long term maturities of night of use lease liability {including finance
lease)
[refer Note 37]

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity [refer Note 36]

Short-term borrowings

-Loans and advances from related parties

Loan availed from Thomas Cook India Limited, Holding company to
meet its general corporate purpase and working capital requirement
Loan is repayahle on demand and can be renewed for a further period
al 6 months! 1 year with mutual consent. Loan carries a fixed interest
rate and interest rate is calculated as per appropriate arm length
analysis.

*Bank overdraft facility 1s backed by corporate guarantee of Thomas
cook India Limited.

Lease liability
Current maturities of right of use lease Liability (including finance

lease)
[refer Note 37]

Trade and other payables

Due to micro, small and medium enterprises [refer Note 33]
Due to others

Trade payables includes ;
Dues to related party ( refer Note 42 )

31 March 2024
(i) MSME
{it) Others

31 March 2023

(1} MSME

(1) Others

Current - other financial liabilities
Interest accrued and due an borrowings

Accrued salary and benefits
Other fnancial liability

Current - other financial liabilities includes:
Dues to related party (refer Note 42 ).

Other current liabilities

Customers' advances

Statutory dues

Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
Compensated absences

Delta Square
M G. Road,
Sector-25

280 7732
28.01 7732
2434 14.76
24.34 14.76
690 60 690,60
690.60 690,60
L1
50.56 4378
50.56 43.78

_—

021 1431
1,076.19 65219
1,076.40 666,50

68.07 9l.14

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
2-3 years

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years

= 021 -
3420 97244 6229
= 14.31 -
3547 589.52 178
160,83 98.38
16.05 209
2.83 035
179,71 100.52
162.85 99.62
20951 23524
90.77 3844
300.28 273.68
431 im
4.31 3.01

174

408

More than 3

Tatal

0.21
1,076.1%

14.31
652,19



Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

23

(A)

(B)

24

25

26

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Revenue from operations

Sales and services

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Income from tours 4.867.75 2.207.29
(A) 4,867.75 2,207.29
Other operating revenue
Commission income 97.05 30.96
Marketing fees and other incentive income 4.43 1.41
Unclaimed credit balances no longer required, written back* 0.00 (0.02)
Excess provision written back 23,52 3.79
Export Incentives - 3.65
Other miscellancous operating income 1.39 1.59
(B) 126.39 41.38
(A+B) 4,994.14 2,248.67
(Refer Note 43 for IND AS 115 Disclosure )
* Unclaimed credit balances no longer required. written back is 0.0028 for the year ended 31 Mar 2024
Other income
Interest on deposits and investments 6.62 1.73
Interest income - others 3.17 3.98
Interest on tax refunds 0.34 -
Dividend on equity shares - subsidiary - 316l
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 0.09 0.45
Protit on sale of ROU assets (net) 2.39 0.30
Management fees income 11.25 424
Facility support income 8.80 6.95
Royalty and other income 6.99 335
Exchange gain (net) 338 -
Group Resource Income 7.90 4.52
Input tax credit on GST 9.58 5.16
60.51 62.29
Cost of tours 4,138.26 1,876.15
4,138.26 1,876.15
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and other allowances 472.92 332.23
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 18.04 15.59
Compensated absences 1.31 (0.36)
Grratuity [refer Note no. 36] 5.71 6.06
Share-based payment to employees [refer Note no. 40] 2.04 0.93
Implovee stock expense [refer Note no. 40] 1.25 0.57
14.89 10.07
516.16 365.09




Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
27  Finance costs
69.68 75.80

Interest ex pense

Interest expense on ROU lease liability including finance lease 9.92 8.55
[refer Note no. 37]
Other finance charges 6.21 0.00
85.81 84.35
28  Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense 30.60 377
Depreciation and amortization expenses on ROU Asset 49.82 53.78
80.42 85.55
29  Other expenses
Legal and professional charges 93.50 64.86
Operational lease rentals 19.39 21.03
Travelling expenses 13.23 6.50
Exchange loss (net) - 12.60
Advertisement and publicity 17.79 9.41
Repairs and maintenance — others 19.19 17.27
Electricity charges 344 5.96
Communication 5.61 5.86
Housekeeping charges 8.42 6.85
Rates and taxes 9.61 16.01
Insurance 4.09 2.81
Sales promotion 2.79 1.82
Director commission 2.00 -
Auditors' remuneration*® 4.17 3.58
Security services 3.26 2.95
Printing and stationery 1.24 0.52
Provision for doubtful debts (4.93) (0.63)
Bad debts and advance written off 1.42 0.05
Donation - 0.18
Bank charges - 241
Miscellancous expenses 8§93 2.72
213.15 182.76

A Tower B.
= [ Della Square,
M.G. Road,

Sector-25




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

* Auditor's remuneration (excluding taxes)
As auditor

- Statutory audit

- Tax Audit

-Others

In others Capacity

-Certification

Out of pocket expenses

30 Tax

Current tax
Deferred tax

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

3.42 2.97
0.23 0.20
0.30 0.22
0.22 0.19
4.17 3.58
5.08 (64.17)
5.08 (64.17)




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)

31

Earnings per share (EPS)

31 March 2024
Profit / {Loss) after tax (A) 14.71
Number of equity shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in caleulating Basic earning per share (B) 10,000
Add: Adjustment on account of Optionally Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference shares 19,90,19,3%6
Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator in calculating diluted earning per share () 19,90,29,396
Basic and diluted earnings per share
D). Basic earnings per share (A/B)" 0.00
E. Diluted earnings per share (A/C)* 0.00

31 March 2023

(217.11)

10,000
19,90,19,396
19,90,29,396

(0.02)
(0.02)

# For the purpose of caleulating equity shares out ling and the v
shares to be issucd pursuant 1o the Scheme have been considered as outstanding from the beginning of the accounting year.

ighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the equity

*The impact of conversion of compulsory convertible preference shares | in numbers 19,90,19.396] into equity shares has been considered, the effect is being dilutive,

However, it is negligible when converted to millions.

~ Basic & Diluted EPS 15 0.0014 for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Tower B, \2
Della Squars,

M G, Road,
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
ay at 31 March 20124
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32
C.

Financial instruments — Fair values

Fi ial risk gement (C
Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the nisk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities( primarily trade recetvables).

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenistics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
nfluence the credit sk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

1 eredit risk

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to
The concentration of credit nsk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large.

The Risk Management Committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness . Credit limits are established for
each customer on annual basis. Any sales exceeding those limits require approval from the Risk Management Committee ,

The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

For recogmtion of impairment loss an other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since

initial recogmtion. If eredit nsk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if eredit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL 15 used. I, in a subsequent peniod, credit quality of the imstrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the

entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on | 2-month ECL.
Y s £ ump.

[Movement in impairment on trade receivables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginming of the year 500 363
Changes m loss allowance (4.93) (0.68)
Bad debt written off - 005
Balance at the end of the vear 0.07 5.0+

Tower B,

Della Square
M.G. Road,
Seclor-25
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;i

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difticulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is fo ensure, as far as passible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation.

The company's principal source of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents; bank overdraft and the cash flow that is generated from operations. As of 31
March 2024 company have negative working capital of INR 1,058 11 mn including cash and cash equivalent of INR 362.50 mn ; other bank balance of
INR 145,17 mn and current investment of INR Nil. As of 31 March 2023 company have negative working capital of INR 1,034.44 mn including cash
and cash equivalent of INR 155 83 mn ; other bank balance of INR 100,17 mn and current investment of INR Nil. The Company has obtained support
letter from its holding company to meet it's working capital requirement, Hence the Company does not perceive any liquidity risk,

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements

Contractual cash flows
31 March 2024 Carrying amount Total Less than 6 =12 maonths 1-1 years 2.5 years More than 5 years
months
ROU Lease Obligation {including 7857 8248 27.09 7.0 26.91 0.58 -
|finance lease)
Short Term Barrowing 690,60 690,61 690,60 - - 2 g
Trade and other payahles 1,076.19 1,076.19 1,076.19 - - - -
Trade payables due to micro, small and 0.21 0.21 0.21 - - " -
medium enterprises
Other financial liabilities 179.71 179.71 179.71 - - - -
Contractual cash flows
31 March 2023 Carrying amount Total Less than 6 months 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5years  More than 5 vears
ROU Lease Obliganon (including finance 12110 13547 616 26.63 54.84 2783 -
lease)
Shart Term Borrowing A9 60 BO0, 60 690,60 - - & 5
Trade and other payables 65219 65219 652,19 - - B .
Trade payabies due to micro, small and 1431 14,31 1431 - - - «
medium enterprises
Other financial liabilities 100,82 100.82 100 82 - - - -
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C,

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and
pavables and long term debt. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and the market value of our
investments. Thus, our exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating activities in foreign
currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and costs.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of other pavables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee,

Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in dfferent currencies converted to functional currency)

The currency profile of linancial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as below:

31 March 2024

31 March 2024 31 March 2024

3 March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2024

LKR ALUD UsD EUR JPY GBP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents* 0.0 - 67.39 17.57 1.13 1592
‘I'tade receivables and advance to vendors - 011 263.82 28.00 5.71 39,95
- 011 332 45.63 6.84 55.87
Financial liabilities
Trade payvables and advance from customers - - 144.81 1531 0.19 .11
- - 144.81 1531 0.19 311
Net exposure in INR - 0.11 186.40 20.32 6.65 52,76
* Cash and cash equivalents is 0.0048 as on 315t March 2024 for LKR
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
LKR AUD Usnp ELR IPY GBP
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 41,08 844 074 259
Trade receivables and advance to vendors - - 116.65 1103 - 1 86
- - 157.73 19.49 0.74 4,85
Financial habilities
Trade pavables and advance from customers = - 18646 24,54 - 6:72
- - 186 46 24.54 - 6,72
Net exposure in INR - - (28.73) (3.08) 0.74 (1.87)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the year.

LER
AUD
Usn
EUR
Py

GRBP

Average rale

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.26
54,75
82.93
§9.74

0.57

104.06

0.25
5503
8039
8375

059
96 85

Year-end spot rate

31 March 2024
0.28
54.11
8341
£9.88
0.55
105.03

31 March 2023
025
3503
8217
39 44
062
101 65
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Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies as mentioned above at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
would have aftected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in the respective currencies and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forgeast transactions to be held in

the foreign currencies.

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

31 March 2024

1% movement

Usp 1.86 (1.86) o -

EUR 0.20 (D.20) - -

Py 0.07 (0.07) - -

GRP 0.53 (0.53) - -
2.66 {2.66) " -
Profit or loss Equity, net of tax

Effect in INR Strengthenimg Weal o Strength Weakening

31 March 2023

1% movement

UsD (0.29) 0,29 - "

EUR (0.05) 005 - .

IPY 001 (0.01) = =

GHP {0.02) 0.02 - -

((LE5) 085 - 5

Interest rate risk

The Company's investments are primarily in fixed rate interest bearing investments/Loans. Hence, the company is not significantly exposed to interest rate

risk.
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Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2 October, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be
made relating to dues to Micro and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, following are the details of’

dues to Micro and Small Enterprises.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The amounts remainmg unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
— Principal 0.21 1431
— Interest - -
The amount of mierest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act, 2006') along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year

- 013

The amounts of the payments made to miero and small suppliers beyond the appomnted day dunng each accounting
year

The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year ) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006,

The amount of nterest acerued and remainimg unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further mterest remaining due and payable even n the succeeding vears, until such date when the
mterest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Segment reporting

The Company is in the business of providing travel and related services to its corporate customers which is considered by management as the only reportable
business segment taking into account the nature of the business, the risk and returns, the organisation structure and internal reporting system. The travel and
related services includes tour operations and travel management services, arranging air tickets, hotels, sightseeing, visa and other related services.

Capital Management

The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital
Total equity — retained profit, other reserves. share capital. share premium

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital
structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs.
We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of the underlying assets

The Company aims to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a
stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development
and growth of 1ts business. The Company’s focus 1s on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility
for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain,
or if necessary adjust, its capital structure, The Company is not subject to financial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements.

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal 1s to return excess liguidity to

shareholders by distributing dividends in future periods.
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36 Employee benefits

A, The Company contributes to the following post-employment benefit plans in India,

(i) Defined contribution plans:
The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salarics, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance Corporation, Labour Welfare Fund and National Pension Scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company has no
obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of profit and loss as they acerue,
Amount contributed to defined contribution plan and recognised as an expense in the Statement of profic and loss are as under:
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
| Emplover's contribution to provident fund 17.02 14.66
Emplovec's State I Corp 0.03 06
Labour welfare fund 018 LN E]
NPS Contribution .51 0,73
Taotal 18.04 1559

(ii)  Short Term Employee Benefits:
Leave obligations - p d absences
Effective | January 20117 there has been a change in the Leave Policy as a part of a Group alignment initiative. As per the new leave policy, every employee
will be allotted 30 days of leave in the first week of January. No leaves can be carried forward to the next year whereby, the leave balance left unutilized on 31
December shall lapse. During the year, a sum agpregating to INR 131/~ mn [31 March 2023: INR (0.36)/- mn] has been recognised as an expense in the
Statement of profit and loss.

(iii)  Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in aceordance with the Payment of Gratuity Aet,
1972, The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount

based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment,

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the premium contribution called for by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) with whom the Company has entered
into an arrangement, The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of cach year. The amount of net
interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged or credited in the statement of profit and
loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the retumn actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities aver the year duc to
changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other comprehensive income’ and subsequently

not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death and permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment
of Gratuity Act, 1972 or as per the Company's scheme, whichever is more beneficial
In respect of certain employees, the Company has defined benefit plan for other long-term employee benefit in the form of provident fund. Provident fund

contributions are made to a Trust administered by the Company, The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate
of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and shortfall, if any, shall be

made good by the Company
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Gratuity
Net defined benefit asset 44.57 4552
68.91 i) 28

Net defined benefit hability
Net defined benefit (asset) / lability 14,34 14.76
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B.

Employee benefits (Continued)

M t in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability- Gratuity

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components

Defined henefit obligation Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit
{asset) liability
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opeming balance 6028 a4 1h 45.52 A3 84 14,76 1532
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 4.73 5.12 - - 4.73 512
Expected return on plan asscts - - - - - -
Past serace cost - - - . . _
Intercst cost (income) 419 415 3.31 3 0.98 .95
Scitlements ¢ benefils paid - - : - i -
9.0z 927 R 320 - ol | 6.07
Included in OCT
Remeasurement loss (gam) - - - - - -
Actuarial loss (gaimn) arising from: - - - - - -
Amount not recognised due to assel lumit - - = g 4 5
Demaographic assumptions (1.34) - - {1.34) -
Finaneial assumptions 1.05 {230 - - 1.05 (2310
Experience adjustment 4.17 (3.63) - - 417 (3.63)
Effeet of assct coiling . - N . .
Return on plan agsets excluding interest mcame - - (0.35) 067 0.35 (0L6TY
1.88 {5.94) (0.35) 067 4.23 (hél)
Other
Contnbutions pazd by the emplover = .36 oz {036} {002y
Liabilitics assumed / (settled) % (0.48) 2 (048) - =
Bencfits paid (4.27) (6.73) (4.27) {6 73) = 3
(4.27) (720 {391 (719) (0.36) (102)
Closing batance 68,91 Gl 28 44.57 43.52 4.4 14 76
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset 44.57 45,52
Net defined benefit habality 68.91 a2
Net Movement 4.34 1476
Plan assets- Gratuity
Plan assets comprise the following
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investment in Gratuity Fund 44.57 45.52
44,57 4552
The major categories of plans assets for gratuity are as follows:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Quated Unquoted in % Queted Unguoted Total %
Insurer (LIC) Managed Funds - 44.57 44.57 100% - 4532 4552 L%,

quare,
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36  Employee benefits (Continued)

D. Dehined b Fit ohlion i Gratuity

i Actuarial assumptions

The following were the prineipal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date,

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

7.20% 7.40%
6.00% 6 00%
TALM (2012-14)  TALM (2012-14)
Ult Ult

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Mortality rate

Employee Attrition Rate 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Age 21-30 5.70% 20.95%
Age 3140 6.23% 12.03%
Age 41-50 127% 5.38%
Age 50 and above 0.40% 442%

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current longevities underlying the values of the
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date were as above,

ii. Sensitivity analysis- Gratuity
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuartal assumptions, halding other assumptions constant, would have aftected the
defined benefit obligation by the amaounts shown below,

31 March 2024

Increase Decrease
Discount rate {0.5% movement) (2.58) .76
77 (2.62)

Future salary growth (1.5% movement)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of

the assumptions shown,

il Risk exposure for gratuity

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to band yields, if the plan assets underperform this yield, this will
create a deficit. Further any decrease in the bond yields will increase the plan liabilities. The plan assets investments are in unquoted secunties which are
subject to interest rate risks and the fund manages the interest rate risks to an acceptable low level

a)

b) Salary growth & Demographic assumptions - The plan is of a final salary defined henefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it
underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan, In particular, there is a risk for the company that any adverse salary growth or demographic experience or
inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future, Since the benefits are lumpsum

in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity nsks,

c) Majarity of the plan assets consist of Insurer (LIC) managed funds which offers the best return over the long term with an acceptable level of nisk, The plan

asset mix is in compliance with the requirements of the respective local regulations.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions for gratuity

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2025 is INR 3 millions. The weighted average duration of the defined
benefit obligation is 7.73 vears (Previous year 6.74 vears ) The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuty 15 as follows:

Particulars Less than a Between Between Over 5 years Tatal
year 1-2 years 1-5 vears

March 31, 2024 - Post Employment Obligations 16.55 389 12.20 104.38 137.02

March 31, 2023 - Post Employment Obligations 460 14.70 1346 7744 L10.20
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37 Leases

ii)

As Lessee:

‘Property, plant and equipment’ comprises owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property.

Right-of-use assets

Opening Balance (A)

Additions during the year(B)
Disposal/ transfer during the vear (C)
Depreciation charge for the year (D)
Closing Balance (A+B-C-D)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

121.38 41.35
2.84 133.81
0.35 -

49.82 53.78
74.05 121.38

Right-of-use assels are mainly office premises and vehicles taken on lease.

Lease liabilities

The following is the movement in the lease liabilities:

Opening Balance (A)

Additions during the year(B)
Disposal/ transfer during the year (C)
Interest on Lease Liabilities (D)
Payment of Lease Liabilities (1)
Rent Waiver (F)

Closing Balance (A+B-C+D-E-F)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

121.10 50.64
222 121.99
9.92 8.55

54.67 59.39
= 0.70

78,57 121.10

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current 50.56 43.78
Non Current 28.01 77.32
Total 78.57 121.10

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year

One to five year

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease liabilitics as at 3 | March 2024

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

55.00 52.79
2748 82.68
82.48 135.47
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37 Leases (Continued)

iii)  Amount recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Interest on Jease liabilities
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Short-term leases and low value leases

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
9.92 8.55

49.82 53.78

19.39 21.03

79.13 83.37

iv)  Amount recognized in Statement of Cash Flow

Total

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Repayment of lease liabilities 44.75 51.53
Finance cost paid towards lease liabilities 9.92 8.55
54.67 60.08

The lcase payments have been classified as financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flow under Ind AS 116, The lease payments for
operating leascs as per Ind AS 17 - Leases, were earlier reported under cash flow from operating activities.

v)  New Leases

In the current year, ROU building assets of INR 2.22 mn [ INR 119.84 mn in FY 2022-23] and ROU Vehicle leased assets of INR Nil [ INR

2 16 mn in FY 2022-23] have been capitalized.

vi) Extension options

‘The lease contracts of the company contain extension/rencwal options which are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The
Company includes in its lease term such extension/renewal options that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise. If the lease is extended
beyond the renewal term, then the lease rentals will be mutually agreed between the parties based on the fair value of lease rent at the time of

extension.
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Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities
a Service tax that may anse in respect of which the Service Tax Department is in appeal (in respect of some earlier vears,
appeals covering the same issues have been decided in favor of the Company by the appellate authonties)

159.93 159,93

b The Han'ble Supreme Court of Tndia ("SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others v/s FPFO. set out the principles based on which allowances paid 1o
the emplovees should be identified for incl in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contnbution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has been filed and is

pending before the 8C for disposal

Management has accounted for the liability for the period from date of the SC order to 31 March 2019, Further, pending deciston on the subject review petition and directions from the EPFO, the impact

far the past period, if any, 1s not ascertainable and consequently no effect hus been given in the accounts,

Capital Commitment:

The company has « ling capital as on 31st march 2024 against Capex purchase orders amounting to INR 5.80 mn (315t March 2023 - INR 31.75 mn).

Code of Social Security, 2020
The Indian Parliament has approved the code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contribution by the company towards provident fund and gratuity. The effective date from

which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are yel to be framed, The company is in the process of carrymg out the evauation
and will give appropriate impact in financial statements in the period in which code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Corporate social responsibility
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having:
a. net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or

b. turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more, or
¢, net profit of rupees five crore

is required to be spend 2% of the average net profits calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the three i ly preceding fi ial years towards CSR.

Since the Company daes not satisfy any of the above parameters in FY 2023-24 & FY 2022-23, it is not required to spend any amount towards CSR, Pursuant to this, CSR obligation of
the Company for the FY 2023-24 & FY 2022-23 15 Nil.
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A

Delta Square

Share-based payment arrangements:
. Description of share-based payment arrangements

. Share option programmes (equity-settled)
Thomas Cook India Limited, the parent company has granted Employee Stock Options to the Company's employees under various plans, Under these plans.
the holder of the vested options are entitled to purchase the shares of the parent company at exercise price preseribed in the plans at the respective date of grant
of the options.
The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these plans are as follows; All options are to be settled by the delivery of shares after completion of

vesting period.

Plan Grant date No, of options  Exercise price Vesting period Expiry Period
GT25AUG2015 25-Aug-15 10,000 16592 3 vears 1-Aug-28
GTOTNOV2O016 T-Nov-16 4,65,594 100 4 years 1-Nov-40
GTI3JUN2O R [3-Jun-18 2,18 900 137.93 3 years 10-Jun-31
GTOSOCT2018 5-Oct-18 39,989 1.00 5 years 20-Sep-43

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices

Plan Expiry Period Exercise price Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023
Share Options Share Options
GT25AUG2015 [-Aug-28 16592 6,800 6,800
GTOTNOVIOLG6 1-Nov-40 1.00 19,676 19,676
GTI3JUNZOM8 10-Jun-31 137.93 172,600 188,900
GTOSOCT200E8 20-Sep-43 .00 - 39,689
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 803 Years 10,77 Years

. Measurement of fair values

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, expected volatility,
option's life, the share price at grant date, expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expecied dividend yield and the risk free
interest rate for the term of the option,

Modification of share based payment schemes:

The Thomas Cook India Limited (TCIL) in a composite scheme of arrangement demerged its Human Resources Services Business and transferred it to Quess
Corp Limited (Quess). The scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) with the appointed date as April 1, 2019, The effective date
of the scheme was November 25, 2019 when both TCIL and Quess filed the certified copies of the order with their respective jurisdictional Registrar of
Companies.

As a part of the composite scheme, Employees whose ESOPs were outstanding on the effective date will be entitled to the additional shares of Quess on
account of the demerger of Human Resource Business. Instead of altering the exercise price, TCIL provided additional award in form of Quess shares

The employees are now entitled to shares of Quess along with those of TCIL in the same share entitlement ratio prescribed in the scheme for the other
shareholders of TCIL

In case of vested ESOPs, the employees will be granted shares of TCIL and Quess only on payment of the exercise price. In case of unvested ESOPs, the
emplovees will be granted shares of TCIL and Quess on completion of the remaining vesting period and payment of the exercise price.

The options, to the extent, which are settled by shares of Quess do not meet the definition ol a share-based pavment arrangement because the value of shares of
Quess 1s not based on the price or value of TCILs equity instruments or any of its group entity’s equity instruments.

The options to the extent which are settled by shares of Quess will be considered as an employee benefit within the scope of Ind AS 19,

The options settled by shares of TCIL continue to be considered as share based payments and are accounted as per IND AS 102,
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Share-based payment arrangements: (Continued)

Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The number of share options under the share option programmes were as follows,

Thomas Cook ESOP Sch

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Add: Options granted during the year

Less: Options lapsed during the vear

Less: Options exercised during the year

Options outstanding as at the year end

GT25AUG2015

Number of options

Number of options

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
6,800 6,800
6,800 6,300

Thomas Cook ESOP Sch

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the vear
Add: Options granted during the year
Less: Options lapsed during the vear

Less: Options exercised durmng the year

Options outstanding as at the year end

GTOTNOV2O016

Number of options

Number of options

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
19,676 1,45,734

= 1,26,058

19,676 19,676

Thomas Cook ESOP Sch

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the vear
Add: Options granted during the year

Less: Options lapsed during the year

Less: Options exercised during the year

Options outstanding as at the year end

GT13JUN2018

Number of options

Number of options

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
1,858,900 188,900
8,150 3
8,150 -
1,72,600 1 88,500

Thomas Cook ESOP Sch

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year
Add Options granted during the year

Less: Options lapsed during the year

Less: Options exercised during the year

Options cutstanding as at the year end

GToS0CT2018

Number of options

Number of options

31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
39,989 39,989
39,989 5

- 39.989

. Expenses/shares option outstanding account arising from share based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment related transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefil expense were as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Employee ESOP expenses 2.04 0.93
Employee Stock Exp 1.25 0.57

Delta §L1uﬁre
M G. Road,

Seclor-25
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41 Analytical Ratios

Ratio Numerator D inat 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 %o change Reason for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilites 0.54 0.42 29% 3
The change 15 on account of
increase in business in current
year as compared to last vear The
Receivables and Cash/Bank
balances have increased at a
higher pereentage than Pavables
Debt- Equity Rano Debt consists of borrowmgs | Total Equity (2.06) (2.09) 1% |No Major variation
and lease lhabilities
Debt Service Coverage ratio| Profit/ (loss) before interest, |Borrowings principal payments, 184 (2.21) 183%| The ratio 15 improved on account
alter taxes and depreciation  |interest and lease payments of Increased profit available for
and amortization the payment of interest
Return on Equity ratio Profit/ {loss) after taxes Average Total Equity = {Opening {0.04) (0.77) -95% | Company has moved form losses
total equity + closing total to profits in current vear,
equity )2 However, the total equity is still
negative which makes such
variance
Inventory Tumnaover ratic | Cast of goods sold Average Inventory NA NA NA|Company 15 in the business of
operating Tour Services and no
inventory 1s maintamed. Hence
ratio 15 not caleulated.
Trade Receivable Tumover |Revenue from Operations Average Trade Receivable = 14.02 12,89 9% |No Major variation
Ratio (Only Income form tours (Opening Trade Recervable +
considered) Closing Trade Receivable)/2
Trade Payable Tumaover Cost of Services and Other | Average Trade Payables = 4.99 496 1% No Major varation
Ratio expenses {Opening Trade Payable + Closing
Trade Payable)/'2
Net Capital Tumnover Ratio [Revenue from Operations Average Working capital = {4.77) (2.56) -B6% | Ratio has improved because the
{Opening Net Current assets | revenue has increased
Closing Net Current assets)/2 significantly in current year
However, the average working
capital 1s in negative for current as
well as previous year
Net Profit ratio* Profit! (loss) after taxes Revenue from Operations 0.00 (0.10) 103%|Company has moved form losscs
to profits in eurrent year due to
which the ratio is improved
Return on Capital Profit/ (loss) before interest  [Capital Employed = Tangible net (0.29) {0.51) -44% | In current year, company has
Employed and taxes warth + Total borrowings + Lease eamned profit, However, the
lrabilities capital employed 15 still negative
which makes such variance.
Remrn on Investment Income generated from Average invested funds in market NA NA NA|Not applicable, due to no
invested funds in market = {Opeming funds invested in mvestment
market + Closing funds invested
in market )2

*Net Profit ratio 1s 00029 for the vear ended 31 March 2024




Travel Corporation (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Sfor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Millions unless otherwise stated)
42 Related party transactions

(A)  Names of related parties with whom control exists

Name of the parties

Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited

Relationships

Parent Company of Travel Carperanion {India) Limited

Tltimate Parent Company. Canada

(B} Subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships

Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company

SITA World Travel Lanka (Pvt) Limited
SITA World Travel Nepal Private Linuted

(C)  Fellow Subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Mame of the parties Relationships

Fellow subsidiary of the Company
Fellow subsidiary of the Company
Fellow subsidiary of the Company
Fellow subsidiary of the Company

SOTC Travel Linited

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited
Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Sterling Holiday Lid {Darjeeling)
Sterling Holiday Lid {Fernhull)
Sterling Holiday Lid (Elkhall)

Fellow subsidiary of the Company
Fellow subsidiary of the Company

(D} Associates with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships

TCI Go Yacation India Private Limited Associate of the Company

Tropiculture {Private) Limied Associate al’ the Company

(E)  Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Name of the parties Relationships

Other related party
Other related party
Other related party

Luxe Asia Private Limited
Allsec Technologies Lid
Quess Corp Limited

TC Tours Limited
National Collateral Management Services Limited Other related party
Asian Trail Holdings Lid [ATH]| Other refated party
Astan Trail Lid Other related party

Hornzon Travel Services LLC Other related pary
Oiher related pariy

Other related pary

Desent Adventures Tourism LLC
Private Safans (East Africa) Lid Other related party

Kuoeni Private Safans (Prv ) Ld Other related party

Travel Circle International Lid Other related party

Digiphote Entertainment Imaging LLC Other related party

(F)  Key Management Personnel

Name of the parties Name of the key management personnel

Mr Dipak Deva

Mr Sanjay Shrofl

Mr, Vineet Mahendru

Mr. 8 8 K Sastry Ganmella

Managing Director
Chiel Financial Officer
Chuef Operating Oificer
Company Secretary
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42

(G}

(H)

Related party transactions (Continued)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Particulars Year Holding Subsidiary Fellow Associate  Other Related Total
Company subsidiaries Party  Management
Personnel
Sale of services 2024 31.86 - - 10,97 104.95 - 147.78
2023 314 - - 430 #03 - 43.47
Purchase of services/ (Reversal of purchase) 2024 EE 11371 97.82 - 063 - 212,16
2023 - 4650t 2703 = 68 - 74.5%
Facility Support Income & Management Fees 2024 - - - 20.05 - - 20.05
2023 - - - 1321 - - 13.21
ESOP and Stock Expense Charge 024 3.28 - - - - - 328
023 1 50 - - - - 1.50
Rent charges 2024 243 - - - - - 243
2023 273 - - - - - 273
Corporate guarantee fees /(Income) 024 001 - - - - - 001
2023 - - - - - - -
Raoyalty Income 2024 - - - - - 6.99
2023 - - - - - 1355
Reversal of Rovalty Income 2024 - 7.50 - - - - 7.50
2023 - - - = & &
Dividend Income 024 - - - - - “ -
2123 - 36l - - . = 6l
Expenses reimbursed 024 731 - 3.24 - 16 - 1mnr
2023 LY - (] - 0.07 216
Management Consultancy Service Income 2024 1.97 " 0,09 - 583 - 7.89
2023 341 - 3l - 478 - £90
Management Consultancy Service Expense 2024 3691 - - - - - 3691
2023 1793 - . . . . 1703
Loan taken 2024 - - - - - =
2023 LRI - - = - 8004}
Interest charge on Loan Availed 024 69.39 - - - - - 69.39
2023 7580 - - = - - T5.80
Salaries and other emplovee henefits to KMP's 2024 - - - - - 91.91 91.91
2023 - - - - - 4055 40.55
[ ission and other benefits to 024 - - - - - 310 310
directors 2023 - - - - - 1.30 130
Related party transactions
[Particulars Year Holding Subsidiary Fellow Associate  Other Related Key Total
Company Party  Management
Personnel
Balance as at 31 March
Receivable 2024 - 1.68 - 337 25.02 .20 32T
23 - 21.37 - 350 2,90 - 2177
Payables 2024 BT75.47 36,37 8,66 041 .59 .02 911,52
2023 42671 4652 669 - 2l 1.23 88116

Della Sq
M G. Road,

Seclor-25
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42 Related party transactions (Continued)

(1) Related party transactions:
Particulars Holding Company 2024 023
Sale of Services Thomas Cook {India) Linuted 31.86 31.14
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited & =
ESOP and Stock Expense Charge Thomas Cook (India) Limited 3.28 1.50
Rent Charges Thomas Cook {India) Limited 243 273
Corporate guarantee fees Thomas Cook (India) Limited 001 0.00
Expenses reimbursed Thomas Cook (India) Lamited 7.31 all
Management Consultancy Service Income Thomas Cook (India) Limnited 1.97 381
Management Consultancy Service Expense Thoemas Cook (India) Limited 3691 3793
Loan taken (net of repayment) Thomas Cook (India} Limited - A0
Interest charge on Loan Availed Thamas Cook (India) Limited 69.39 7580
Payahles:
Loan Payable Thoemas Cook {India) Limited 690.60 a00 a0
Interest Payahle Thomas Cook (India) Limited 160.83 9838
Trade Payable Thamas Cook (India) Limiled 24.04 37.73
(J)  Related party transactions:
Particulars Suhsidiaries 2024 023
Purchases of services SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 113.71 46,04
Raoyalty Income SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 6,99 135
Reversal of Royvalty Income SITA Waorld Travel Nepal Private Limited 7.50 -
Dividend Income SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited - 3lal
Receivable:
Royalty income Receivable SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 2.68 21.37
Payable:
Trade Payahle SITA World Travel Nepal Private Limited 36.47 46.52
{K) Related party transactions:
Particulars Fellow Subsidiaries 024 2023
Purchases of services Sterling Holday Resort Lid 0.53 238
Sterling Heliday (Ooty) Lid - 0.03
Sterling Holiday Lid { Darjeeling). 010 -
Sterling Holiday Lid {Fernhll). 002 -
Sterling Holiday Lid (Elkhill) .03 -
SOTC Travel Limited 59,30 2504
Tropiculture (Private) Limited 39,78 v
Credit note against services received SOTC Travel Limited 1.94 1.31
Expenses reimhursed SOTC Travel Limited 324 .98
Expenses recovered SOTC Travel Limited .09 0.3l
Payable:
Trade Payable Sterling Holiday Resort Lid, 0.07 73
Sterling Holiday {Ooty) Lid. - a3
Sterling Holiday Resons Limited-Fernhll* (0,00} -
SOTC Travel Limited 8.60 5.91

*Payable to Sterling Holiday Resort Limited - Fernhill is (0.0004) as on 31 March 2024,
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42 Related party transactions (Continued)

(L) Related party transactions

Particulars Associale 2024 023
Sale of Services TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 10,97 4.30
Facility Support Income & Management Fees TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 20,05 13.21
Receivahles:
Trade Receivable TCI Go Vacatien Private Limited 3.37 380
Payahle:
Trade Payables TCI Go Vacation Private Limited 0.41 +
(M)  Related party transactions
(Particulars Oiher related party 2024 2023
Sale of Services TC Tours Lumited 104,95 803
Purchases of services Quess Corp Limited 0.20 22
Allzec Technologies Lid. 0.42 038
Management Consultancy Service Income TC Tours Limited 1.30 177
Asian Trail Holdings Lid |ATH] 0,03 .05
Aszian Trail Lid 4.40 276
Horizon Travel Services LLC 0.03 0.05
Desert Adventures Tounsm LLC 0.03 005
Private Safaris (Fast Africa) Lid 0.03 005
Kuoni Private Safans (Ptv ) Lid .03 0.05
Travel Cirele Internatonal Lid 001 [ixe)|
Expense Recovered Allsee Technologies Lid, 0.02 0.07
Asian Trails (Vietnam) Company Limited 014 -
Receivables:
Trade Receivable TC Tours Limited 23.08 043
Agian Trall Holdings Lid | ATH] i3 010
Agzian Trail Lid 1.37 1.55
Honzon Travel Services LLC - .05
Desert Adveniures Tourism LLC - 003
Private Safaris (East Africa) Lid - 002
Kuom Private Safans (Py. ) Lid E: 070
Travel Circle International Lid - 0.01
Payahles:
Advance to Vendors TC Tours Limited 0.45 -
Payahles:
Trade Payable Astan Trails (Viemnam) Company Limited 014 g
Quess Corp Limited 0.02 0.02
Allsec Technologies Lid. 0.43 .19
{N)  Transactions with key management personnel
Particulars 2024 2023
Salaries and other emplovee benelils 1o KMPs 91.91 40.55
Commussion and other benefils 1o non-executveindependent directors 310 1.30
Receivables:
Employes Advance Recaivable 0.20 =
Payables:
Comumission Pavable - -
Emplovee Pavable 0.02 1.23
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43  Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

i} Details of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company, net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Revenue from operations:
Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
~Travel and tour related services 4,969.23 2,243 31
4,969.23 2,243.31

ii) Disaggregate Revenue
The following table presents Company revenue disaggregated by reportable segment:

Revenue based on product and services:
Revenue from contract with customers

Particulars

-Travel and tour related services

31 March 2024

4,969.23

31 March 2023

224331

4,969.23

22433

iii) Contract balance

(ayContract Assets :

A contract asset is the night to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If the Company performs by rendering services to a customer
betore the customer pays consideration or before pavment 1s due, a contract asset is recogmised for the eamed consideration that 1s conditional.

The contract labilities primarily relate to the unbilled revenue from customers for which revenue has been recognized based on the performance obligation /
services delivered, however billing of same 1s vet to be done.

Changes in contract assets are as follows

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 4.24 -
Revenue recognised during the year 4,867,735 220729
Invoices raised during the year (4,864.99) {2,203.05)
Balance at the end of the year 7.00 4,24

(b)Contract liabilities :

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received [rom customers for which revenue 1s recogmized when the performance
obligation is over/ services delivered.

Advance Collections 1s recognised when pavment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the
customer towards In-bound tour packages. Revenue from inbound tour packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on

the date of arrival of the tour,

Advance from contract with customers

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
-Advance collected from customers 209.51 235.24
209.51 235.24

| ARAT
(3\' 7 U/l‘
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Other Statutory Information

(1) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or is pending aganst the Company for holding any Benamu

property

(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of such charges which are vet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the

statutory period

(i) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like Lo or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(v} The Company has not received any funds from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not undertaken any transaction with struck off companies during the year.
(vi1) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey) or any other relevant provisions of the Income-lax Act, 1961

Struck Off Companies

The below are the details for the transactions undertaken by the Company with the struck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

Name of Struck off Company Nature of transactions with Struck Transaction Balance Transaction Balance Relationship
off Company during the year Outstanding during the year Outstanding
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | March 31, 2023
Evers Hotels & Tourism Pyt Ltd |Purchase of Tour Services - - 0.05 - |Supplier
Pan Club Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Purchase of Tour Services B - 0.07 - [Supplier
Thoras Tours & Exports Pve Ltd. |Purchase of Tour Services - - 0.06 - |Supplier
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46 Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under
Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the
Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international as well as specified domestic transactions (if applicable) entered into with the
associated enterprise during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by the end of the stipulated timeline, as required by law. The
Management is of the opinion that its international as well as specified domestic transactions (if any) are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will
not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.

Significant accounting policies
The notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Travel Corporation (India) Limited
[CIN: U63040MH2001PLC131693

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

<ol N '
—— -~ Madhavan Menon

Kaushal Mehta Dipak Deva
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 118321 [DIN:02030005] m
Mumbai Gurugram Gurugram
15-May-24 10-May-24 10-May-24
5 S K Sastry Garimella

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Gurugram Gurugram
10-May-24 10-May-24



SOTC Travel Limited

Balance Sheet
ax at 31 March 2024
(AN amount in Rs Millions, unless othoinwise stated)

Now Al Asad
A1 Nlnrek 2024 31 Mareh 2023
1 ASSETS
{1) Non-current nssels
(@) Praperty, plan and equipment 2 g 3059
(b Right of use nsets 21 109,38 150.64
() Goodwill - 2.3 26,85 26,83
{8 Othet Difangilile assers 23 1542 1258
{e} Intangible assets under development 23 = 0
{f) Financial assots
{i) bvestments 3 88493 §84.93
(i) Other findncial assots 4 28,73 3241
(0. Deferred tas assels {nel) 35 320,99 53879
(h) Tncome tay assels (net) [ 219.89 109,66
Total non-voreent sysels 1,646.10 1,787.08
2) Current assets”
{n) Finuneial assels
(i) Trade répeivablos 7 466.38 437.43
{i1) Cash and cash ¢quivalents - & ' 300.81 23487
(i) Bank balances ofher than cash and eash cquivalents 9 - 20,19
{v) Lonng 1 B <
9 Othier finaneial assels 1% 211,99 LAY
(1) Other ciirvent assels 12 §80.90 BI543
Total current assets 1,860.08 1.534,94
TOTAL ASSETS 3,506.18 .3,322.02
. EQUITY ARND LIABILITIES :
(1) Equify . . :
() Equity share vaphal 13 0,10 030
(1) Other Equity 14 358,04 304,74
Total Equity 35824 304.84
(2) Non-current liabilitics
(@) Bomowings 15 0116 126,96
(b Lease Habilines 2/ 84.06 123,060
(e} Provisions {7 53,25 4416
Total Non-current Habilities 239.07 294.72
(3) Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(3} Bobrowings 18 3187 39.47
(i} Lease Habilities. 16.a 4288 42.81
(ifi) Trade payables :
Total outstanding dies of Micrp and Small enterjwises 19 7.62 0.16
Total duistanding dues of creditors-other than Micro and Smisl] eiterprises 19 1.219.83 1,320,18
{ivyOther Tinancial liabyilities : 20 15,01 14.53
{b) Pravisions 2 HH3 34.24
(c) Other current labilisies 22 1:527.93 123107
Total Current Linbilities 290887 272246
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,506,18 33202
Material accotniting policiog 14
Notes 1o the financial siatements 243

The notes referred 1o above form an integral partof the financial slatements
As pur aur repor{ of even date atiachid

For BSR & Co, L1
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248WAW- Jon022

o
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Bhavesh Dhupelia
Partier

Membership No: 042070
Mumbai

15~ May-202Y

For sd o1 behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Madhavim Menon
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Farroukh Kolah
Chict Financind Ofiicer
Mumbai

-

SOTC Travel Limied
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Vishal Suyrj

Managing Divector
{DIND D41 3721
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" “;huli.\ Gupta
Campam Secrerary
{US No A24076)
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SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 dareh 2024

(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulnrs

(1) Income

(#) Revenue from operations
(b} Other income

Total income

(2) Expenses

(a) Cosl of services

(b) Emplovee henofits expense

{¢) Finance cosis

{d) Depreciation and amortization expenses
(&) Otherexpenses

Total expenses

{3)Profit before exceptionn! ffems and fax

#) Exceptional items

(B)Profit before tax

(6) Tax expense:

(8) Curren tax

{b) Deferred tax

(7) Profit after tax

(8) Other coniprehensive Loss (0CI)

Items that will not he veclassified to profit or (Joss)

(1) Remeasurements of defined benefit (liability) / asset { Note 36)
(i} Income tax expense on reimeasurenients o defined benefitHability Lasset)

Other comprehensive Loss (netof income tax) (i-i)

(9) Total comprehensive Income for the year

(14) Earnings per Equity share (Face value of Rs, 10 each)

(i) Basic { Rs)
(i) Diluted

Materialaccounting policies

Noles 1o 1he linancial statements

The notes veferred 1o above form an integredl pant of the Tinancial statements
As per our report of cven date attachud

For BER & Co. LLP

Chartered Aceouniants

Finn's Registration No; 101 m\’\t 100022
¥

2. h clj\'v"‘ﬁ/w”’”

Bhavesh Dhupelin

Pariner
Membership No: 042070
Mumbai

5~ Muy - 2024

Note

t: L&
5, o'ty
Yoo A

iy
i

28

&

CRAS O N A S Ak

e hTATha VAR Menon

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 Marel; 2024

9,890.84 5.523.62
1110 12.95
6,907.94 5.836.57
8,197.92 4,699.00
74958 546.29
41,32 C59.00
7218 6640
565,32 - 299,50
9,626.92 ‘ §,670.29
27502 166.28
27502 166,28
219.22 . 63.35
55,80 _ 102.93
{1.86) [4.84)
150 , 2.00
(0,36) (2.80)
55,44 100.09
5,580.09 10,293.05
0.65 1,20

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SOTC Travel Limited
JJCIN:U63040M B 2001 PLCIA1691]

Ao
i "
Dy
Vishal Suri
Managing Divecior
[DIN: 064137713

S

et

Chairvian
[DIN: B0008342]

. ;\3}'}

Shaily Gupta
Company Secrefury
[0S N A2407]

Farroukh Kolah
Chict Finuncial Officer
Mumbai

03~ May ,Q/Oltl



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of cash flows (Continned)
dor theiyear-ended 31 March 2024

(Al amotnt in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balanes Sheet
Cash and Bank Balances aspér Balance Sheet
Cash and Cash cquivalents ni restated as at the year end

Note:
Cowmponents of cash and eash.cquivalents consists of: [Note 8]

Cash on hand
Balance with Banks
Curvent Account
- Depsit Account (with oviginal maturity of 3 months of loss)
Less: Bank Overdrall

For the year ended
31 Mareh 2024

For the yenr endid
31 March 2023

Reconefliation hetween opening and closing balaneés in the Balance Sheet for Habilities Arising Trom fimaicing activities

Opening Ternt Loan from Bank
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Closing Term Loan from Bank

Notes:

I, The above statement of cash [low has been prepared under the *Indirect methad' ds set oitin the Indian Avcoupting Standard (IND AS) 7

flow™,

Material accounting policies
Notes 1o the financial statements

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of the 1' nangial statements

As per-our-repoit of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
lnnn]{cmsl%(y No: 101248\\’/\\’ 100022

'Mm-‘“
g 1

Bhavesh Dhupelia

Partner
Membership No: 042070
Mumbai

1$-May - 2024

Amound » Amount
300,83 207,32
300.81 20732
17081 74.87
13000 180,00
. - {47.55)
3bo.81 20732
138.88 82.04
- 56.84
(10.18) -
12873 13888

Note
1B
2-43

“Statenent of cagh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors off

| L‘«Q}aml M\J\”’V\

—
e IAARRYEN Menon
B v s ’
- Chairman

[DIN: 00008542

- i /Jl .
L N N \{;; \m

Farroukh Kalah

Chief Financiad Officer

Mumbai

SOTCTravel Limited
/ [CINIU63040MHB2001 PLC 131691

£3
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» //

Vishal Suri
Managing Director
{DIN:06413771)

A% y?\\
frf/\;
b
£
Shaily Gupta
Company Seerciary
JOS No: A24078)

©3- May-2025



SOTC Travel Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2029

(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise siated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adiustinents for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on Right-of use assels
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipmeit
Gain on Lease lability
Share-based payment expense
Unelaimed credit balances no longer required, written bagk
Bad debis and advances written off

Loss-allowaneg for expected credit lasses, doubtful advances and depostts (nef)

Interest income - others

Interest income on Infer-Corparate Deposits
Interest income on fixed deposits and investments
Interest ontax refunds

Finance costs

Waorking capital adjusiments
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables
{Increase) / Decrease in loans and advances

Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables; other financial Jiabilities and current labilities

Increase /{Decrease) in provisions

hicome tax refund (net)
Net cash flows (rsed) infgenerated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payment for purchase of intangible assels

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment & intangible
Interest received

Repayment of loan given

Loan given

Repayment of Joan taken

Loan taken

Fixed deposits (placed)redeemed during the year (net)
Net cash flotvs generated from in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Payment of Lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Nei decrease in cash and eash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cashiand cash equivalents at the end of the year

L
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For'the year ended
31 March 2023

275.02 166,28
16.44 10.36
46.71 48.46

9.63 7.39
{0.03) 0.13)
0.03) 2.03)
(2.04) 3.606

(83.04) (12398
14312 10.56
.20 1043
254 -

. {0.28)
{1913 (1.29)
0.57) (5.38)
4132 - 59.10

308.87 183.33

38397 (263.39)

(268.62) (495.90)

293.58 925,39
1494 {1.72)

309.80 347.71

(119.66) 29,22

190,14 376.93
(15.99) (22.64)
(11.76) (3.38)

0.06 0.3

4.41 1.56

- 120.00

“ (120.00)

(460.00) (290.00

460.00 290.00
22,19 (3.03)

(109 (27.36)

- 56.84

(10.15) -
(56.40) {55.97)
(29.01) (43.92)
(95.56) (43.03)
93.49 306.52

207.32

300.81
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All'amotints in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1A

1B
1B.1

Note 1

Company overview

SOTC Travel Limited {"the Company') formerly known as SOTC Trave] Private Limited is public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in Tndia. The
Company is engaged in diversified travel and travel related businesses, working as travel agent and tour operator having registered office at 11th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, N.M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai-400 013,

The financial statements were approved and authorised to issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of diredtors at its meeting held on 03
May, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

(8)

()

(e)

(d)
®

@)

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind ASY as
notified by Ministty of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with tule 4 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to-time that are notified and effective as af 31
March 2024,

Basis of measurement

Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value,

* defived benefit plans ~ defined benefit obligations less plan assets measured at fair value, and
+ share based payment - measured at fair value

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees "(INR)" or "(Rs.)" which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are
rounded off to nearest millions ("000,000) except where otherwise indicated. Wherever the amount is represented as 0’ {"zero") it construes a value
less than half willion

Foreign currency translation and trapsactions
Functional and presentation currency

A Company’s finctional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment ini which an entity operates and is notmally the currency in
which the-entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

(ii.a) Initial recognition

(ii.b)

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are translated into the fumetional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction,

Subsequent recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are catried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setilement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monelary
items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the statement of profit and
loss.

All monetary ifems denominated in foreign currency are restated at Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) rates and the exchange
variations arising out of settlement / conversion at the FEDAI rates are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Going Concern
As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s net worth is Rs 358,24 Mn. The Company during the year has made a net profit of Rs 55.80 Mn (FY 2022-
2023 Profit of Rs. 102.93 Mn). The Company has also assessed fhe impact on the future cash flow projections on the basis of significant
assumptions as per the available information and based on this analysis the company is expecled.to.

future r
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B4

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP") in India requires thal management
makes judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of Assets and Liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. The estimates and assumptions used
in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual resulls could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any
revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Jdndgments

Information abeut jndgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is incluided in the following notes

Note 23 - Determination of whether a particylar service is rendered in the capacity of a principal oragent
Note 30 (ii) - Determining the anjount of expected credit Joss on financial assets (including trade receivables)
Note 2.2 - Lease classification

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the fiviancial
staterment is included in the following notes:

Note 1B 2 - Going Congerh

Nofe 2 - Estimate of useful life used for the purposes of depreciation annd amortisation on property plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Note 5 - Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used;

Note 36 - Measwrement of defined benefit-abligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 4, 7, 11, 12 and 23 - Recognition and measurement of provisioris and contingencies: kéy-assumptions about the likelthood-and magnitude of
an outflow of resources

Note 30 - Impairment of financial assets

Note 2 - Impairment of non financial assets

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration paid for services. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue from
rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes and discouits.

(@)

Y Performance linked bonuses from airlines are recognized as and when the performanc

Income from operations

The Company eams revenue from travel and related services.

Travel and related services

It comprises of leisure tours packages within India and outside India along with travel related services viz travel insurance and visa services.
Revenue on leisure tours / holiday's packages are recognized on the completion of the performance obligation which is on the date of departure of
the tour.

It also includes income from the sale of airline tickets is recognized as an agent on the basis
tickets, as the Company does nof assume any performance obligation post the confinn

commission earned, at the time of issuance of
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B4

Revenue recognifion {Continued)

)
®

(i)

Contract balances

Coritract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the costomer, If the Company performs by rendering services 1o a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before paymeni is due, a coniract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is
conditional.

Contract Habilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. 1f a

customer pays consideration before the Company renders services o the customer, a contract liability-is recognised when the payment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Customer Loyalty Program
The Coripatly operates'a customer loyalty program. The Loyalty Program allows customers to accumulate rewards points on their travel spending

as per the scheme. The poiiits give rise to a performance obligation as it entities customers for redemption as setlement of future purchase
fransaction price.

Consideration ieceived is allocated between the sale.of travel packages and contractual liability for points issued.

Consideration allocated 1o reveard points as a contractual liability is deférred and recognized when points are redeemed or when the points are
expired.

Consideration allocated to reward points is deferved and recognized when points are redeemed or-when the points are expired. Reward points are
redeemable by the customers in the future periods for booking either holiday, flight or hotel with the Company. Revenue against the reward points
is recognised when redeemed by the customers for travel bookings with the Company, Reward points which remain unredeemed af the time of
expiry of such poinis are recognized as revenue,

Taxes on income

The income fax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable-on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and labilities atiributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Incoime tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it
relates to jtenis recognised in “Other comprehensive income or directly 1n quity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other compréehensive incame” o
directly n equity, respectively.

&)

Current tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enzcted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet
date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. Interest incomefexpenses and penaldes, if any related to income tax are
included in current tax expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation fé‘-fsxlbjecl‘ to
. . . o . . e o N o
interpretation, 1t establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expesied tax authorifies The cdinpa x;-‘:Qifsets
Wilie current tax assets as against the liability for provision for tax. @ /
) Hith Float,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year.ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions; unless otherwise stated)

B3

1B.6

Taxe$ on income (Conlinued)

(b) Deferred tay;

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance shest approach, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary

differences arising between the tax base of assets and labilities and their cartying amourt, excepl when the deferred tax arises fiom the initial
recognition of an assel or lability in a transaction that is 1ot a business combination dl]d affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction,

Deferred fax assels are recognised to the extent thaf it is probable that taxable profit will be available agaiust which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred taxes on items classified under Other
comprehensive income ('OCTY has been recogmsed in OCL

The carrying amownt of deferred fax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to fhe extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available 1o allow all-oi part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Deferred fax assets and liabilities are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply fo taxable income in the years in which the temporary différences are expected to be recéived or
setfled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they telate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on @ net basis,

Leases

The company as a lessee

The company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, vehicles and office eqiiipnient's, The company assesses whether a confract
contains a lease, at inception of'a contract, A contract i$; or contains, a lease if the contract canveys the right to control the use-of an-identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right-to control the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whethes:
(1) the contract involves the use of an identified: asset

(2) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset ﬂn ough the period of the lease and
(3) the company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognizes a “Right of Use” {"ROU”) asset and ‘a corresponding Jease Lability for all Jease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (shori-term leases) and low valus leases. For these shori-term
and Tow value leases, the company recognizes the Jease paymenis as an operating expense on & straight-line basis over the terin of the Jease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized af-cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made af or prior
to the conimencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cogt less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the ledse liability.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shoiter of the lease terny and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease paynients. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a fermination option.’

The company as a lessor

Leases for which the company isa 16%’01 is classifi ed as a f’ inance or opelatmg lease, Whenevel ‘(])L terms of the ]ease uansfex substdnhal]y all the risks

{ .
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.7

1B.8

Impairment.of assets

(a)

)

Financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is fmpaired. A
financial asset is jnmipaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event hias occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that-asset that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a «debtor, restructuting of an amount due to the
Compatiy on terms that the Company wounld not otherwise consider, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptey, the disappearance of
an active market for a security. The entity considers evidence of impaiiment for recejvables for each specific asset. All individually significant
recefvableés are assessed for specific impaitment.

An impairment loss in respect-of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is caleylated as the difference between ifs carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated Tuture cash flows discounted af the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized.in statement of profit
and loss and are reflected as an allowance account against receivables, Interest on the impaiied asset continues 10 be recagnized as income through
the unwinding of the discount, When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment Toss is
reversed through statement of profit and loss,

The company assess at each date of Balance sheet whether 4 financial assets or group of financial assets is impaired. In accordance with Ind-AS
109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) madel for measarement and secognition of inmpairment Toss on the financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

The Company follows “siimplified approach’ for recognition of fmpairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial assefs and risk expostive, the Company deterrhines that whether there hag been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, The Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company doss
not track changes in credit risk, but instéad recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each repurting date. The Company has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experlence, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to fhe debtors and
the economic environment,

Non financial assets

Goodwill is tested annually for impairent, or more frequently-if events or changes in circumstances indijcate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impaimrent whenever events or changes in eiroumstances indicate that thie carrying amount may ot be recoverable. An
impairment Joss-is-recognised for the amount by-which the asset’s carrving amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating umits). Nop-financial assels other than goodwill that suffered inipainnent are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Total impairment loss of a cash generating unit (CGU) is allocated first 1o rednce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU -and then to
the other assets of the CGU pro-rata.on the basis of the carrying amount of each assel in the CGU. Animpaimient loss on goodwill is recognized in
the statement-of profit and loss and is not reversed in the subseguent period,

Casl and eash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques/drafts on hand, remittances in transit, balances with ‘bank held in current account, demand
deposits with original maturities of three months or less, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, hls,hly liquid investments with

original maturities of thiree months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an mswmﬁcax

igk of changes

m value, and bank overdrafis. Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of an entity's cash manavemem aﬁa arze,h\\‘g]udcd as a

mponent of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in currgpefiTanar fakilitics in the bahnce 19%, ;
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.9

Financial instruments

()

()

()

(d)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the entity becomes a patty to the contractual provisions of the instruments, Transaction costs are expensed in
the statement of profit and loss, except for financial instruments carried at amortized cost, where transaction costs are adjusted in the amortized cost
of the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, dre subsequently measured af amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(*FYOCT*) or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL?) on the basis of:

(i) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

() Measured at amortized cost: Financial assefs which have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding and is held within a business model with the objective of holding the assets to collect contractual cash flows, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR') method, less impairment, if any. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking info
account any discount or premium on acquisition and feés or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortization is ineluded in interest
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the stafement-of profit and loss. On derecognition,
gain or loss, if any, is tecognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income : Financial assefs which have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal ouistanding and is held within a business model whose objective is achisved by both collecting contractual
cashflows and selling financial assets, is meashred at fair value through ofher comprehensive income, 1t is subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in the other compréhensive income (“OCI"), except for inferest income which is recognised as ‘other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the BIR method. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to “other incone’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(ili) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: A financial asset not measured at either amortised cost or FYOCI, is measured at FVTPL.
Such financial assets are measured af fair value witly all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised as
‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value (except for investment in
subsidiaries). Equity instruments which are held for trading are measuied at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may, on initial
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOC] or FYTPL. The Company makes such election on an Instrument-by-instrument
basis, Fairvalue changes on an equity instrument shall be recognised as ‘other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Comparny has
elected fo measure such instrument at FVYOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instroment measured at FVOCT are recognised
in OCL Amounts recognised in QCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss, Dividend income on the investments in
equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the company’s right to receive payments is
establishes.

Investments in subsidiarfes

Investments in subsidiaries are cariied af cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy on impaitment of non-
financial assets is disclosed in Note 1B.7(b). On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fiom the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
contractual rights 1o receive the cash flows from the asset, On transfer of the financial asset, the Company evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither wransferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and iewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the C mnpan){‘é.'_C'“'il(fiw1i§?§ifﬁ@¥;\@1nenl. In
that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferved asset and the associated liability are ﬁ:)gg ur ; ~wilue basis
\)@ reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained, i

-\
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts in'Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.9 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial Habilities

(r) Initial recognition and measurement:
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial labilities not carried at FVTPL. Financial liabilities carried at FVTPL are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit and Joss:

(b) Subsequent measurement;
Fifiancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method, Financial liabilities carried at FYTPL are measured at fair value
with-all changes in-fair value recognised in the statement of profit-and Toss.

{c) Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
lisbility is replaced by another from thie same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recagnised at fair value on the date on which a derivative coutract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the Tair value is negative.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assetls and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on @ net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultanecusly, The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defaull,
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the coimterparty.

1B.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset's cairying amotmt or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the ftem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mainienance are charged to the statement
of profit and loss during the period in which they aie incurred. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of assets which are carried at cost is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable fo the
acquisition of the dtems. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The depreciation rates are
prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, If the management's estimate of the useful life-of a fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the
asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter or Jonger than that envisaged in the aforesaid Schedule, depreciation is provided at
a higher-or lower rate respectively, based on the management’s estimate of the useful lifefremaining life.

Assofs Estimated useful life (in years)
Furniture and Fixtures 5
Office Equipment's (including air conditioners) 3
Vehicles 5
Computer hardware 5

Leasehold hmprovements are amortised over the period of the lease or useful life of the asset whichever is lower.

Praperty. plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Capital work-in-progress",

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each fingnéial

1}'}611(\{1 and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cogloFiTEatsinThe assels” residiial-yallié

i 1@%}1\:! lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An assel’ 80 g s mt{fs i) nediately l-‘lﬁ Hditecoverable
. N N - . . . < 1 b i .
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is grealer than its estimated recoverable amddridy Mﬁ“é‘ﬁ%"'ﬁ@ ) “I\ﬁncd L‘fi\'% onparing
g{?ceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the statement of profit and los NO,;;,{;W,?,Q
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jorthe year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.10

1B.11

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible Assels are stated at asquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and aceumlated impairment Josses, if any. Intangible assets are
amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amortization period and fhe amortization method are reviewed at least af each
financial year end, If the expecied useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined 4s the difference between the net disposal
progeeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income of expense in the statement oFprofit and loss,

The carrying value of these intangible assets is reviewed at least annually for impairment and adjusted to the recoverable amommt if required.

) Goodwill

Gowdwill on business combination is included in intangible assefs, Goodwill is hot amortized but it is tested for itpairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in-circumstatices indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment festiig, The allocation is made to those cash-generating units pr company’s of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill atose. The units or company's of units are identified at the Jowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal managertient purposes, which in our case are the operating segments,

(i) Computer software

Costs asgociated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs those are divectly attributable
to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible asse(s when the
following criteria are met:

« it is technically feasible (o complete the software so that it will be available for usg

- management intends fo complete the software and use or sell it

« there is an ability to use-or sell the softivare

« it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economiic bénefits

» adequate technical, financial and other resources fo complete the development and to use or sell the software  are available, and

» the expenditure attributable 1o the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software incliude employee costs and an appropriafe portion of rélevant overheads.

Computer seftware
Amortisation methods and perjods:

Assets Estimated useful Life
(in years)
Software 34
Borrewings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of {ransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for hquidity services and
amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred o another party and the consideration paid, mcludmx. any
non-cash assets transferred or Habilities assumed, is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as current babitities.ynless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the habl

Eﬂel the reporting period. % & {30 b
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year-ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.12

1B.13

1B.14

Provisions and confingent Habilities

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefifs will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required o settle the present obligation af the Balance Sheet date. Provisions are hot
recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recoguized if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations is more probable than not: Provisions are measured at the.present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure require to seltle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting perfod. The discount rate nsed to determivie the present value is a pre-tax rate-that reflects current matkel
assessinents of the fime value of money and the risks specific fo the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date-and adjusted (o reflect the current best estimate. If it is nio longer probable that {he outflow of'resources
would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Where there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as & whole. A provision is recogiised -even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one-item included in the same class of
obligations may be small,

Contingesit liabilities are disclosed when there is & possible obligation arising from past events, fhe existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrenice or nep-occurrence of one or more incertain Tuture events not wholly within the control of the Entity or a present obligation. that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be requived {o setfle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot

be made,

Confingent assets are néither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Other income

Jiterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable. Facility support income,
group resource income and managenient fees isrecognised on accrual basis over the period of agreement.

Employee benefits
(a) Post employmentbenefits:

(i)  Defined contribution plans
The Company’s provident fund contribution paid / payable under the recognised provident fund scheme and the employees' state insurance
contribution isrecognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related sérvice,

iy Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratnity Plan™) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, The Gratuity Plan provides alump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, ineapacitation or termination of
enmployment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. )

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is
caleulated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in refurn for their services in the current and prior periods. These
benefits are discounted to determine its present valug, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted therefrom.

Contribution to Gratuity is based on the requirement of fthe trust with whon: the Company maintains the fund balance, The Company's Hability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of each year. The amount of net interest expense calenlated by applying
the liability discount rate to the riet defined benefit liability or assets is charged or credited in the statement of profit and loss, Any differences
between the interest income on plan assets and the refurn actually achieved, and any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in
actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised immediately in ‘Other compiehensive income' and subsequently
not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

()  Short-term employee benefit

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid, e.g. salaries, short term bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

(¢) Compensated absences N
Asper the Jeave Policy of the Company, employees are entitled to avail 30 days of leave during a calendar year. Any car v
of the same is not allowed and all unutilised leaves necessarily lapse at the end of the calendaieyeas

compensated absences is calculate based on the total leave balances of each employee,

Y
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.14

1B.15

IB.16

1B.17

iB.18

1B.19

Employee benefits (Continued)

) Employee stock options ¢
The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards ~ i.e. stock options — granted to employees is recognised as personnel expenses, with a
cotresponding increase in Equity, over the period in which the employees become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted fo reflect the nuinber of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised asan expense is based on the-number of awards that meet the refated service and non-market performance conditions
at the vesting date,

Contributed equity

Equity shares are-classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable fo the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a déduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

LEarnings per share

Basic earnings per shiare is caleulated by dividing the net profit or Joss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Barnings -considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the year afler
deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the year. The weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year
and for all years presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus sharss, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change inresources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss
for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,

Business Combination

Business combinations of entities under common control -are accounted using the “pooling of interests” method and assets and Habilities are reflected at
the predecessor carrying values and the only adjustinents that are made are o harniomse accounting policies. The figures for the previous periods are
testated as if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the preceding peried drrespective of the actual date of the combination.

Cost recognition

Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according (o their primary nature. The costs of the company are broadly
categorised in employee benefit expenses, depreciation and amortisation and other operating expenses. Employee benefit expenses include employee
compensation, allowances paid, contribution to various funds and staff welfare expenses. Other operating expenses majorly include sub-contractor
charges, rent, recruitment and training expenses, travelling and conveyance, legal and professional fees and communication expenses.

Critical Accounting Estimates-and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note
provides an overview-of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted
due to estiniates and assumptions turning out fo be different than those eriginally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimaies and

judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of caleulation for each affected line itent in the Financial Statements.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgments are;

~Usefu] life of property, plant & equipment

“Estiniated useful life of intangible assel

-Estimated goodwill inmpairment

-Leases

~Impaiment of investment

-Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation

-Recognition of deferred 1ax assets for carried forward unabsorbed depreciation/ loss
~Recognition and measurement of provision and contingencies

-Fair value of financial instraments
: ;}1}Jahmem of trade receivables
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1B.20

1B.21

1B.22

Current / Non Current Classification

All assets and Habilities are classified into current and non-current:

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following eriteria:

a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

b) it’is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged-or used to setile.a liability for at Jeast 12 moniths after the reporting date.
Current assets include the cutrent portion of non-current financial assets. All othier assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A lability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

by it is held primarily forthe purpose of being traded;

c) it is due to be setiled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) the Company does nol have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a lability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, vesult in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Operating cycle:

Operating cycle fs the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation.in cash or cash equivalenis. Based oi the above definition
and the nature of services provided, the Company has ascertained its-operating ¢ycle as 12 maonths for the purpose of current — non-current classification
of asgets-and liabilities,

Change in accounting policies and disclosures
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indien Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the
following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods béginning on or after 1. April 2023, The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments o Ind AS §:

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has
also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs 1o develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the
Company's standalone financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure ments of Accounting Policies - Amendmenis to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requiremient for entities to disclose their
'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept
of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of
any items in the Company's financial statements,

(iil) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12!

The aimendmenis narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, 5o that it no longer applies to transactions thal give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences such as Jeases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate
deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its righi-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as
per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12,there is.no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as
at 1 April 2022,

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies {Indian Accomnting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards
.applicable to the Company. s S
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SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as.al 31 March 2024

(All amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2 Property, plant and equipment

Computer Liéasehold Furniture and X -~
hardware Improvements Fistures Office Equipnient Total
) Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Gross Block

As at'T April 2023 67.08 18.64 10.64 16.13 112,49
Additions during the year 15,17 0.50 0.23 0.09 15,99
Disposals during the vear 36.36 1.88 0,78 5,64 44.63
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2024 45,89 17.26 1012 10.58 83.85
Accumulated depreciation as of T April 2023 49.01 10,53 .24 15,12 §1.90
Depreciation chiarge during the year 10.85 3.4 1.82 0.53 16.44
Deduction on disposals during the year 36.36 1.88 .75 5.64 44.60
Accunulated depreciation as of 31 March 2024 23.50 1152 8.31 10.01 53.74
Carrying value as-of 31 March 2024 22.39 5.34 1.81 0.587 30.11
{ross Block Amount Amount Amvbunt Ampunt Amount

As at 1 April 2022 56.67 17.52 9.96 15.90 100.05
Additions during the year 19.24 148 1.01 0.91 22.64
Disposals during the year 8.83 0.36 0.33 0.68 10.20
Gross carrying value as of 31 March 2023 67.08 18.64 10.64 16.13 112,49
Acctimulated depreciation as of 1 April 2022 53.70 7.63 5§72 14.70 8175
Depreciation charge during the year 4.14 3.26 1.85 110 10.35
Deduction on disposals during the vear 8.33 .36 0.33 0.68 10,20
Accwmulated depreciation as of 31 March 2023 49.01 10.53 7.24 1512 81.90
Carrying value as of 31 March 2023 18.07 811 3.40 1.01 30.5¢

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 3L March 2024 31 March 2023

Note-2.1 Righit of use Assets Amount Ammown Amount Amount

Buildings Buildings Vehicles Vehicles
Gross carrying value as at beginning 31827 262.06 3.85 0.98
Additions during the year : . 510 6220 2.38 2.87
Disposals during {he year 67.23 9.05 - -
Gross carrying value ds at-year end 253.14 315.27 §.23 3.85
Accumulated amortisation as at beginning 167.91 122352 0.57 0.06
Amortisation charge during the year 4543 47,95 1.28 0.51
Deduction on disposals during the year 65.00 256 - -
Accunmulated amorfisation as at year end 148.34 167.91 {
E\Qet Carrying value as at year end 104.80 147.36
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2024

(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note-2.2 Lease linbilites

The following is the movement in lease labilities during the year
Balance as at-beginning

Additions

Disposal

Adjustments

Iivterest on lease Habilities

Payment of lease liabilities

Lease rent waiver

Balange as at year end

Classification as
Non current
Current

Note: - Below are the cotilraciual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Less than one year
Between oneand five years
More than [ive years

Rental expense recognised for short-term leases for the year ended

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Rental expense recognised for low value leases (other than short fenm as disclosed above) for the year ended

Expenses related to short team leases and low value leases

Amounts recognised in profitor loss

Lease underIND AS 116
Interest on lease Habilities (Refer note 26)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Amount recognized in Staternent of Cash Flow

Repayment of Lease liabilities-Principal amount
Repayment of Lease lHabilities-Inferest amouni

Extension options

Amount Arpount
166.41 150.59
7.48 65.13
223 8.51)
{.03)
12,31 1547
(56.40) (55.40)
- [ ¥4]
12758 16641
84.66 123.60
42.88 4281
127.54 166,40
51.67 54.88
93.67 137,35
- 3.65
145,34 195,88
55,88 25,08
55.88 25.08
12.34 15.18
46,71 43.46
59.02 63.64
44.09 40.23
12.31 15.17
5640 5540

The Tease contracts of the company contain extensionfrenewal options which are exercisable only by the Company and not by the lessors. The Company includes in its lease
term such exiensionfrencwal options that the Company is reasonably certain 1o exercise. If the lease is extended beyond the renewal term, then the lease rentals will be

{

Y;lual]y agreed between the parties based an the fair value of lease rent al (he time of extension.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as.at 31 March 2034

(AN amount in Rs Millions, unless othenwise stated)

Note-2.3 Intangibles
. Computer Assets Under

Goodwill Software deyelopment Total
Amount Amount Amount Amount
Gross carrying value as at 1 April 2023 26,85 73,29 0.71 100.85
Additions during the year - 12,47 - 1247
Dispogals during the year - - 0.71 0.71
Gross carrying value as nt 31 March 2024 26.85 85.76 - 11261
Accumulated amortization asat 1 April 2023 - 60.71 - 60.71
Amrtization charge during the year - 9.63 - 9.63
Deduction.on disposals during the year - - “ R
Accumulated antortization 2 at 31 Marceh 2024 - 70,34 « 70.34
Net Carrying value as at 31 March 2024 20.85 1542 - 42.27
Gross carrying value as af 1 Aprit 2022 26.85 6599 4.63 9747
Additions during the year “ 7.30 0.71 80!
Disposais during the year - - 4,63 463
Grogs carrying value asat 31 March 2023 26835 73.29 Q.71 - 10085
Aceumulated amortization as at 1 April 2022 - 53.12 ’ - §3.12
Amortization charge during the year B 7.59 - 7.59
Deduction on disposals during the year - - - "
Accumulated amortization as 2’31 March 2023 “ 60.71 - 60.71
Net Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 2685 12,58 Q.71 40,14
Intangible Asset under Development Ageing Schedule
0gs 1
As at 31st March 2024 Le Sié:ﬁm ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tolal
Projects in progress - - - - N
As at 31st Mareh 2023 Less than 1 year -2 years 23 years Move than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 0.71 L. T B 071
There is no delay in commissioning of the Intangible assets under development, rior the project hias exceeded its original budget.
Natore of Goodwill ‘
Goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the residual business of Kuani Business Travel.
Impairment testing of Goodwill
Tor the purposes-of impairment testing, Goodwill has been allocated as follows:
As at Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Acquisition of the business travel division 26.85 2685
26.85 2685

The recoverable amoun( was based on fair value less costs of disposal, estimated using discounted cash flows. The fair value measurement was categorised as a Level 3 fair
value based on inputs in the valoation lechnigue used.

“The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below. The values assigned lo the key assumptions represent management's assessment of
future trends in the refevant industries and have been based on historical data from both external and internal sources. ‘

As at Az at
37 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate per annum 7.85% 7.85%
Terminal value growth rale per annum VA 505
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate (average of next 2 years) per annum 5% 5%
The discount rate is post tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average of ith the possible no debt k‘}'erﬁgihg"a; d internal
rate of return of 7.85% approximaiely. £, Lot \ A
R Ttk Fioar, S, < WMBAL s
%’hg recoverable amount of Goodwill has been caleulated nsing the discounted cash flow method. ssggfl’h%w‘j{"z;«‘m /
g,
- Nesco 1T Parkd, I
Nasco Center, N
Westen Expiess Highway, e Bt
Goregaon {Fast),
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as-al 31 March 2024
(Allamount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 3 Amount Amount
Investments
A, Tnvesiments tn subsidiary company
1. Tnvestments in Equity Shares af amertised cost{unquoted)
2,108,000(31 March 2023: 2,108,000) equity shares of USD 1 each, fully paid-up, of Travel Circle International 136
{Mauritius) Limited. 6.08 136.08
136.08 136.08
11, Investmentsin preference shares at amortised cost { unquoted)
11,600,000 (31 March 2023; 11,600,000) 6% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Praference Shares of USD | each,
fully paid-up, of Travel Circle International (Manritiug) Limited. 748,85 748.85
74888 74385
#8193 R403
Less : Impairment loss - R
884.93 884.93
Aggregate book valug of unguoted ion-current investnents 88493 884.93
Extent of equity intérest in subsidiaiys
Travel Chrele International (Mauritiug) Limited B1% 519
Noted
Qther financial assets (non-current)
{Unsecured)
Secarity deposits
Considered good - ' 28.73 3041
Credit impaired 10.30 . 1030
39.03 40,71
1ess : Loss allowance (10.30) {1030
2873 30.41
Fixed deposit accounts with original maturity niove than twelve months® - 200
#Al e above FD are Jien against margin money deposits:
28,73 3241
Nofe §
Income faxes
A. The major component of inconie tax expenses areasunder:
(i) Income tax expenses consist of following
Current tax
In respect of current year w -
Changes in eslimates related o previous year “ -
Deferred tax
Deerease in deferred tax assets 21922 63.35
Income Tax espense recognised in statement of profit and loss ) 219,22 63,35
(1) Amounts recognised tn other comprehensive Income
Deferved tax expense on remeaswrements of defined benelit plans (1.5m 2,000
Income tax expense recognised in OCI (1.50) (2.00)
B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the yéar is ds under :
Profit before tax 275.02 166.28
Tax using the Company*s domestic tax rate (current year 25.17% and previous Year 34.94%)* 6922 58.11
Effeet of Tncome taxable at differential rale 151,74 .
Others {1.74)
Total 21922
Deferved tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (1.50)
21772

Tax espense as per Statement of Profit and Loss

J

14ih Floor,
Qeriral 8 Wing and
Noith § Wing.
Heseo i Parkd,
Nasce Center,
Weslern Express Highway
Goregaon (Fash).
Murabs - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes 16 the financial statements (Coniinued)

as af 31 Maveh 2024

(Al amount in Rs Millions. unless otherwise stated)

Note 8
Income taxes (Continued)

C. The major components of deforrved tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences ave as follows:

Balanee as-on Recognised in Recognised Net Balance ason
31 Mareh 2023 profit-orloss in OCI 31 Mareh 2024
Deferred tax Asset/(Liabilitles)
Property, plant and equipment {220 (L1 1418
Employee benefits 30.39 (4.06) 1.50 27.82
Tax losses 465,42 (204.43) 260,99
Provisions 30,62 (9.62) 21400
Deferred tax Asseis {Linbilities) 538,71 219.12) 1.50 320,99
Balance ag on Recognised in Recognised Net Balance as on
31 Mareh 2022 ‘profitor oss n-OC 31 March 2023
Deferred tax Asset/(Liabilities)
Properiy, plant and equipment 11.84 045 12.29
Employee benefits 28.85 0:46) 2.00 3039
Tax losses 330.25 (64.83) 46542
Provisions 2698 3,64 30.62
Other items 2,15 (2.15) -
Deferred tax Assets A{Liabilities) 600.07 (63.35) 200 538.71

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Amount Amount
D. Deferred {ax refiected in balanee sheet as follows:
Deferred tax Assels 32099 5387
Deferred tax Liabilities « .
Deferred tax Assets (net) 320.99 53871

* Prrsuant fo the introduction of Stetion 115BAA of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 ("New Tax Regime"), the Company has an-option to pay sorporate jncome tax ata lower rate vf 22% plus
applicable surcharge and cess as against the currently applicable rale of 30% phus surcharge and cess. Under the New Tag Regime, provisions of Secfion 11518 Minimun Alternate Tax
(MAT).are no longer applicable,

In the financial year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has oped fa adopt New Tax'Regine. Upon adoplion of New Tax Regimefor FY 202324, the nel tax charge is higher by Rs. 151.74
Mn. Consequently, the net impact of the above amounting 1o Rs. 219,22 Mn is aceounted for as tax expense 1 the-year ended 31 Mareh 2024,

Accordingly, current period tax expense is nei comparable with the reported tax-expense for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note 6
Income tax Asset
Advyance fax (net of provision of Tax) 229.89 109.66
. 220.89 109,60
Note 7
Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 466.38 437,33
Trade receivables eredit impaired 24.95 30.45
491,33 46778
Less - Impairment foss allowance (24.9%) (30.45)
466.38 . 437.33
Trade and other receivables fnclndes @
Dues from related parties - considered good [refer Note 38) 16.96 46,93
Movement in expeeted credit loss alipwance on trade receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year 30.45 345
Changes in loss allowaidce during the vear (5.50) (1.00)
Balance at the end of the year 24,95 30.45
As af 31st March 2024 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Months 6 m(:ltris -1 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undispuled Trade Receivables - Considered Good 431.00 26.31 585 0.00 322 466.38
Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ Credil Impaired - - 175 130 19.94 2495
Asat 31st March 2023 Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Months 6 mo\lztil‘\ - 1-2 years 2.3 >em\ M(m, than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good 387.31 44.91 0.535 ‘ n {’ 439 o x "QLW}‘}\
semuted Trade Receivables - Credi - . : 601, L R e R
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired 4.02 il HIS Wiig a1 2551 e 4
North § Wing ¥

‘ Wi

&sro 17 Parkd, T
Nesco Center,
Westen Express Highway,
Doregaon (Easl), /.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as.at 3 March 204
(Al amountin Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Note 8 Amounf Amount
Cash and cash pquivalents
Balance with banks ;
in enrrent account 17081 74,87
-~int deposit accounts (with original matrity of three months or less) 130,00 180.00
Cagh on hand - -
300.81 254.87
Note®
Bank Balances ofher than cash and eash equivalents }
Short term deposils (Original maturity more than 3 monlhs and less than 12 monihs) - 20,19
N 2019

Depasit balances (including those disclosed under-other financial assels (non-cuirent) in Note 41 include fixed deposits under lien aggregating to R Nil (31 March 2023; Ry 22.19).

Note 10
Loans
Unseeured, considered good earvied at amorgised cost except otherwise stated

Loan to velated parfies [refer Note 38)

Nute11
Other finaneial Assets (current)
(Lnsecured }

Security deposits

Considered geod 3197 §4.48
Credit impaired 14,14 21.94
45.91 76.42

Less - Impairment loss allowance {14.14) (21.94)
3197 5448

Other receivables

Considerad good 180.16 ‘ 132.60
Credit impaired 1.03 1.52
18119 13432

Less - Loss allowance (1.03) (1.52)
180,16 132.60

0.06

Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits with batks

f

21199

14th Floor,
Central B Wing and
North C-Wing,
Nesco T Pard,
{ esco Center,
Weslern Express Highway.
Goregaon {East), ;
Mumbi - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited
Notés to the financial statements (Continued)

us at 31-March 2024
(Al amount in Rs Millions, yuless otherwise stated)

Note 12

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Other current Assets
Prepaid expenses
Balaices with government Authorities
(Net of provision of’ GST recoverable Rs. 47.52 Tor Marceh 2024 and Rs. 29.23 for March 2023)
Advance (o vendors
Considered good
Credit impaired

Less ¢~ Loss aliowance
Stafl advance
Congidered good

Credit impaived

1eys - Loss allowance

Advance to vendors includes
Advance to related party - Unsecured, Considered good {refer note 38}
Advance (o related party - Unsecured, Considered doubtful [refer note 38]

Note 13

Equity Share Capital

Authorised :

10,000 (31 March 20232 10.000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.

Issued, subseribed and fulty paid up:
16000 (21 March 2023: 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up.

A. Reconciliation of nunther of shares onistanding at the beginning and end of the year :
31 March 2024

Amouni Amount
1585 5.88
41,57 36.39
§03.00 §71.31
47 1198
82447 583.29
{21.47) (11,98)
803,00 571.31
20,48 21.87
11.54 il43
32,02 3130
{11.54) {1143
3048 2187
880.90 §35.45
749 7.40
0.10 0.10
.10 010
0.10 030

31 Maveh 2023

Nu. of shares Amonni No, of shares Amount
Equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each, fuily paid-up
At the commeneement of the year 1,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Addition during the year - - . .
Quistanding at (he end of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.0

B, Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each fully paid-up

The Company has a single class of Equity Shares having face value of Rs 10 each. Accordingly, Equity Shares shall rank pari passu with regard to dividends and share in the Company's
residual assets sFler distribution of all preferential amounts, ifany. The equity shareholders are entitled to yeceive dividend as declared from time 10 time. The voling rights of an Equity
Shareholder are in proportion fo its shate of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in vespect of shares on which any call or other sums presently

payable have nal been paid.

On winding up of the Campany. the holders of Rquity Shares will be entitled 1o seceive the residual assets of the Company, remaining afler distribution of all preferential amounts in

proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by them.

. Shares heid by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company / Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2024

31 Mareh 2023

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity Shares of Rs 10-each fully paid-up held by:
Thomas Cook {India) Limited (Holding Company’) including its nominees 10,000 0.10 10.000 0.10
10,000 010 10,000 0.10

D. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares:

31 March 2024
No.of shares % of fotal shares

31 March 2023

No. of shares % of wial shares

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid-up, held by:

‘Thomas Cook (India) Limited {Holding Cormpany’) 10,000 100

E. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediz
Ngne

\11/

14th Floar,
Contsal B Wing and
HNorth C Wing,
Nesen IT Parkd,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
as a1 31 March 2024
(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Amount Amount

Note 14
Other Equity
Optionally Convertible Non -Cumiulative Redeemable Preference Shares 860.00 860,00
Retained earnings (806.78) {862.58)
Capital reserve arising out of Amalgamation £3.80 63.80
Capital Redemption Reserve 149.00 140.00
Other Comprehensive Income 648 6,54
Employee share option outstanding account 94.64 96,68

358.14 304.74
Notfes:-
) Optionally Convertible Non -Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Authorised :
106,000,000 (31" Maich 2023: 106,000,000) 0.01% Optionally Convertible Non -Cunnulative
Redesmable Prefeience Shares of Rs, 10 each. 1,060,010 1,060.00
Issued, subseribed and fuily paid up:
$6,000,000 (3) March 2023: 86,000,000):0.01% Optionally Convertible Non Cupmulative
Redoemable Preference Sharés of Rs. 10 ach.

860,00 860,00

860.00 860.00
A. Reconcilinfion -of mumber-of shares outstanding at the eginuing and end of thesyepr

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No, of shares Amount No, of shares Amount

0.01% Optionafly Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/ fach,
fully paid-np
Opening 86,000,000 860.00 $6,000,000 £60.00
Redemption during the year . M - .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 56,000,000 860,00 86,000,000 860.00

B. Rights , preferences and restrietions attached to equity and preference shares

0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulafive Redeemable Preference Shaves of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up (Preference Shares)

The Company has a single class of preference shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. These preference shares dre issued in consideration of the shamp exchange of Outbound Business
Division of SOTC Travel Services Privale Lintited to the Company as contemplated in the Conmposite Scheme of arrangement and amalgamation, The Company has issued 100,000:000
0.01% Optionally Convertible Noun-Camulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 104 each to T ravel Corporation {India) Limiled, as the residual of SOTC Travel Services Privaie
Limited (i.e. post segregation of Qutbound Business Division) is amalgamated into Travel Corporation (India) Limited, Preference shares outstanding al the end of 20 years i.e. 31 July 2037,
shall be converted into equity shares as per the conversion ratio of 1 preference shares of Rs. 10~ each into one equity share of Rs. 104 each. The holders of these shares are entitled to Non-
Cumulative dividend of 0.01%. Preference shares carry a prefereiitial right as to dividend over equity shareholders. where dividend is notdeclared in respectofa financial year in the case of
Non-Cumnlative Preference Shares. the enlitlement for that year lapses. Tn'the event of winding up, preference shareholders have a preferential right over equity sharebolders to be repaid 1o
the extent of capital paid-up and dividend in arrears on such shares, The Company has an option 1o convert the preference shares.or redeem the preference shares at any time after-the end of
1 year fram the date of allotment,

In FY 2018-2019, pursuant to provisions of Section 55 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Company redeemed 14,000.000 0.01 %
Prefeiénce Shares of Rs 10/ each at par aggregating (o Rs 140 Mn, out of the prafits of the Company and sum equal o the nominal.amonnt of the Preference Shares so redeemed was

transferred to the Capital Redemption Reserve,

€. Shares held by Holding Company / Ultimate Holding Company 7 Subsidiaries of Holding Company

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amaoun(
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumuln{ive Redeemable Prefevence Shares of Rs, 10/ each,
fully paid-up hy:
*Thomas Cook (India) Limited (w.e.{. 25 November 2019) 86,000,000 860,00 $6.000,000 60,00
§6,000,000 860,00 86.000.000 §60.00

*Pursuant to the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Order dated 10th October 2019. the Composite Scheme of Arrangement & Amalgamation amongst TC Forex Services Limited
[TCF] and Travel Corporation (India) Limited {TCT] and TC Travel Serviees Limiled {TCTSL] and SOTC Travel Management Privaic Limited [SOTC TRAVEL} and Thomas Couk (India)
Limited {TCIL] and Quess Corp Limited and their regpective shareholders (the Scheme) has become effective from 25th November2048mag part of the Scheme/arrangement. the Inbound
Business of TCT has demerged into SOTC TRAVEL and the residual business of TCH has been merged. along with the other w 'og\m@'wm wges viz TCTSE and TCT. with TCIL. TCT
ceased 10 existw.e.f. 25th November, 2019 and residual business of TCI has been merged with TCIL. {;? : { \ e
b l}g‘,lm Hedthe {ﬁﬁ

etal § Wing and
North & Wing,
Naseo 17 Parkd,
Nesca Center,
Weslern Express Highway,
Goregaon {Easl).
Humbay - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as ai 3 Murch 2024

{Allamount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Particulars of shareholders holdihg niore than 5% shaves of 4 class af shares:

31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
No. ofshares % of fotal shares No. of shares % of total shares
0.01% Optionally Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shaves of Rs, 10/ each,
folly paid-up by:
Thomas Cook (Indig) Limited 86.000.000 100,00 86.000.000 100.00

E. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immedialely preceding the reporting dafe:

100,000,000, 0.01% Now-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ each, were issued by the Company pursusnt to fhe composile seheme of
arrangement and amalgamation in the Financial year ended 2017-2018

Tn FY 2018-2019, pursuant to provisions of Section 55 atid other applicable provisions of {he Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Compauny redeemed 14,000,000 0.01 %
Preference Shares of Rs 10/ each at paragaregating 1o Rs 140 Mn, out of the profits-of the Company and sum equal 1o llie iominal ampunt of the Preference Shares so redeemed was
transferred 1o the Capital Redemption Reserve.

31 March 2024 31 Marceh 2023

. Amount Amount
ii. Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 63.80 63.80
Closing Balance 63.80 63.80
Nature and Purpose of Reserves:-
The reserve created pursuant (o Composite Scheme of Arangementand Amalgamation.
Hi Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balange 140.00 140,00
Cloging Balance 140.00 140.00
Nature and Purposc of Reserves:-
The reserve created oul of profits in event of redemption of Optionally Converfible Non:Cumulative Redeemable Preferenice Shares.
Iv, Retained Earnings
Opening Balance (862.58) 63.50)
Add : Net Loss for the year 58,80 [ (2]
Closing Balanee {806.78) {§62.58)
v, Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance 6.84 : 9.68
Add ; Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year, net of tax ) {0.36) (2.84)
Closing Balance 548 6.84
vi. Employee Share Option Qutstanding Account Jrefer Note 37)
Opening Balance 96.68 93,02
Add : Charge for the year {refer Nofe 37) (2.04) 3.66
Closing Balance 94.64 96,68

Nature and Purpose of Resérves:-
The Company has established an cquity-sctiled share-based payment plans for cerlain catepories of employees of the Company. The shares of the holding Company are issued wnder the
ESOP Sclieme to the employees of the Company.

Note 15
Long term borrowings
(Secured }
Term Loan from bank 101,16 126,96
101,36 126.96
Assets pledged s a security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security forcurrent and non-current borrowings are:
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 466.38 437.33
(31) Cash and cash equivalents ) 300.81 254 .87
(i#5) Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents - 20.19
(v) Qiher financial assels 211,99 187.10
() Other curren! assets 880.90 63543
1,860.08 1,534.94

During the year the Company has received loan amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2023 Rs. 56,71 Mn} (net of processing fees-stamyp,
second ranking charge over existing primary and collateral securities including mortgages. il any. created in the favor of bank gight

e DFC Bank Limited which is secured by way of
edeyey the assets of the borrower purchased out

of this facility. The applicable rate of interest as on balance shect date is 9% p.a. (31 March 2023 - 9.25% pa.} Howevey, ) |e:§g‘f’!@"imé§\fl Ashall change in,ncc_(_a;‘dmifc \\»l_(li\e\‘cx}’
reset’ change of lhe reference rate or change of spread by the hank. Duration of the loan is 72 month and is.repayable, £ @M\:\;‘g(}%}%% <G a moratoriaim _15é;§o?§mkédﬁ duths.
(\l;l\lcresx 10 be serviced on a monthly basis. Horth { Wing i ,:\
\/ ¥ Nasco IT Paikd, M
HNesco Center,

Western Expess Highway,
O Goregaon (Fast).
=3, N Mumbar - 400 0E3



SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Confinued)
as at 31 March 2024
(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless othersise stated)

Note 16 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other financial liabilities Amount Arnount

Lease liabilities {refer Note 2.2) §4.60 123.60
84.66 123.60

Note 16 a
Other financial Habilities - Current

1.ease Habilities - Current frefer Note 2,27 42.88 42,81
42.88 42,81

Nofe 17

Provisions

Provision for emplopee benefits - (non current)

Provision for Gratuity [refer Note 36] 83.28 44,16
5325 44,16

Note 18

Borrowings

Barik Overdraft use for Cash Management purpose- imsecured repayable on demand - 4755

Current portion of long ferm borrowing ] 21.87 1192
2757 3947

Note 19

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of Micro-and Small enterprises frefer Noie 33 7462 0.16

Total owtstanding dues of ereditors otlier thiin Micro and Small enterprises 1,219.83 1,320.18

1,22745 1,320.34
As at 3151 March 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Toess than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Tota} outstanding dues of MSME 7.62 - - - N 1.62

Total ouistanding dues of credifors other than MSME - 1,080.86 $4.42 24,88 2967 1,219.83

As at 31st March 2023 Outstanding for following periods from-dus date of payment

Unbilled Lass than 1-year 1-2 years 2-3 years Move than 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of MSME - Q.16 - - - 0.16
Total eutstanding dues of creditors ofhier than MSME - 1,176.80 81.87 35.61 2550 132018
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Note 20 Amonunt Aspouind

Other financial Habilifies {eurvent)

Securily deposits 6.48 778

Others 556 6.75
1201 14.53

Note 21

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits « cuirent

Gratuity {refer note 36] 1033 9.28

Acerued salary and beuefits 5322 -0

Compensated absences {refer Note 36] 7.68 7.26
71.03 54.24

Note 22

Other current Habilitics

Revenue received in advance 530 289

Advance collected from customers 1.432.04 1.150.40

Comtractual Liabilities 2.07 .

88.52
1,527.93

{Wﬂanccs due 1o government authoritics

14th Flgor, <<’,{)
Gentral 8 Wang and
North C Wing,
Hesco 1T Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (Fast).
Momba - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the finanecial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 Mavel 2024

{Al amount in Rs Miltions, unless-otherwise stated)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Note 23 Anount Amount

Revenue from operations

Travel and related Services 9,497,40 545730

Total Revenue from operations 9,491.40 5,457.30
Other operating revenue

Marketing fees and other incentive income 230.31 150.55

Unclaimed credit balarices no lotiger required, written back £3.04 123.98

Other miscelageous operating incoine 96,09 €979

399.44 36632

9,890.84 5823.62

IND AS 115 "Revenne Tromy Contracts with Customers'
i) Detalls.of revenue from contracts with customers recognised by the Company; net of indirect-taxes In its Statement of Profit and Loss
Revenue from contract with custoniers

Travel and related Services 9.491.40 ) 5,457.30
Total Reverune from contract with costomery 9,491.40 545730

if) Disaggregate Revenue
The followisig table presents Company revenue disaggregated by type of révenue streand and by reportable segment:

Revenue based on geography
Revenue from contract with customers

Tndia 9,101.53 5,200:02
Qverseas 389.87 248.28
9,491.40 5457.30

Revenue based on product and services
Revepue from contract with customers

Travel and related Services . 9,491.40 5457.30
Total Revenue from operations 9,491.40 545730

iil) Contract Balancey

The contract labilities primarily velale to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue 15 recognized when the perfomiance obligation is over/
services delivered.

Advance Collections is Tecognised when payment is teceived before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer
towards Teisure tour 7 holiday’s packages. Reévenue on Jeisure tours / holiday’s packages are recognized on the completion of the perfonmance obligation which is on the
date of departure of the {our.

Advances collected from customers 1,432.04 1,150.40
Total 1,432.04 1,150.40
Note 24

Ofther income

Interest Income under the effective interest method on-
Bank deposits
Loans 10 refated parties
Others

Net foreign Exchange difference

Interest on tax refunds

Profit on Sale of PPE

Profit on closure of lease

\ Miscellaneous income

A\

" 1dth Foar, ({{5
Central B Wing 8nd
Hosth £ Wing,
Nasco T Parkd,
Hesco Centet,
Wastets Express Highway,
Goregaan {Fast),
Mumba - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)

Jor the year entded 31 Mareh 2024

{All amoun in Rs Millions, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 25

Employee benefifs expense

Salaries and other allowances

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Compensated absences

Empolyee share based payment expenses (refer Note 37)

Stock options expenses (refer Note 37)
Staff welfare expense

Note 26
Finanee costs

Tnterest aid finance, charges on Financial Liabilities

-~ Interest on Ten loan

-- Intevest on Lease labilities
- literest on bank pver drafl

- Others Financials liabilities
- Bank charges

Note 27

Ofther expenses

Legal and professional charges
Advertisement and publicity

Operational lease rentals

Repairs and maintenance — others
Communication Expenses

Travelling expenses

Electrieity charges

Rates and taxes

Printing and stationery expenses
Directors commission and sitling fees
Insurance expenses

Subscription fees

Provision for doubtful debts and deposits
Bad debts and advance written off
Payment {o auditors (refer Note below 27 (a))
Miscellaneous expenses

Nole 27 (a)

Payment to Auditors
Statutory Audit fee
Tax Audit fee
Certification fee

Note 28

Exceptional item

Note 29
Earnings per share (EPS)

A. Net profit for the yesr attributable to Equity Shareholders
B. Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year

C. Basic earings per share {A/B)} (Rs)
D, Preference shares ( numbers)
\/\y Diluted earnings per share [A{(B+(")]

31 Mareh 2024

31 March 2023

143k Floor,
Conlral B Wing and
North € Wing.
Nasoo 1 Parkd,
Resco Center
Wasiern Express Highway.
Goregaon {fas)

N

Amouut Amount
668.51 477.83
3587 29.07
0.43 141
(1.26) 227
077 139
46,80 3432
749.58 546.29
12.68 9.55
1231 1518
2,02 16.94
8.44 11,35
5.87 6.08
41.32 59.10
187.87 124,80
159.72 56,79
§5.88 2508
61.97 32.72
2379 8.74
31.46 7.31
11.68 5.76
2.81 2.11
3.57 1.51
4,50 2.90
2.94 2,65
241 1.73
4.20) 1043
14.12 10,56
6.34 5.64
0.46 0.77
565,32 299,50
5.94 5.14
0.33 0.34
0.07 0.16
6.34 5.64
55.80 102.93
10,000 10,000
5,580.09 10,293.05
86,000,000
0.65




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the finaneial statements (Continted)
Jor the year ended 31 Maveh 2024

(Al amotnt in Rs Milkions, anless otherwise stated)

Note 30
Financial lstrnments ~ Fair valnes and risk management

A, Aceounting elnssification and fair values
Carrying amonnts and fair values of financiol assets, and finmucial lisbilities, focloding thetr levels i the Tair vailue Herately, are presented below:

as af 31 March 2024

Carrying amount Fatr value
Fingmeial Financial Finanelal ‘Total Lavel 1~ Tievel2 « Level3- Total
nstrignents  stroments  instrusnents Quoled price  Sigwificant Signifieant
measured at measured at  measuredag inactive  observable inputs wiobservatile
FYTPL TYTOCL  amortized eost markets nputs
Financial assefs not measwred at fair valae
Trade receivables - - 466,38 466,38 - . . .
Cashi and cash equivalents - - 300.81 200.81 - - - -
Othey bank balances - - - - - - - -
Loais
- Current - - - B - - - -
Other financial assels
- Nonceurrent {Security depesits) - - 2873 2873 - 28 . 2873
- Non-current {Others) - - - - - - - -
~ Chrent = - 21199 211.99 - - - -
- - 1,007.9 1,007.91 “ 87 « 2873
Financial iabilitles not measured af fair value
Non current Borrowings - - 10116 101,36 - 16L16 - 141,06
Current Bosowings { lncluding Bawk Overdraft) - - 2757 2157 - 187 - 27.57
Trade payables - - 122745 1,22745 - - - -
Lease liabilities
- Noncurent - = 84.66 94.66 - - - -
- Current - - 42,88 42.88 - - - -
Other finacial abilities
~Current - - 12:01 1201 - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 1495.73 1495872 - 12873 - 12873
as a1 371 March 2023 Carrying amouri Fair valne
Financial Flaancinl Fiancial Tofal Lovel 1+ Level 2+ Level3- Totil
instroments  instruments  insiruments Quaoted price Hignifieant Significant
measuved at measured at  measured at inactive  observable dupits wnobservable
FVTPL FYTOCT  amoitized cost markets inputs
Financial assets not measured a1 fair value
TFrade receivables - - 437,33 437.33 - - - -
Cush and cash equivalents - - 254.87 234,87 - - . -
Other bank balances - - 20.19 019 - - - -
Loang
~Current . . - - - - - -
Other financial assets
- Non-corvent (Sevurity deposits) - - 3041 3041 - 3041 - 30441
- Non-current {Ofhers) - - 200 200 - - - B
- Carrent - - 187,10 187.18 - = - -
- - 93150 93190 - 3041 - 30.41
Finaneial Habilities aotmeasured at falr value
Non ¢nrrent Borrowings - - 126.96 126.96 - 12006 “ 126.96
Current Borrowings (Bank Overdrafl) - - 59.47 047 - 11.92 - 11.92
Trade payables - - 1,320.34 1.320.34 - - - -
Leuse liabilhies
- Non curvent - - 123.60 133.60 - - - -
- Current - - 42.81 42.81 - - . B
Orher financial Kabilities
- Curvent - - 14.53 1453 - . - B
- - 168771 163707} - 138.88 - 138,88

Total financial Habilities

Note: The sbove excludes nvestments in Sibsidiany amounting to Re.884.9 (previous year Rs. §84.03)

The compimy has not disclosed the fair value of financials instrument such as ade receivables , rade payables, elc. hevavse their canying imonnt are a reasonable approximation of-fairvalue.

Level 1 Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices,

Level 2

o fair valoe of financial instraments that are ot raded fn an active market Js determined using valuation technigues which masimize the ure of shservable rarket duta wad r
fittle as possible o ent g

pecific extimates. 17 all significant inputs required to faiv value an instrument are observible, the nstramen Ao adere] 2,

\:an:»idemximx and indenmification asset included inJovei 3 { '
\! . 14t Floot, {Q
L Centrat 8 Wing angd
Norih C Wing.
Nesco 1T Parkd,

Hesco Centet,
Western Express Highway,
Boregaon (Fash),
thumbai - 400 083



SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial stateinents (Confinued)
Jor dhe year ended 31 March 2024

{AN amount 1 Rs Millions, unless atheivise stated)

Note 30 {Continued)

Finanelal instruntents ~ Fair vahos and risk management (Continieil)
B, Measurement of fair valnes

Vatuation techaiques and sipnificant unobservable inputs

The following tables show the vahation technigues used i measuring Level 2 and Levet 3 fair values, a5 well as the significant unchservable inputs used.

Financlad nstruments measured at fair vaine

Inter-velationship befween
stunilieant unoliservalile Inputs
andt Tairvalue measurenient

Borrowings Digcount yate to fair valie of Notapplicable Notapplicable
financidls assels and Habilities at
amartised  ¢ost i based on
gongral Jending sate,

Signifieant

Type Valuation techiigues
Typ ¢ t unohservable inputs

Transfers between Levels,
There were e Transfers io either divection-in any of the tepoifing periods

. Fuancial visk management

The Company has €xpostire (6 the following risks aising from financlal instromests:
» Credit visk

= Liguidity sisk ; and

» Marke! nigk

i Risk managemend framework

s overall v ibility for the establish and oversight of the Conipany’s risk magagement framework. The Beard of directors has-established the Risk

The Cornpany’s Board of

M C i which is 1 bie for developing and monttoring the Compiany's tigk managenent policiés. The Committee Teports régutarly 1 1he Board of directors on s
detivities.
The Company's 1isk t policies ave established fo identify and analyse fhie risks faced by the Corapany, to'set appiopriate igh Himits and-controls and to monitor risks wnd adherence o

Fmits. Risk management policies and systems afe veviewed regularly to véflect ehanges fn matket conditions dnd the Company’s setivities.

The Board overgees how monitors compliance with the ’s risk olicies and praacedures, and reviews (he ad of the risk fi ®in
£ ¥ ¥ & ): 1 &

relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board s assisted in s oversight vole by infernal audil. Internal audil adertakes both reglar and-ad hoe veviews of igh management controly
and protedures, (he results of which ave reponed o the Board,

1 Credit risk

1 6hi ),

Credit visk is he risk of financial joss to the Company if s custamer or counterpirty tea fingncial insteament Tails to mest its , andl aises from the Company's
receivables fom costomers and investments in debt securities, Credit visk primarily arises froni financial assets svclh-as trade receivables, hivestment in mutual funds, defivative fiushelils
instruments , balance with banks and other receivables,

Credit sk anising from Snvestiment In mutoed funds,destvative financials Tnstruments and balanee with banks is Yimited beoause the counterparties re bank and recognised financisds instimtion
with high credit ratings.

ot

The Company’s expostire 1o credit 1isk s influenced mainly by the individual cl istice of each . However, s the: Fagtors that inay influence the credit

1isk of its customier base, including the defacit risk of the industry ant conairy in which customers aperafe.

The Company establishes an alowance for impairment that repregents i estimate of expected Josses in réspectof trade and othér receivabies.

The average credit period on-sales of services is Jess tian 30 days. Credit risk-arksing from wade reeeivables is managed in aceordance with the Company’s established policy, procedures and
control reating to veredit risk gement, The concentation of eredit risk in timited dueto fhe fact that the customer base s large.

The Cumpany establishes an allowance Tor Impairment fhat vepresents ite-estimate of expected Josses in respect of trade and offier receivables.
31 Mareh 2024

Movement in expected ervedif Joss allowanee on trade receivabics

Balanee at the beginaing of the yewr 3045 3145
Addition duing the pericd -
Changes inloss-allowsnee duving the year (8.50)

24,95

;ggalancc al the end of the year

Y/

144 Fioar, <<
Geniral B Wing and
Notth G Wing.
Nesco IT Pakd,
Nesco Cenler,
Weslern Express Highway,
Goregaon {Fast),
Mumbai - 400 083




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
far the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

{All:amount in Rs Millions, unfess otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)
Financial instruments — Fair values and visk manngement {continueit}
fit, Liguidity visk

Liguidity risk-is the risk that the Conpany will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with fts fmancial Tiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset, The Company’s sppraach to managing Tiquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 1o meéet its 1Hbilities wiien they are due, under
‘both normal and stressed conditions, without incarding unaceeprable losses or risking damagesto the Company's feputation,

The Coimpany's principal source of Hauidity are cash and cash cquivalents and the cash flovw that is gencrated from operations, The company believes that the working capliatis
suflicient 1o, meet 5 current reguirements, accordingly no liquidity risk s perceived:

Flnaneing arvangements 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023

Parficulary

Fixed Long Term loan ~ Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme 12873 138,88

Bank tverdralt - 4735
128.713 18643

Exposure to-lquidity 1isk
The following are the remaining contractual smafurities of financial labilities at the reporting. date. The are priss and und . and sghude estimated -interdst
paymnents and exclude the impact of nelting agreements.

as a1 31 March 2024 Contractunl eash flows
Carvying Totat Lioss than § iyr 02 IS, more than 2 yrs,
Aamount year
Non-gerivative financial liabilities
Borrawings 128.73 129,19 27,93 34.85 65,52
Tracde payables 1,32745% 1227.45 122748 - -
Lease Jiabilities 127.54 14533 5167 44,12 49.54
Other financial lisbilities : 12,01 2.0 12.01 - -
149513 1,513.89 - 1,318.85 78.97 116,06
as at 31 March 2023 Coniractual cash flows
Cairyifig amoudit Towl Lass than 1 1yric 2 wis, rore tian 2 yrs.
year
Non-derivative lmancial Babilities
Borrmwings 138.88 13888 1191 2870 9827
Bank Overdrafi A7.53 47.55 4755
“Trade payables 1,32034 1,320.34 1,320.34 - -
Lease liabilities 166.40 195.87 54.88 50.23 90.76
Other financial Babilitics 1453 14.53 14:53 - -
168770 1L,217.17 - 144921 7893 159.03

v, Market risk

Harket risk s the risk that changes i market prices — such a8 fordign exchange rates, Interest rates and equity prices — will affect 1he Conpany’s income or-the valae of its
holdings of financial instewments. Marke! risk is attributable (o all-market risk sensitive financial Instrurents Inclding forgipn corraicy rectivables and pasables. We ark exposed
to markel 1isk primarly related to foreign exchange rate visk, interest rate tisk and the market value of otr investinents. This. our exposure 1o market risk is a function of
investing and borrowing activities and revernue generating and operating activities in foreign vurrency, The objective of markel sisk management is to avoid excessive exptisure in
our foreign currenty revenues and costs,

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of ils payables to foreign vendors in virious foreign curreney. The Tunctional currency of the Company i Indian Rupee,
However the Company has natural hedge, the callection from its customer is In eéquivalent TNR which canveris in various required éurreicy and park 4t in SPFC (Special
Purpose Foreign Curreniey ) accoul-and releise the pagment 16 its vendor as and when payable.

The Company eaters into foreign carvency transactions in the Leisure Travel Outbound businesses, In the Leiswre Travel Qutbound business package prices are deénominated
partly in the functional eurrency of the Company, Indian Rupees {(INR), and partly in forelgn curvencies. The portion of customer eollection i foreign currencies, which is parked
in $PFC (Special Purpose Foreign Cumency ) mecounts., s used 10 pay off vendor liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies, thereby creating anaturdl hedge. As 4 result, the
risk related 10 foreign currency exchanpe rate fuctuation is insignificant.

L
i 15 med],

Risk starts on the day of tour launch, when price is fixed in forcign currency. Tour price is coltected arovad 15 days™ 1 month in advance and kepr in SPFC accoun
- for: s

payment obligations to Foreign Servive providers.

14th Floor, <<',{§
Cenlral 8 Whng and
Kotth € Wing,
Nesco 1T Parkd,
Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon {fast).
\ Momba - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

.

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al antount in Rs Millions. unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Finandial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
Exposure to currency risk (Exposure in different carrencies converted to functional currency )

Thie currency profile of financial assets and financial tiabilities as at 31 March 2024 is as below:

as a1 31 March 2024

Amount in Rs,

UsDh EUR GBP Others
Findncial Assets
Cash.anid cagh equivalents 79.04 91.95 12.8% 94,16
Other receivibles inicluding advances 411,50 328,96 §1.88 32171
490,54 420,91 64,73 420.87
Financial Liabiiities
Ttade and ofhier payables §32.89 37503 49.92 347.69
532.89 375,03 49,92 347.69
Exchange Rates 8341 89,88 105.03
Net Exposure in Respective currencles (42,358} 45,88 14.61 73.18
ag at 31 March 2023 Amount in Rs.
usp EUR GRP Others
Fihnancial assets
Caslyand cash equivalents 11416 4647 0.98 45,87
Trade and other receivables including advances 380,82 364,83 17,63 371405
494,98 411.30 18:61 416,62
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 543,61 39242 20.47 343,47
545.61 392.42 2047 34347
Exchange rate 8217 89.44 101.65
‘Net Exposure in Respeclive cwrrencies (30.63) 18.88 (1.86) 7303

The following sighificant excliange raies have been gpplied during the year,

Average rate
31 Mareh 2024 31 Mareh 2023

UsD 82,79 78,94
FUR $0.61 96.82
GBP 10345 100.46

Year-end spot rate
31 March 2024 33 March 2023

8341 82.17
89,88 89.44
105,03

101.68

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible streiigihening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against various currencies ss menfioned above al March 31 2024 and March 31 2023 would have
affecied the measwrement of firancial instruments denominated in the respective currencies and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This analysis
assumes {hat all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast fransactions 10 be held in the foreign currencies.

March 31, 2024

Amownt in Rs,

Profit or loss

Equity, net of tax

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
1% movement
UsD 0.42) 0.42 B -
EUR 0.46 (0.46) - -
GBP 0.15 0.15) - .

March 31, 2023

Amount in Rs,

Profit or Loss

Equity (net of (ax)

Strengihening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
1% movement
usnD {(4.86) 4,86 -
ol 2 Q3
EUR -~ 183 (1.8%)
GBP Central B Wing and (0.18) 0.18
2 Horlt C Wing.
] Fesep T Parkd,
s{ Nesco Cenlet, #*
A Wesiern £xpress Highway.
Goregaon (Fash). &

Mumbai - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024,

{All amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 (Continued)

Financial instrunients — Fair values and risk managemoent (continued)
Interest rate rivk

The exposure of the campany's bormowing fo interest rate changes af the end of the reporting period are as follows:

91 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Varlable rate of borrowings 9.00% 9.25%
Bank overdraft (Weighted average inferést rate) 9.75% 9.79%
As al the end of the feporting period, the-company hiad the following fixed and variable rate borrowings:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance Yo ol fotal loans Balance % of fotal loans
Variable rate of borrowings 129,10 100 139.40 75
Bank overdrafl . - . 4755 25
Net exposure fo cash flow due fo inferest rale risk ) 129.10 109 186,95 100

Sensitivity

Profit-or Loss is sensitive (o higher/lower interest-expense from borrowings asa vesult of changes in iierest rates,
Changes in inferest rafe are based o historical movement.
Impact on profit afict tax

Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points * .97 (1.22)
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points * 0.97 1.22

* Holding all other variables constant

Note 31
Contingent Liabilities and Commitinents (to the extent not provided for)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis

a. Pisputed claims made by elients md other parties 520.52 477.54
b. Disputed Service Tax Demands 428.85 435.25
¢. Provident Fund Liability on account of pending Supreme court judgment. 3.57 357
d. Disputed incomie tax demands 1.93 193

#) 1t is not practicable for the company (o estimate the timing of cash flows, if any, i1 respert of the above pending résolution of the respective procesdings,
; } & Y ) P 4 l } g

(b) The company does not expec) any feimbursement in respeet of the above contingeit Habilities.

() The Hon'ble Supreme Court of Inchia (*SC™) by their order dated February 28, 2019, set'out the prineiples based on which allowances paid to the employees should be
identified for inclusion in basic wages for the pwiposes of eomputation of provident fand contribution. Subsequently, a review petition against this decision has been filed
and is pending before the SC for disposal, Management has accounted for the Lability for the period from date of the SC order to March 31, 2019, Further, pending
decision on the subject review pefition and directions from the EPFO, the impact for the past period. if any, is not ascertainable and consequently no effect has been given
in the accounts,

Code on social security, 2620

The Indian Parliament has approved the code on social security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards provident fund and gratuity, The
effective date from which the changes are applicabe is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifiing the financial impact are yet to be framed. The company is in the
process of carrying out the evalwation and will give appropriate impact in standalone finacial statements in the period in which code becomes effective and the related
rules io determine the financial impact are published.

Commitments {(to the extent not provided for) 31 March 2024

¥
I
st

\{. Fstimated amount of contracts renaining 1o be executed on capital account and not provide
\/ $:4th Floot,
: Central 8 Wing snd
Nurth € Wing
Nesco 1] Parkd,
Hesea Genter,
Wastern Fxpress Highway,
Goregaon {Fast)
Fumbat - 400 063
&
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

(ATl amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32
Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013

as 4t 31 Mareh 2024

§r Ko, Name of the sfruek off company Natureof il‘}{!]S:lei()]lS with Batance Relationship with the struek off company, if any,
struck off company Payable (Rs) to be disclosed
i Oneglobe Travels India Private Limited Hotel Services 237 NA
1 Sipsa Holidays Private Linuted Tour Operatoy 0.03 NA
i Unique Hotels India Private Limited Hotel Services 0.04 NA

as a1 31 Mareh 2023

SrNo Name of the sfruck off company. Nature:of transactions with struck Balanee Relationship with the strock of company, if any, 1o
SRR off company Payabile (Rs) be diselosed
i Oneglobe Travels India Privale Limied Hotel Services 1.40 NA
ii Metd Network Services Lid, IT Domain Services Q.01 NA
Note 33

Mlero and Small Enterprises

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into foree frony 2 October, 2006, certain disclosures are reguired to be made
relating fo dues to Micro and Small Enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with the management. there are ne parties registered as micro
and small enterprises,

Particnlars 31 Mareh 2024 31 Maréhi2023
The amaounts remaining unpaid to Micro and Small Suppliers as at the end of the yeur,

- Principat 742 Q.15
- Inferest . 0.01

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in ferms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Mediuni Entérprises
Development Act. 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006") along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier -
beyond the appointed day during each accommting year.

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but withoul adding the interest specified ynder MSMED Act, 2006,

The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid af the end of each accounting year - 0.0

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the sueceeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid-to the small enterprise for the purpose of disatlowsmee as # déduclible . 0.01
expenditure wnider the MSMED Act. 2006,

Note 34
Segment reporting

The Company is-in the business of providing travel and related services to its retail and corparate customers which is considered by the ehief operating decision maker
('CODMY as the only reporiable business segment taking info account the nature of the business, the 1isk and returns, (he organisation sfructure and internal reporting
system, the Company also provides {inancial services which is nof a material reportable segment and is largely considered to be an integral part of travel and related. ..
services. The travel and related services includes tour operations and travel management services, amanging air ticket3, hotels. sightseeing. visa and other related. ;
services,

4

fiater

and rewards being similar acr
2 reflective of the Information ]‘e[i\‘i

Further. the Company provides services within similar economic environments considering the origin of services and ri
markefs / environment. there are 1o separate reportable geographical segments. Accordingly, these fnancial statemer

]I‘E‘ AS 108,
L
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Coutinued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(All-amount inRs Millions, tmless ofhenvise stated)
Note 3§

Capital Manngement

“The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital;
Total equity - refained eamnings, capilal reserves, share capital.

The Company manages ifs capital so as to saleguard its ability to continve as # going concern and (o optimise retums o ow shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based
oft management’s judgnent of the appropriate balance of key elements in order (o meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amawit of capital in propartion (o risk and
manage the capita) structure in ight of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying asse(s.

The Company aims to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management, The Company's policy is to maintain 4 stable and strong capital
structure with a focus of total equity so as 16 mialitain investor, tredifors and matket confidence and 1o sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is po
keeping strong folal equity base 1o enswre independeice, security, as well as-a high financial flexibility Tof potential finure borrowings, if required, without Impacting the tisk profile of the
Comypany. The Company will take appropriate steps i order fo maintain, or if necessary adjust, fts capital structure, The Conmpany is not subject 1o fuancial covénanis fnany of its
significant financing agrezments,

The manageivent tonitors the return ort capital as well as the level of dividends to sharebolders, The Conpany™s goul is to continue to be able fo refun excess liguidity to sharcholders by
continuing 1o distribute dividends in futuwre periods,

Note 36
Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the Tollowing post-employment defined benefil plans in India.

(i) Defined contribution plans:

The Company makes contributions, detevimined s a specified poreentage 5 employee salaries, n respett of qualifying employess fuwards Provident Fund, Employee Stale Inswance
Corporation, Lahour Welfare Fund andl Natlonal Pension Seheme whicly-are-defined conteibwtian plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contribuitions,
The confributions are charged to the Statement of prafit and Jess as they sccre,

Amount contributed o defined contribution plan and recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as under:

Particulars 31 Mavch 2024 31 Marels 2023
Employer’s contribution to provident fund i 2510 2029
Enployee's State Insurance Corporation (15} B 0.20
National pension scheme 1.04 0.91
Labour welfare fund 0.04 003

(i) Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity plan

The Company provides for Gratuity using the projected unit credit method, wilh actuarial valuations being carried oul at each balarice sheet date, based on fegislations as-enacted up 10 the
balance sheet date. Actumial gains and Josses wre recognised in full in Other Comprehensiv Income in the period {h which they oceur. Past service cost is recognised fmmediately to the
extent that the benefits are already vested.

Gratuity is payable to alf eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death and permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuily Ac, 1972 or as
yer the Company s scheme, whichever is more beneficial,

Compensated absences and Joave encashment
As per the leave policy, every employee will be allotied 30 days.of leave in the first week of Tanuary. No leaves can be carried forward 1o the next year wherchy, the leave balanice Jeft
wnutilized on 31 December shall lapse. During the year, a sum aggregating to Rs. 0.43 {previous year Rs, 1.41) has been debiled 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in 1his respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan aud the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at
Balance Sheet date:

31 March 2024 31 Maich 2023

Gratuity

Defined benelil asset-Gratuity plan 2.49 413
Defined benefit lability 65,87 57.57
Net defined benefit liability 63.38 53.44
- Non-currenl 83,25 44.16
- Current .13 9.28

Compensated absences
Liability for compensated absences 7.68 7.26

Tith Floar 7106
Genlral B Wing and
Norih € wing
Hesco I Padd,
Nesto Center
Weslern Express Highway,
Goregaon (Fast).
tumbai - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 33 Maveh 2024

(AN amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 {Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Maovenent in net defined benefit (asse() Hability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the epening balances 1o the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) lisbility nnd its componenits
Defined benefit obligation Fairvalue of plan assels Net defined honefit

(asset) linbility
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 3 March 2033 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening balance as-on 1 April 2023 571,57 49,85 4,13 9.21 5344 40.64
Cuirrent service cost 575 532 . - 875 5.32
Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets - - . B . .
Expected relwm on plan assels - - - ~ - -
Past service cost ~ . - - - -
Interest cost tincome) R 2.62 0.12) 0.30 3.83 232
Setflements / benefits paid - 0.32 “ - - 0.32
9.46 8.20 0.1 0,30 9,58 196
Inctuded in OCI
Reineasureinent loss {gain): - - - B - -
Actuarial Joss (gain) 2408 409 . - 2.08 4.09
Return on plan assels exclhuding interess income ) ) 022 0.75) ©22) 035
2.08 409 022 (0.75) 186 4.84
Other
Contributions paid by the employer - - 150 - (1.50) =
Benefits paid {3.24) (4.63) {3.24) 4.63) - B
Closing balance ason 31 March 2024 65.87 $1.57 249 4.13 63.38 3344
Represented by
Defined benefit asset 2.49 4,13
Defined benefit lability 65,87 51.57
Net defined benetit Hability 63.38 5344
The major categories of plansassefs foy gratuity are as follows
Pariculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total
Instrer Managed Funds 2.26 423 249 4.12 - 4,12

Defisied benefit obligations
i. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at{he reporting date {expressed as weighied avernges).
31 pMaveh 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate T20% 7.30%
Salary escalation mte % %
Mortality rate JALM(2012-34) 1ALM (2012-14) Ux
Uit

Employee Attrition Rate

Uplo Age 30 32.99% 28.29%
Age 31-40 21.18% 24.67%
Age 41-30 17.02% 18.97%
Age 51-59 6.76% 16.20%

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current lohgevities underlying the vatues of the defined benefit obligation at the
reponiing date were a5 follows :

gs at 31 March 2024, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation wis 4.86 years (3) March 2023 : 4.06 years)

AV

{4th Floot, ({,Q
Conteal 8 Wing ang
Notth G Wing,
Hesco T Parkd,
Nesco Ceater,
Western Exprass Highway,
(orepaon {Fas).
Sumba - 400 063
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 Maich 2024

(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless etherwise siated)

Note 36 (Continued)
Employee beaefits (Continved)

i, Sensithvity analysis

Reasanably possible changes af the teporfing date to orie of (he relevant actuaiial assumptions, holding other assumiptions-constant, would have alfected the defined benefit obligation by

{lic amounts shown below,
31 Mareh 2024

31 March 2023

Ingrease Decrense ncrease Decrcase
Discount rate (2024 - 0.5% ahd 2023 - 0.5% movement) (1.57) 1.63 .13 117
Future salary growth (2024 = 0.5% and 2023 :- 0.5% movement) 1:60 {1.55) 113 {10y

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distibution of cash Hows xpected under theplan, it does provide an approxiniation of The sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

“The Following tatile shows expense recoguiised in Profir and Loss accounitand

31 Mareh 2024

A1 March 2003

Current service cost A5 532
Past service cost . .
Interes! incoiie, et 3.83 232
9.58 164
The following table shows remeasurement recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
3 Mareh 2024 31 March 2003
Actuarial loss (gain) Joss ondeferred benefit obligation 2.08 4.09
Return onplan assets excluding interest income {0.22) 0.75
1.86 4.84

Risk Exposure for grafuity

Through jts defined benefit plans, the company fsexposed (o a number of risks, (he most significant of which are.detajled below :

#) . Asset volatility: The plan lisbilities are calculated nsing 4 discount rate sel with veference To bond yields, i the plan assets underperfom this yield, this will creale o deficil, Purther
any decrease in the bond yields will increase the plan Jiabilities. The plan.assets investments are jn unquoted seerities which are subject 1o literest rate risks and the fund mavages the
inferest vate fisks to an acceptable Jow level,

b} Salary growth & Demographic assumpfions: The plan is of a final salary defined benefil in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the visks
periaining to-the plan. In particular, there is a xisk for the company thal any adverse salary growth-or demographie experience or inadequate felurns on underlying plan nssets can resull in
an ncrease in cost of praviding thest benefits 1o employees in futwre, Since the benefits are Tum sum in nature the planis not subjest 16 ay Tongevity risks.

Note 37
Share-based payment arrangements:
A, Deseription of shave-based prynient arrangements

1, Share opfion programs (equity-settled)
Thomas Cook (India) Limited, the parent company has granted employeé stock opllons to the Company's employees on the dates mentioned below, Under these plan, the holder of the
vested options are entitled to purchase the shares of the holding company af exercise price a8 mentioned below.

The key terms and conditions related to the grants undsr these plans‘are as follows;

Method of
Plan Seitlement Grant date No, of sptions Exercise price Vesting period

GTOTNOV2016 Equity 7 November 225,000 Rs. 1 100% of the options
2006 vest at the end of the

4 years e

7-Nov-2020
BSOP 2018-MGMT Equity 13 June 2018 422 000 Re. 13793 100% of the options
vest at the end of ihe

Jyearsie,

13-June 202}
ESOP 20§ 8-EXECOM Equity 5 Quiober 2018 97,258 Rs. | 100% of the aptions

vestal the end of the

S years i
5-0c1-2023
Share options outstanding at the end of the yvear have the following expiry date and exerelse prices
- Sni . ; - . March 31, March 31,2023
Grant Date Expiry date/ Explry Year  Exersise price (Rs) .]IICh l',2024 \?MCh 31 g 02
7 Share opfions. Share options
7 November 2016 1 November 2040 i - -
13 June 2018 10 June 2031 13793 149,000 173,000
5 October 2018 20 September 2043 1 .
Total 149,600
weighted average remaining contractunt life of options outstanding at end of year 7.8 Years

Y

/,M.m h
Central § w;ng angd
Horth € Wing.
Hasco T Parkd, +
Neseo Cenler,
Westen £xpress Highway.
Goregasn 1Fasi\ R
Aumpar - 400 D N
L
NN
S




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
Jorthe year ended 31 Mareh 2024

(All-andount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 37 {Continned)
Share-hased payment arrangements; (Continued)

B.-Measurement of fnir values
Equity-settled share-based payinent arrangements

The fair value of the employee share options has been measwred using he Black-Scholes formula: The Black- Seholes miodel requires the considertion of cerlain variables such ag
volatility, risk free fate, expected dividend yield, ete. for the dalculation of the Tair value of the option. These variables significantly influence the $aiv value and any changes in these
varfables could significantly affect the fairvatue of the option.

Thomas Cook (India) Limited, the halding company (“TCIL"} in a composite sehiems of arangemeént denerged its Human Resources Services Business and transfersed 3t to Qitess Comp
Limited ("Quess™). The scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) with the appointed date s April 1, 2019, The gffective date of the scheimé was Novesniber
25,2019 when both TCIL and Quess filed the ceriified coples 6f the order with their respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies,

As a pat of the composite scheme, Employees whose ESOPs were ontstanding on the effective daie will be entitled to the addliionat shares of Quess on acconnl of the demerger of
Human Résource Business. Instead of altering the exercise price, TCIL pravided additional awand in Torm of Quess shares.

The emplojrees are ndw ¢ifitled to shares of Quess along with those of TCIL inthe same share entifleent ratio-prescribed in the scheme for the other sharcholders of TCIL.

Incase of vested ESOPs, the employees will be granted shares of TCIL and Quess only on payment of the-excrcise price. I case of unvesied ESOPs, the emplayees will be pranited shares
of TCIL and Quess on completion of the ramaining vesting period and payment of the sxercise price,

The aptions, o the extent, which are settled by shares of Quess do not meet 1he-definition of a share-based payment arvangement because fhe value of shares of Quess is nof based on the
price.orvalue of TCIHL s equity nstrunients or any of its groun entity's equity instruments,

The aptions 10 the extent which are settled by shares of Quess will be considered as anemployee benefif within the scope of Ind'AS 19,

The options settled by shares of TCIL continue fo-be.cansidered as shave based payments and are agcounted as per IND AS 102,

Mareh 2024 March 2023
— . ESOP 2018- ESOP 2018 . . ESOP 2018- RSOP 2018
GTONOVIOIE ey Exgeon  OTU7NOV2016 MGMT EXECOM
Fair valve (Esop Expenses) 11778 83.65 155.80 11775 83.65 15580
Fair value (Stock Expenses) 95,29 65.71 95,21 9520 65.71 95.21
Number of options - 149,000 - - 173,000 57,326
Share price al grant-date 218.58 248,63 256,20 218,55 248.63 25620
Exercse price 100 137.93 100 1.00 137.93 1.00

C. Reconchliation of puistanding share options

The number and weighted-average exercise prices of share options-under the share option proframs-were as Tallows:

Number of  Weighted average Number of options
options exercise price
31 March 2024 31 March 2024

Weighted average
exercise price
I March2023

Particulars

31 March 2023

Options outstanditig as at the beginning of the year 230,326 103.85 238,326 10485
Options granted during the year - - - -
Optigns Exercised during the year 73,326 - - -
Optians lapsed? forfeited during the year 8,000 337,93 $.000 13793
Options outstanding as af the year end 149,000 131.93 230326 103.85
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year 149,000 137.93 173,000 137.93

D Expenses/shares oplion outstanding account avising from share based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment related transaclions recognised in profit or Toss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows;

Particnlars
Employee ESOP expenses
E%:)]oyce Stock Expenses

.Y

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

(1.26)
0.77)

14t Figor,
Contidl § Wng 605
Narth G Wing.
Nesco 1T Pard,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
asat 31 March 2024
(Al amountin Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38
Related party transactions

(A) Nanes of vélated parties by whomcontrol exists

Name of the parties Relationships
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada Utimate Holding Company
Themas Cook {India) Limited Holding Company

(B) Tarlies over whom control exists

Relationships Nate of the parties

Subsidiary Company of SOTC Travel Limited Travel Gircle International (Mauritins) Limited (Flolding $1% o total Equity,w.e.1 27 Tune 2017)
{C) TFellpw Subsidiavies and other velated parties With whon thausactions has taken place during the year

Relatinnships Name of the parties

Fellow subsidiaries TC Visa Services Jndind Limited

Travel Corporation (ndia) Limited {Amalgamated w.e.f. 25th November, 2019)
Thonids Coak Lank (Private) Limited

Sterling Holiday Resorls Limited

Asian Trails Singapore Ple Limited

Asian Tralls SDN BHD (Malaysia)

Asian Trails Limited, (Thaitand)

PT Asian Traily Limited

Asian Trafls{Vietnam) Co, Limited

Asian Trails Cotbodia

Kuoni Private Safarks (Pty) Limited

Private Safaris EA Limited

IC Totrs Liniiled {formerly known as “Thomas Cook Tours Liniited?)
Australia Tours Managemeni Ply Limited,

DI Holdings Limifed

Horizon Travel Services LLC

Desert Adventures Tourism LLC

Travel Circle International Lid Honghong

Astan Trails Holding Limited,

Kuoni Australin Holding Py Limjted

Thomas Cock (Mauriting) Operations Co Limited

Quess Corp Limited {Associbie of Fairbridge Capitat (Mauritivs) Limited)
Othier Related Parties Terrier Security Services (India) Private Limited (Associate of Quess Corp Limifjed)
Go Digit Geneval Inswrance Limited

M) Key Management Personnel / Directors and Management Counc]

Particulars Name of the key management personnel
Managlng Director M. Vishal Suri
Directors of the Company Mr. Madbavan Menon

My, Nilesh Vikamsey
Mrg.Kishori Udeshi
Mr, Rabul Bhagat
NMr. Debasis Nandy

Chief Financial Officer Mr. Famoukh Kolah
Company Secretary Ms. Shaily Gupta {w.e.f Stk Apr 2022)
Members of Management Counvil M, Vishal Suri

Mr. Farroukh Kalah
Mr. Indiver Rastogi
Mr. § D Nandakumar
Mr, Daniet Dsouza
Mg, Deepti Sheth

@. & CO‘
<) 14th Floor, <
\Y Conkal® Wens s
North € Wing.
Nesco IF Parkd,
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SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

ax at 3 -Marelh 2024
{Allamount in Rs Miltions, unless othenwise slated)

Relafed party transactions (Conitinyed)

(E

el

Related partics with ivhom transactions-has wken place during the year

Particulars Year liolding Company  Ulthmate Holding Comipany Subsidiayies Otlier Related Fellow Kuy
Parlies subsidiaries Manapement
Pervsounel and
s relatives
Income from tonrs/Sale of seryices 2024 4,29 - - 2,85 59,30 019
2023 2.06 - - 2561 -
Cost of tours/Puvchase of services 2034 236,12 - - 49.85 1,545 -
2023 199.23 - - 1,389,724 -
Guarantee fees paid 2024 4.07 - - - . .
2023 0.09 B - - - .
Expenses reimbursed 2024 15815 - - e .11 -
2023 162.90 - - . 261 B
Expenses recovered 2024 4,08 - - - 740 -
2023 6.34 - - - 4.50 -
Tnterest expenses on ROU assets 2024 3.08 - - - - .
2023 399 - - - . -
ROU lease Hability 2024 3Lse - “ E - .
2023 4395 - - - . =
Productivity linked bonus income 2024 - - - - N -
2023 - - ~ - 278 -
CRE{GDS) Income 2024 - - - - 18.33 -
2023 - = = - 6,32 .
Hotel Commission income 224 - - - 2.87 B
2023 - x - - 9.40
Term loan given during the year . 2024 - - - “ -
2023 120.00 - “ - - -
A Term loan given (repald) during theyear 2024 - - - - - -
2023 120,00 B - -
Term loan recéived during thé year 2024 46040 - - “
2023 290,00 - - E . .
Term loan veceived (repatd) duving fhe yoar 2024 460.00 - - - - .
2023 290.00 B - - B -
Interest incomme on term loan 2024 B - - - «
2023 0.28 - - - - .
Inferest-expenses on ferm loan 2024 217 - B - -
2023 210 - - -
Provision for doubtful advances 2024 oo - . - 740 -
2023 - - - - 740 -
Recelvables 2024 0.45 - - 16.51 B
2023 195 - - - 44,98 -
Advance to suppliers 2024 E - . - 140 -
2023 - - - - 740 -
Payables 2024 90.99 - - 1558 -
2023 2230 - - - 6230 -
Related party transactions (Continued)
(F) Names of parties (subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries) having related party transactions in excess of 10% in line transnetions:
Particulaus Feilow subsidiaries 31 Mareh 2024 31-Mar-23
TCHGO Vacation - 0.99
Income frem touys/Sale of services Travel Corporation (India) Limited 59,30 24.63
TC Towrs Lusited 609.38 77867
Horizon Travel Services LLC 96.36 48.13
Deserl Adventures Towdsm LLC 41,79 39379
TC Visa Services (India) Limited 0.02 {0.03)
Travel Corporation (India) Limited - 014
Cost of tours/Purchase of services Asian Trails {Thailand) 135,71 37.51
Kuoni Private Safaris (P1y) Limited 15.99 (0.01)
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited - 013
Asian Trails (Malaysia) SDN BHD 187,26 816
Astan Trails Singapore Ple Limited. 28.35 39.82
PT Astan Trails Linited 9.28 4.76
Asian Trails Co Limited Vietnam C 124.03 6,43
Asian Trails Cambodia @\, & 0, { 0.58 -
Private Safaris A Limited Q)q) 14th Floor (A:) e 3.8 3.4
1Y Australia Tours M, Py Limited. Central B Wing and p ..i e 13 1 /6390 £68.85
\} Noith C Wing T i,
’\‘ Nesco 1T Parkd,

Hesco Center.
Western Fapress Highway,
Goregaon (€ asl)
Mumbas - 400 063




SOTC Travel Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

asat-31 March 2024
{Allainount in Rs Millions, wnless othenvise stated)

Expéiises veimbiiried

Expenses recovered

Hotel Comnissivis Income
Productivify ¥iked bowus
CRS{GDS)Income

Provision for-donbtinl advances

Qther Related Parties

Koy Management Porsonnel and ity relatives

Receivables

Payables
i

Ashvaurce to-suppliers

Travel Corporation (Iadia) Limited
Travel Circle International Limited Hongkong

Travel Corporation {India) Limiled

Horizon Travel Services LLC

Desert Adventures Toursin LLC

Private Safaris EA Limited

Kuoni Private Safaris (Pry) Limited

Travel Cirele International Limited Hongkong
DET Holdings Lintited

Agian Trails Holding Limited.

Kuoni Austratia Holding Pty Limited
Thomas Gook (Mauritiug) Operations Co Limited
Thomas Caok Lanka (Private) Limited
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

TC Tours Linsited
TC Towss Litnited
TC Towrs Limited
loxe Asia Privite Limited

Go Digit General Insurance Limiled
Quegs Conp Limited.
Terrier Secyrity Services {India) Privaté Limiled

Mr Vighal St

Mrs Nobaling Swid

Ms Saakshi Vishat Suri
Mr Arvaman-Vishat Susi

Travel Corporation (tadia) Limited

TC GO Vagalion

Horizon Travel Serviess LLC

Desert Adventures Tourdsm LLC

Kuoni Private Safaris (Ply) Limited

Thomas Cook Lanka (Private) Lihited
Private Salads EA Limired

DEI Holdings Limited

Asian Trails Holding Limited,

Kuoni Austratia Holding Pty Limited
Thomas Cook (Mauritius) Holidays Limited
Thomas Cook (Mavritius) Operations Co Limited
Travel Circle International Linited Hongkong
Sterling Holiday Resoris Limited

Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Private Safaris EA Limited

Kuoni Private Safaris (Pty) Limited

Asian Tralls (Thailand)

Horizon Travel Services LLC

Dresert Adventures Tourism LLC

Thomas Cook (Mauritiug) Holidays Limited
TC Tours Limbed .
TC Visa Services (India) Limited

Australia Tours

PT-Asian Trails Limited

Asian Trails Co-Limited Vielham

Asian Trails Singapore Pre Linvited.

Asian Trails (Malaysia) SDN BHD

Luxe Asia Privale Limited

o 0y

0.11

324
0.26
0.29
020
020
0.138
145
043
0.09
0.24
0.30
0.48

287
27.21
1833

740

1812
25,75
8.83

0.08
.08
0.01
0,01

8,60
G.04
448
0.03
0.03
0.68
0.16
.46
1.58
0.36
0.67
0.02
0.01

018
265
8.67
12
215

3191

0,08
0,50
398

& Co,

0.3
230

1.68
Q17
025,
0.17
047
Q.27
(R
038
0.08
01
0.
Q.42

608
043
234
1142
038
Q38
o9
105
[RK)
Q.27
040
0.6
03
0.4

0402

238
012
11.88
0.29
101
244
179
244
197
774
0.04

iy

Weslatn Express Highway,
Mumbar - 409 083
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SOTC Travel Limited

‘Notes to the {inancial statements (Continued)

as ar 31 March 2024
(Altamountin Rs Millions, uness otherwise stated)

(G]

Es

Related prvdes with Holding and Uliimate Holding Company

Particulars

Tncome from touirs

Cost of tours and related services
“Expenses reimbursed

Expenses recoverct

Jnterest-pxpenses on ROU assefs

ROU Jease Lability

Gusrintee Fees paid

TermJoan given dlm"mg the year

“Term loap given (repald) diring the year

Term loan received during the year

Iterest ineome on tevm lnan
Interest expenses on term loan

Reeeivables

Payables

Term loan received (repaid) duving the year

Holding and Ultimale Holding Company

Thomas Cook {India) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook {India) Limited
Thomas Coole-(India) Limited
Thomas Cook {india) Limiled
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (Indie) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Thomas Cook (Indix) Limited
Thotas Cook {India) Limited

Thomas Coak {India) Limited

31 March 2024
4,29

23612

158,15

4.08

460.00

460,00

21
045

90,99

31 Marth 2023
2.06
199,23
162.90
6.34
3498
3.9
g
12000
120.00
29000
200.60

0.28

(H) Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Particulars

k!

Salariesdand oither employee benefits including pratuity o wholez(inie direciors and executive officers

M. Vishal Surd

iy, Farroukh Kelah
Ms. Sliaity Gupta
My, § D Nandakumar
Mr, Daniel Dsouza
Ms. Deepti Sheth

Commission and other benefits to nan-executivesindependent divectors

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

il

V

North C-Wing.
Nesco 1T Parkd,

. Nesto Center
Western Express Highway,
Goiegann (Fast),
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SOTC Travel Limited

Nates to the financial statenients (Continued)
as at 3 Maveli 2024
(Al amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38

Financial performance ratios Numerator Dengminatoy 34 March 2024 31 March 2023 Y% Change
A jPerformance Ratios
Net Profit ratio (i) ProfitlLoss) after tax Revenue from operations 1% 2% -G8%
Average working capital =
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) (if) Revenue from operations {Opeaing net current asses + 8.85) [CEE] 9%
Closing riet cutyent assels)2*
Capital Exployed = Tangible
Refumn on Capital Employed. (iti) Protfit(Loss) before interest andtax Net Worth ¥+ Totab Debt + 5% 36% Si%
Lease Linbilities
. o . Average total equity = (Opening
Reifurn on Equity ratio () Profit(loss) after tax total equity + Closing tolal 17% 1% ~59%
equity)/2
Average invested fund in
. Income genérated from invested fund in e yparkeps enii inthe
Retumn on Investment {iv) ! % i o markel (S)ue‘mng ﬁmd.s in the 1% &% R2t%
market market+ Closing fundsin the
markety2
: . e Profit/(Lossy before interest, taxand | Borrowings principal payments,
¢ ice Coverage 12 i ; . p s : 2,92 %
Txébt Service Coverage ratio (i) Dopresiation and morisation nterest and Jease payment 4.07 92 39%
B {Leverage Ratios )
Debi: Equity Ratio (v) Total Borrowings Total Bquity 0.72 1.16 -38%
C |Liquidity Ratios
Current 1ptio Current Assels Total Cutvent Liabilities 0,64 0.56 13%
D Activity Rafio
Inventory Turover ratio Cost v services Closing inveniory NA NA WA
Avgrage frade recoivables =
‘Trade Recefvable Turnover Ratio (il) Revenue from operations {Opening trade feceivable + 21.89 1842 9%
Closing rade receivable)/2
Average trade pavable =
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (i) Costof serviees {Opening wade payable + 4.88 447 S4t

Closing trade payable)/2

* Net current assets = Total cunrent assets - Total current liability

##Tangible net worth = Total networth - Intangible assets (including intangible asset under development and goodwill)

Reason for Variance
i Duetomigraton fo new tax regime w/s 115BAA
i Dnue io reduction in working capital andinereased in revenue from operations.
i Due 1o improvement in the business operation resulting in increased profits
v The ratio has-decreased bécause company has tepaid bank overdraf.

Noted0

Other Statiutory Information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami propely, where any proceeding has been inifiated or is pending against the Campany, for holding any Benami property.

(i) Thte Company does not have any charzés or satisfaction of such charges which are yet to be registered with (he Registrar of Compauies (ROC) beyond the Statistory period,

(i1} The Company has not traded or invested i Cryplo curreney or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

(iv) The Company bas not advanced or loaned or invested fimds to any other person(s) or entify(ies), mcluding forcign entities (1

™ 1

jes) with the wider

{a) directly or indirectly Jend or invest in ofher persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the company {(Uhimate Beneficiarias) o

{by provide any guarantse, seewrity or the like to or on behal{ of the Uliimate Beneficiaries,

& that the Intermediary shall;

(¥} The Company has not received any fund front any person(s) or entityGes), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in seriting or otherwise) that the Company shallz

{a) directly or indivectly Tendd or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ullimaie Beneficiaries) or

) provide any gliaventee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimnte Beneficiaries,

1;%! (sum as, search or su)\e\) or any oxhel rclu’am pm\'mune oi the Income-tax A\cl l%!

V

144th Fiooy, <<«3
Cenleal B Wing asd N
Notth § Wing.
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SOTC Travel Limited

Noles to the financial statements (Continued)
s ot 3 March 2024

(Al amonn dn s Millfons, unless othersdse siated)

Node 41
Translor Pricing

Thie Company bas esshlished 2 comprehensive sysiem of i ol ik fon and 4 as vesuived by the ranstic pricing legistation under Seerfons 92-92F of the Tneomedtan Act. Sinee the Ty requires
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Travel Circle International Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors submit herewith their report and audited financial statements of Travel Circle International Limited
(the “Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are to act as a travel agent and tour operator.

Results and dividends
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the statement of
comprehensive income on page 6.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year or during the period from the end of the year to the date of this
report were:

MYY Ng

MK Menon

JF Paton (resigned on 1 February 2023)
Nandy Debasis

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of Association for retirement of directors, all directors shall
continue in office.

Arrangements for acquisition of shares or debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or fellow subsidiary a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other company.

Material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

The directors are of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company’s holding company or fellow subsidiary was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Equity-linked agreements
No equity-linked agreements into which the Company entered subsisted at any time during the year.

Permitted indemnity provisions

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is in force at the date of this report, for the
benefit of a then director or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or a then
director or a director of its holding company or fellow subsidiary (if made by the Company).
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Travel Circle International Limited

Directors’ Report

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, as the auditor of the Company.

Approved by the Board of Directors signed on its behalf by

/[

MK Menon

Director /

26 APR 2024
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mazars <214 Foor Gentral lze

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report R e e
Tel &% :+852 2909 5555

To the members of . .. Fax E%E 1+852 2810 0032

Travel Circle International Limited www.mazars.hk

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

WZ have audited the financial statements of Travel Circle International Limited (the “Company”) set out on
pages 6 to 34, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the *Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the directors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Mazars CPA Limited
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mazars
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of
Travel Circle International Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

° Evgluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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mazars
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of
Travel Circle International Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

v

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 April 2024

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
Eunice Y M Kwok

Practising Certificate number: P04604
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Travel Circle International Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2023

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue
Other net gain / income

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit (Loss) from operations

Finance costs

Loss before tax

Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Note

W W

2023 2022
HK$ HKS
225,188,537 17,418,465
(190,319,024)  (13,407,229)
34,869,513 4,011,236
114,031 2,264
616,111 3,300,815
(28,714,995)  (22,629,238)
(6,484,270)  (10,415,551)
400,390 (25,730,474)
(10,702,414) (7,834,799)
(10,302,024)  (33,565,273)
399,905 4,891,000
(9,902,119)  (28,674,273)
(9,902,119)  (28,674,273)
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Travel Circle International Limited

Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2023

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Loans from immediate holding company

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Provision
Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserve
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

These financial statements

on 76 APR 202

QA Qu

MK Menon //

Director

2023 2022
Note HK$ HK$
6 2,956,685 3,164,575
7 6,990,300 7,962,875
8 202,493,573 202,493,573
9 15,586,290 15,186,385
228,026,848 228,807,408
10 24,445,266 11,316,237
24,715,599 6,357,746
49,160,865 17,673,983
11 52,630,992 41,939,415
12 45,644,218 17,915,457
4,414,794 2,461,316
13 130,122,653 127,435,496
232,812,657 189,751,684
(183,651,792) (172,077,701)
44,375,056 56,729,707
14 2,562,930 2,373,854
2,835,105 5,476,713
5,398,035 7,850,567
38,977,021 48,879,140
15 59,523,801 59,523,801
(20,546,780) (10,644,661)
38,977,021 48,879,140

MYY Ng
Director

pages 6 to 34 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
arfd signed on its behalf by
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Travel Circle International Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

At 31 December 2023

Share  Accumulated

capital losses Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
59,523,801 18,029,612 77,553,413
- (28,674,273) (28,674,273)
59,523,801 (10,644,661) 48,879,140
- (9,902,119) (9,902,119)
59,523,801 (20,546,780) 38,977,021

Page 8 of 34




rravel Circle International Limited

3tatement of Cash Flows
(ear ended 31 December 2023

JPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sash from (used in) operations
ncome tax paid

Vet cash from (used in) operating activities

NVESTING ACTIVITIES
durchase of property, plant and equipment
nterest received

\et cash used in investing activities

=INANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liabilities

nterest paid

_ease incentive received from landlord
_oans from immediate holding company

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of reporting

period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of reporting period,

represented by bank balances and cash

Note

16(a)

16(b)

16(b)

2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
21,116,712 (7,939,438)
. (712,470)
21,116,712 (8,651,908)
(914,600) (3,221,084)
114,031 2,264
(800,569) (3,218,820)
(4,003,595) (8,750,313)
(641,852) (273,063)

- 1,000,000

2,687,157 24,183,489
(1,958,290) 16,160,113
18,357,853 4,289,385
6,357,746 2,068,361
24,715,599 6,357,746
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I'ravel Circle International Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Travel Circle International Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The Company’s
‘egistered office is located at 2001, 20/F., BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong,
Hong Kong. The immediate holding company of the Company is Thomas Cook (India) Limited, a company
ncorporated in India. In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is Fairfax
Zinancial Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in Canada with its shares listed on the Toronto Stock
=xchange. The principal activities of the Company are to act as a travel agent and tour operator.

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (‘HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2023 financial statements, except for the adoption of the new / revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Company and effective from the current year. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below.

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the
financial statements. Management has reviewed the disclosures of accounting policy information and
considered it is consistent with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates
The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12: Income Taxes
The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS

12 so Fhat it no longer applies to transactions that, on recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant impact on the financial statements.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the principles applicable to a going
concern basis. The applicability of these principles is dependent upon continued availability of adequate
ﬁnanc_e or attaining profitable operations in the future in view of the net current liabilities. There is a
matgnal uncertainty related to this condition that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern and, therefore, the Company may be unable to realise its assets and
fﬂlsqharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The immediate holding company has confirmed
Its intention to make available adequate funds to the Company as and when required to maintain the
Company as a going concern.
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Travel Circle International Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of measurement
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost, except
stated otherwise in the accounting policies set out below.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured at the excess of the consideration
transferred, and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the acquisition
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a separate asset and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the purpose of
impairment test and determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated impairment losses of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or, if shorter, over the unexpired term of lease
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

Computer equipment 3to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews internal and external sources of information to
geter_mine whether its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assts may be impaired or
Impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
_Company estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amognt, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.
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Travel Circle International Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than goodwill (Continued)

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting
policy for goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Company’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (i) the Company transfers the financial asset and either (a)
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first annual reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL":

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows: and

(i)  its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include bank balances and cash and trade and other
receivables.

Financial liabilities

R_ecogn.ft."on and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A f_lnarjcial liab!lity is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the
obligation specifieq in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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ravel Circle International Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
(ear ended 31 December 2023

I PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued,

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans from immediate holding
company. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each reporting
date, the Company measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows
that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on one or

rr:%re shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due information, nature of instrument and industry
of debtors.

Definition of defauit

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that the Company may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument meets any of the following criteria:

(i) infO_rmation developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any

_ collaterals held by the Company); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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ravel Circle International Limited

otes to the Financial Statements
aar ended 31 December 2023

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(if)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets without significant financing components or otherwise for
which the Company applies the practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The Company recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Write-off

The Company writes off a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Company has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The Company expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into
account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
Investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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ravel Circle International Limited

lotes to the Financial Statements
ear ended 31 December 2023

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result

of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are charged against the related provision in the
year in which the expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount provided is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of services

The nature of the sérvices provided by the Company is sale of tours and provision of travel agency
services.

Identification of performance obligations
At contract inception, the Company assesses the services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either:

(@) aservice (or a bundie of services) that is distinct; or
(b) a series of distinct services that are substantially the same and that have the same pattern of
transfer to the customer.

A service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the service either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the service is capable of being distinct); and
(b) the Company’s promise to transfer the service to the customer is separately identifiable from other

promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer the service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a

promised service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains
control of that asset,

The Company transfers control of a service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s
performance as the Company performs;

(b) the Company's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

() the Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and
the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a perforn_wan‘ce obligation is not satisfied over time, the Company satisfies the performance obligation
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining when the
transfer of control occurs, the Company considers the concept of control and such indicators as legal

title, physical Possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and
customer acceptance.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Service income from sale of tours is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes all of the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company performs. This
means that if another travel agent was to take over providing the remaining performance obligation to
the customer, it would not have to substantially re-perform the work already completed by the Company.

Commission income from travel-related services is recognised at a point in time when the related
services are rendered to and have been accepted by the customers.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credited-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset, excluding any
amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or the Company has
a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Company transfers a good or
service to the customer, the contract is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Company’s right to consideration that is
unconditional or only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net contract asset or a net contract

liability is presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

For sale of tours, it is common for the Company to receive from the customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such
transactions). The Company recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During that
period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will be included in the contract liability and will
be expensed as accrued unless the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

On the other hand, for the agency business of sale of air tickets, hotel accommodation packages and
other travel-related products, the Company receives payments from the customer which are largely in

line wit_h the timing of revenue recognition and no significant contract assets or contract liabilities are
recognised.

Leases

The CO”_]Pany assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract_[s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee
The Company ap
Payments associ
lease term,

plies the recognition exemption to short-term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease
ated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The Company accounts for each lease component within a lease contract as a lease separately. The
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Company that do not give rise to a separate component are considered to be
part of the total consideration that is allocated to the separately identified components of the contract.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the
lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Company; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. Depreciation
is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the
end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a

purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated usefu! life of the underlying
asset) as follows:

Office premises 2-3 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments

1;ortthe right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
ate:

(a) ﬁxgd payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(¢) amou_nts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

(d) z:grmse price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option;

(e) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising
an option to terminate the lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued) . . . o .
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily
determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate when there are changes to the lease
payments arising from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the Company will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount rate when there is a change in the
residual value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the Company remeasures the lease liability
using a revised discount rate.

The Company recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price

for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@) the Company allocates the consideration in the modified contract on the basis of relative stand-
alone price as described above.

(b) the Company determines the lease term of the modified contract.

(¢) the Company remeasures the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to
reﬂept the partial or full termination of the lease and recognising any gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e) forall o?her lease modifications, the Company accounts for the remeasurement of the lease liability
by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation
ltems included in the Company's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (“functional currency”).

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.

Defined contribution plan

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Company in an independently administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Company demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Taxation
The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-

assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Def{érred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties _ )
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Company.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(i)  has significant influence over the Company; or
@iy is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of the parent of the
Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Company.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controfled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

!n the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture
includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Critical accounting judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the financial statements. They affect the application of the Company's accounting policies,
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to

accounting estimates are recognised in the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

Sale of tours angd commission income

The Company evaluates its responsibilities for the delivery of services and other relevant facts and

cwcumstgnces, and determines that it is acting as a principal of sale of tours and agent of

commission earned. Accordingly, revenue arising from the sale of tours is stated at its gross amounts

l'beecfglrvagle for' the tour operator and travel services rendered by the Company and is measured

incor:e i‘:duftlng relqted costs in accordance with the accounting pqlicy set out above. Commissio_n

Y S afted at its net amounts receivable in relation to the tickets sold or hotels booked in
rdance with the accounting policy set out above.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Company has performed an impairment test for goodwill in accordance with the accounting
policy stated above. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is reviewed for
impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash flows. Cash flow projections are
prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market
conditions and are discounted appropriately.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Company uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to discount future lease payments since
interest rates implicit in the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the discount rates for its
leases, the Company refers to a rate that is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, a deferred tax asset of HK$15,586,290 (2022: HK$15,186,385) in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the statement of financial position. The recognition
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Future changes in HKFRS
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new /

revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Company but not yet effective for the current year, which the
Company has not early adopted.

The directors are in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future adoption of the new /

revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on the Company's
financial statements.

B REVENUE

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
Sale of_ tqurs 220,587,574 16,411,733
Commission income 4,600,963 1,006,732
Total revenue 225,188,537 17,418,465
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(@)

(b)

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN / INCOME

Other revenue
Interest income

Other net gain / income
Exchange (loss) gain, net
Government subsidies

Others

Write-back of receipts in advance

LOSS BEFORE TAX

This is stated after charging (crediting):

Finance costs
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on loans from immediate holding company

Other items

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution plan

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Exchange loss (gain), net

Write-back of receipts in advance

Note

2023 2022

HK$ HK$
114,031 2,264
(181,070) 292,018

- 3,004,000

32,426 4,797
764,755 -
616,111 3,300,815
2023 2022

HKS$ HK$
641,852 273,063
10,060,562 7,561,736
10,702,414 7,834,799
2023 2022

HK$ HK$
20,701,386 15,753,426
1,167,965 830,199
21,869,351 16,583,625
353,000 444,000
1,122,490 1,000,090
4,324,016 8,758,317

181,0730 (292,018)
764,755 -
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L 1]
.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Company incurred a loss for taxation purpose

for current and prior years.

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Current tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax - %
Deferred tax
Benefits of tax losses recognised (Note 9) (399,905) (4,891,000)
Total tax credit for the year (399,905) (4,891,000)
2023 2022
Reconciliation of tax expense HK$ HK$
Loss before tax (10,302,024) (33,565,273)
Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rates of 16.5%

(2022: 16.5%) (1,699,834) (5,538,270)
Non-deductible expenses 1,847,388 1,254,245
Tax exempt revenue (284,204) (745,286)
Unrecognised temporary differences 51,759 75,167
Unrecognised tax losses - 63,144
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (315,014) -
Tax credit for the year (399,905) (4,891,000)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold Motor Computer fixtures and
improvements vehicles equipment equipment Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Reconciliation of carrying
amount — year ended
31 December 2022
At beginning of the reporting
period - - 874,142 80,700 954,842
Additions 2,861,144 - - 359,940 3,221,084
Disposals - - - (11,261) (11,261)
Depreciation (77,328) - (872,802) (49,960) (1,000,090)
At end of the reporting period 2,783,816 - 1,340 379,418 3,164,575
Reconciliation of carrying
amount - year ended
31 December 2023
At beginning of the reporting
period 2,783,816 - 1,340 379,419 3,164,575
Additions 144,800 769,800 - - 914,600
Depreciation (970,527) (64,150) (1,340) (86,473) (1,122,490)
At end of the reporting period 1,958,089 705,650 - 292,946 2,956,685
e — e m——
At 31 December 2022
Cost 6,394,835 274,304 5,341,138 1,572,352 13,582,629
Accumulated depreciation (3,611,019) (274,304) (5,339,798) (1,192,933) (10,418,054)
Net carrying amount 2,783,816 - 1,340 379,419 3,164,575
e —_—
At 31 December 2023
Cost 6,316,211 769,800 5,066,342 1,287,854 13,440,207
Accumulated depreciation (4,3568,122) (64,150) (5,066,342) (994,908) (10,483,522)
Net carrying amount 1,958,089 705,650 - 292,946 2,956,685
——— ——— e — —
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fi.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Office Reinstatement

premises costs Total
HK$ HK$ HK$

Reconciliation of carrying amount

- year ended 31 December 2022
At beginning of the reporting period 8,315,935 # 8,315,935
Additions 6,845,053 1,560,204 8,405,257
Depreciation (8,676,201) (82,116) (8,758,317)

i i 6,484,787 1,478,088 7,962,87

At end of the reporting period 62,875
Reconciliation of carrying amount

- year ended 31 December 2023
At beginning of the reporting period 6,484,787 1,478,088 7,962,875
Additions 3,315,465 35,976 3,351,441
Depreciation (3,819,328) (504,688) (4,324,016)
At end of the reporting period 5,980,924 1,009,376 6,990,300

The Company obtains right to control the use of office premises for a period of time through lease
arrangements. Lease arrangements are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions including lease payments and lease term of 2 to 3 years. Except for lease covenants
mainly related to the maintenance and use of the leased assets that are commonly found in lease
arrangements, there are no other covenants or restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements.

Total cash outflow for leases for the year amounted to HK$4,645,447 (2022: HK$9,023,376).

GOODWILL

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of Travel Circle International Services Limited on 9 November
2015. At 31 December 2023, management determined that there was no impairment of the goodwill.

Impairment tests for goodwill

The recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
cal_cufattons use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated rate

below. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the cash generating unit operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
2023 2022

- Long-term growth rate 2.50% 2.50%
- Discount rate 15.89% 17.86%

Management determined the estimated long-term growth rate based on past performance and its

EXpectations for market develo i | e
. ' -tax and reflect fi
i e pment. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The movement in the Company’s deferred tax assets is as follows:

At 1 January
Credited to profit or loss (Note 5)

At 31 December

Tax losses
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
15,186,385 10,295,385
399,905 4,891,000
15,586,290 15,186,385

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had unrecognised tax losses of HK$Nil (2022;: HK$382,691)
to carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry date under current

tax legislation.

0. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables

Other receivables
Prepayments

Deposits

Other receivables

Payment in advance to suppliers

2023 2022

HK$ HK$
1;079;552 =
4,083,477 2,417,472
2,000,554 2,418,376
2,464,310 1,681,248
14,817,373 4,799,141
23,365,714 11,316,237

24,445,266

11,316,237

Except for refundable deposits of HK$2,000,554 (2022: HK$2,418,376) that are expected to be
recovered after more than one year, all of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within twelve months of the end of the reporting period.

Information about the Company’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance for trade and other

receivables is included in note 18(a).

1. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors and accruals

Amount due to immediate holdi

ng compan
Amoqnts _due to fellow subsidiarigs =
Receipts in advance

The amounts due
and repayable on demand.

2023 2022

HK$ HK$
27,432,935 20,132,085
21,840,437 13,516,129
- 16,788
3,357,620 8,274,413
52,630,992 41,939,415

to immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
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12.

13.

14,

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both occurred within the same
year) of contract liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are as

follows:

2023 2022

HK$ HK$
At 1 January 17,915,457 1,398,075
Refund due to cancellation of tours (105,198) -
Recognised as revenue (17,810,259) (72,900)
Receipt of advances or recognition of receivables 45,644,218 16,590,282
At 31 December 45,644,218 17,915,457

Unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations

All the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 are part of contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or
less. Given that the Company applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these performance obligations is not disclosed.

LOANS FROM IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Current portion 130,122,653 127,435,496

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-bearing at 7.79% to 8.95% (2022: 6.11% to 7.18%) per
annum and repayable within the next twelve months of the end of the reporting period.

PROVISION
2023 2022
; HK$ HK$
Reinstatement costs
At 1 January 2,373,854 3,376,059
Addition of provision for reinstatement costs 35,976 1,560,204
Ad_J}lstr_nent of provision in prior year 153,100 -
Utilisation of reinstatement costs - (2,562,409)

At 31 December 2,562,930 2,373,854

Provision for reinsta
under the tenancy
utilised afte

tement costs represents the management's best estimate of the Company's liabilities

agreements in restoring the premises to their original status, which is expected to be
F more than twelve months.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL

2023

Issued and fully paid:
At beginning and end of the reporting

period

59,523,801

No. of shares HK$

59,523,801

No. of shares

59,623,801

HK$

59,523,801
e —————

In accordance with section 135 of the Companies Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do

not have a par value.

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and is
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

16. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

16(a) Cash from (used in) operations

Loss before tax

Interest income

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expenses

Net increase (decrease) in provision for reinstatement costs

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Cash from (used in) operations

16(b)

Details of the changes in the Company'’s liabilities from financing activities are as follows:

2023

oy

At 1 January 2023
Net cash flows
New lease

At 31 December 2023

\_

2023
HK$

(10,302,024)

(114,031)
5,446,506
10,702,414
153,100

(13,129,029)
631,015
27,728,761

2022
HK$

(33,565,273)
(2,264)
9,758,407
11,261
7,834,799
(2,562,409)

(1,116,021)
(4,815,320)
16,517,382

21,116,712

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(7,939,438)

Loans from
immediate
Lease holding
liabilities company Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
7,938,029 127,435,496 135,373,525
(4,003,595) 2,687,157 (1,316,438)
3,315,465 - 3,315,465
7,249,899 130,122,653 137,372,552
e ——3

.
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16. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

16(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (Continued)

2022
Loans from
immediate
Lease holding
liabilities company Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2022
Net cash f|;yws 8,843,289 103,252,007 112,095,296
New | (8,750,313) 24,183,489 15,433,176
e 7,845,053 - 7,845,053

At 31 December 2022 7,938,029 127,435,496 135,373,525

17. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions / information disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, during the
year, the Company had the following transactions with related parties:

2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Management fee to immediate holding company 1,319,002 973,223
Management fee to fellow subsidiaries 15,690 44,159
Loans interest to immediate holding company 10,060,562 7,561,736
Purchase from fellow subsidiaries 463,760 -

All members of key management personnel are directors of the Company, and their remunerations
are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise mainly cash .anq bank balances and loans
from immediate holding company. The main purpose of these financial instrments is ta raise and
maintain finance for the Company's operations. The Company has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables which arise directly

from its business activities.

nstruments are credit risk, foreign currency risk
ritten risk management policies and guidelines.
rvative strategies on its risk management and '

um as follows: ||

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial |
and liquidity risk. The Company does not have any W
However, the board of directors generally adopts conse
limits the Company's exposure to these risks to @ minim

I
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18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

a)  Credit risk

The Company's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and deposits with

banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations take into account the
customers’ past payment history, financial position and other factors. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables using a provision
matrix as at 31 December 2023 is summarised below.
{

Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% HK$ HK$ Credit-impaired
As at 31 December 2023
Less than 1 month past due s 0. —M_ e No

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the Company. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Company does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Trade receivables are due within 15-30 days from the date of billing.

At 31 December 2023, none of the Company’s trade receivables was individually determined to be
impaired.

Deposits with financial institutions are made with those with sound credit ratings to minimise the
credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.
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18.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

b)  Foreign currency risk

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). The Company is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases giving rise to trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, creditors and accruals that are denominated in other currencies, being primarily United States

dollars (“USD"), Australian dollars ("AUD"), Euros (“EUR”), Renminbi (“RMB"), Swiss franc ("CHF"), New
Zealand dollars (“NZD") and India Rupee (“INR").

As the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Company considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant. In respect of balances denominated in AUD, EUR,
RMB, CHF, NZD and INR, the Company ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates or entering into short-term foreign currency forward
contracts where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The following table details the Company's exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Company's
functional currency of HKD. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in HKD,
translated using the spot rate at the year-end date.

e I ———

2023
Exposure to foreign currencies
usD AUD EUR RMB CHF NzD INR
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
Trade and other receivables 9,308,757 3,651 348,179 1,142 7,128 24,369 29,281
Bank baiances and cash 13,503 15,494 34,936 4,941 25,836 15,230 1,316
Loans from immediate
holding company (130,122,653) -
Amount due to immediate
holding company - - . - - - (76,008)
Trade and other payables (23,516,388) (669,813) (7,422,531) {145,287) (707,169) (672,167) (29,672)
Net exposure to currency
risk (144,316,781) (650,668) (7,039,416) (139,204) (674,205) (632,568) (75,083)
2022
Exposure to foreign currencies
uUsSD AUD EUR RMB CHF NzZD INR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS
Bank balances and cash 128,770 25,159 22,789 1,310 9,402 14,333 1,324
Loans from immediate
holding company (127,435,496) - - N - - -
Trade and other payables (533,217) (16,153) (1,095,420) (51,209) (252,586) (274,234) (1,855,776)
Net exposure to currency
risk T SO0 _(072631) 49899 (243184 M )
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

b) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change on the Company’s loss before tax that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Company has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. No other
components of equity would be affected by changes in foreign exchange rates. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

2023 2022

Increase Increase

(Decrease) in (Decrease) in
foreign (Decrease) foreign (Decrease)
exchange Increase in loss exchange Increase in loss
rates before tax rates before tax
HK$ HKS$
AUD 1% 6,507 5% (450)
(1%) (6,507) (5%) 450
EUR 1% 70,394 5% 53,682
(1%) (70,394) (5%) (53.682)
RMB 1% 1,392 5% 2,495
(1%) (1,392) (%) (2,495)
CHF 1% 6,742 5% 12,159
(1%) (6,742) (5%) (12,159)
NZD 1% 6,326 5% 12,995
(1%) (6,326) (5%) (12,995)
INR 1% 751 5% 92,723
(1%) (751) (5%) (82,723)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on loss before tax measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Company which exposed the Company to currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)

c) Liquidity risk

Management of the Company closely monitors the current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure sufficient reserve of cash is available for the Company’s business operation in short and
longer term. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period based on contractual undiscounted payments are summarised below:

Total contractual

Within 1 year undiscounted Total carrying
or on demand Over 1 year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2023
Trade and other payables 49,273,372 - 49,273,372 49,273,372
Lease liabilities 4,759,062 2,927,862 7,686,924 7,249,899
Loans from immediate holding
company 136,192,336 - 136,192,336 130,122,653
190,224,770 2,927,862 193,152,632 186,645,924
Total contractual
Within 1 year undiscounted Total carrying
or on demand Over 1 year cash flows amount
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2022
Trade and other payables 33,665,002 - 33,665,002 33,665,002
Lease liabilities 2,927,862 5,855,724 8,783,586 7,938,029
Loans from immediate holding
company 134,997,233 - 134,997,233 127,435,496
5,855,724 177,445,821

171,590,097 169,038,527

d) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
loans advance from immediate holding company. The Company's policy is to manage its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt. The Company aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Company’s net loss for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$1,055,000 (2022: HK$1,212,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
the relevant financial instruments in existence at that date. The changes in interest rate represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until the
next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2022.

e) Fairvalue

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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18.

19.

20.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICES (CONTINUED)
f) Capital management

The objectives of the Company's capital management are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to provide returns for shareholders. The Company manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments, including payment of dividend to shareholders, return of capital to shareholders
or issue of new shares or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BANK FACILITIES

In addition to the bank facilities disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Company has
been granted bank facilities including guarantee line limited to HK$1,000,000 (2022: HK$100,000) and
corporate card with limit of HK$200,000 (2022: HK$30,000). These facilities are secured by corporate
guarantee from its immediate holding company.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS

The following disclosures are presented pursuant to section 383 of the Companies Ordinance.

(a) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
Director fees - 45,000
Other services in connection with management of the
affairs:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,749,600 1,382,278
Retirement scheme contributions 118,973 118,973
1,868,573 1,546,251
(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors of the Company or
its holding company that were entered into or subsisted during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022,

{c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangement or contracts
The directors are of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation of the Company’s business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the years or at any time during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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Fax: +91 44 4608 3199

ndependent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Registered Office:

B S R & Co. (a partnership firn with Registration No. BA61223) converted inlo BS R & Ca. LLP (a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limiled Liability Parinership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) wilh effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Westem Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063

Page 1 of 15



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and that the back-up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers
in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically located in India.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 44 and Note 46 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 58 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 58 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares from third party service provider for maintaining its books of account. In the absence of
reporting on compliance with the audit trail requirements in the independent auditor's report in
relation to controls at service organisation for such accounting software, we are unable to
comment whether audit trail feature of the said softwares was enabled and operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software or whether there were any instances
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the
limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Yo

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 217042
Date: 14 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24217042BKGSOB1769
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i) (b)

(©

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, held- not being
value director or indicate held in the
(INR in their range, name of the
lakhs) relative or where Company.
employee | appropriate Also
indicate if
in dispute
Freehold land 40,501.62 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3
Holiday 2015 and 49 of the
Resorts onwards financial
(India) statements
Limited
Building 19,283.73 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3
Holiday 2015 and 49 of the
Resorts onwards financial
(India) statements
Limited
Freehold land 4,327.70 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(a) and 49
Resorts onwards of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
Building 4,768.79 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(a) and 49
Resorts onwards of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

Description Gross Held in the Whether Period Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, held- not being
value director or indicate held in the
(INR in their range, name of the
lakhs) relative or where Company.
employee | appropriate Also
indicate if
in dispute
Freehold land 761.70 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3
Holiday 2015 and 46(c) of
Resorts onwards the financial
(India) statements
Limited
Freehold land 10,007.30 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(d)(i) and
Resorts onwards 49 of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
Building 3,736.91 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(d)(i) and
Resorts onwards 49 of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
Freehold land 12,200.00 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(d)(ii) and
Resorts onwards 49 of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
Building 4,377.79 | Sterling No August 18, | Refer Note 3,
Holiday 2015 46(d)(ii) and
Resorts onwards 49 of the
(India) financial
Limited statements
Freehold land 1,040.00 | Manchanda No March 20, | SHRIL had
Resorts 1990 acquired
Private onwards Manchanda
Limited Resorts Pvt
Ltd, title
deeds are
yet to be
transferred.
Building 2,779.78 | Manchanda No March 20, | SHRIL bhad
Resorts 1990 acquired
Private onwards Manchanda
Limited Resorts Pvt
Ltd, title
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Continued)
Description Gross Held in the Whether Period Reason for
of property carrying name of promoter, held- not being
value director or indicate held in the
(INR in their range, name of the
lakhs) relative or where Company.
employee | appropriate Also
indicate if
in dispute
deeds are
yet to be
transferred.

(d)

(e)

(ii) ()

(b)

(iif)

(@

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year except for all assets
comprising ‘Land’ (see Note 3 and 52 in the financial statements).

The aforesaid revaluation is not based on the valuation performed by a Registered Valuer and
the amount of net change was INR 14,053.96 lakhs which is more than 10% in the aggregate
of the net carrying value of total land as a class of Property, Plant and Equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current as<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>